

(a corporation incorporated under the Business Corporations Act of the Province of Alberta, Canada with limited liability)

(HKEx: 2012, TSX: SUO)



ANNUAL REPORT 2012

CONTENTS

4	Highlights	

- 5 Statement from the Co-Chairmen
- 6 Statement from the President
- 8 Directors and Senior Management
- 14 Corporate Governance Report
- 23 Directors' Report
- 31 Management's Discussion and Analysis
- 56 Independent Auditor's Report
- 57 Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss
- 58 Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
- 59 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity
- 60 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
- Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
- 99 Appendix to the Consolidated Financial Statements
- 103 Corporate Information

Overview

CORPORATE PROFILE

Sunshine Oilsands Ltd. (the "Corporation" or "Sunshine") is a Calgary based public company, listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange since March 1, 2012 and the Toronto Stock Exchange since November 16, 2012. Sunshine is focused on the development of its significant holdings of oil sands leases in the Athabasca oil sands region. The Corporation owns 100% of approximately 1.1 million acres of oil sands leases, equivalent to approximately 7% of the total oil sands leases granted in the Athabasca region. The Corporation is currently focused on executing milestone undertakings in the West Ells project area, where first steam is scheduled for the third quarter of 2013. West Ells has an initial production target rate of 5,000 barrels per day, which will be followed immediately by an approved expansion to a planned production capacity of 10,000 barrels per day in early 2014. In addition to West Ells activities, Sunshine is progressing regulatory approvals for two additional 10,000 barrels per day projects, one in Thickwood and one in Legend.

Sunshine's growth is being led by an experienced team with strong capital markets, corporate governance and capital cost discipline. This team has a proven record of creating significant value in managing successful companies such as Harvest Operations, Viking Energy Royalty Trust, PanCanadian Petroleum, Canadian Oil Sands, Athabasca Oil Sands Corp., and Canadian Natural Resources Limited.

INDEPENDENT RESERVES AND RESOURCES

Independent Reserves and Resource Assessment, December 31, 2012

Sunshine's oil sands leases in the Athabasca oil sands region of north-eastern Alberta hold an estimated 70 billion barrels of Total Petroleum Initially in Place (PIIP, a sum of discovered and undiscovered PIIP components). Sunshine's Reserves and Resources evaluation completed by the independent evaluators, GLJ Petroleum Consultants Ltd. and DeGolyer and MacNaughton Canada Limited, with an effective date of December 31, 2012, confirmed a substantial increase in our recognized reserves and resources from November 30, 2011. Main highlights of the new independently prepared Reserves and Resources Reports, include the following:

- 80 million barrels of Proved Reserves with an aggregate pre-tax PV10% value of \$362 million;
- · 446 million barrels of Proved Plus Probable Reserves with an aggregate pre-tax PV10% value of \$990 million; and
- 5.1 billion barrels of Best Estimate Contingent Resources with an aggregate pre-tax PV10% value of \$10.3 billion.



Overview

The following tables summarize the results of the latest reserves and resources evaluation. In comparison to the November 30, 2011 reserves and resources assessment, the latest evaluation shows a 78 million barrel increase in proved reserves and 27 million barrel increase in proved plus probable reserves. Clastic Best Estimate Contingent resource recognition increased by 1.3 billion barrels to 3.7 billion barrels. Carbonates Best Estimate Contingent resource recognition increased by over 700 million barrels to 1.3 billion barrels. The December 31, 2012 total best estimate contingent resource assignment of over 5 billion barrels represents a 2 billion barrel (65%) increase from November 30, 2011.

RESERVES, EFFECTIVE DECEMBER 31, 2012

		Reserves						
					Proved Plus Pro	bable Plus		
	Prove	Proved		Probable	Possib	le		
	Gross ¹	PV10%	Gross ¹	PV10%	Gross ¹	PV10%		
	(MMbbls)	(\$MM)	(MMbbls)	(\$MM)	(MMbbls)	(\$MM)		
Total	80	362	446	990	605	1,665		

Source: GLJ Report and D&M Report effective December 31, 2012. Values are calculated before tax using the D&M price forecast effective January 3, 2013.

CONTINGENT RESOURCES, EFFECTIVE DECEMBER 31, 2012

	Contingent Resources					
	Low Estimate		Best Estimate		High Esti	mate
	Gross PV10%		Gross	PV10%	Gross	PV10%
	(MMbbls)	(\$MM)	(MMbbls)	(\$MM)	(MMbbls)	(\$MM)
Total Clastics	1,748	3,102	3,712	8,069	6,139	16,307
Total Carbonates	463	839	1,345	2,225	5,250	10,060
Combined Total	2,211	3,941	5,057	10,294	11,389	26,367

Source: GLJ Report and D&M Report effective December 31, 2012. Values are calculated before tax using the D&M price forecast effective January 3, 2013.



 [&]quot;Gross reserves" are the Company's working interest share before deducting royalties and without including any royalty interests of the Company.
 Net Reserves are the Company's working interest share after deduction of royalty obligations, plus the Company's royalty interests in reserves. The Corporation holds 100% working interest share in all its properties.

Highlights

- On March 1, 2012, Sunshine completed its IPO and listing on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "SEHK"), raising approximately \$570 million under the listing symbol of "2012".
- Through the IPO, the Corporation secured significant investment from cornerstone investors such as Premium Investment
 Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation, EIG Management Company and Sinopec Century
 Bright Capital Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Petrochemical Corporation, otherwise known as the
 Sinopec Group.
- Sunshine significantly increased its resource values and volumes in its independently evaluated reserves and resource estimates as at December 31, 2012; total best estimate contingent resource assignment of over 5 billion barrels representing a 2 billion barrel (65%) increase from November 30, 2011.
- The Corporation signed a Memorandum of Understanding for strategic cooperation with Sinopec International Petroleum Exploration and Production Corporation.
- In October, Sunshine secured a \$200 million credit facility with a syndicate of financial institutions. This credit facility was
 oversubscribed and was expanded from its original size due to strong interest.
- The Corporation listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange ("TSX") on November 16, 2012 under the symbol of "SUO".
- Operationally, the Corporation obtained approval for its first Steam Assisted Gravity Drainage ("SAGD") 10,000 barrel per day project at West Ells and commenced civil construction early in the year and mechanical construction in the summer at the West Ells site.
- At West Ells, the Corporation initiated and progressed substantial development of the West Ells project, which is intended to start steaming in the third quarter of 2013.
- In relation to other core areas, Sunshine continues to advance through the regulatory process for its Thickwood and Legend projects with approvals expected in the first half of 2013 and later in 2013, respectively, for an initial 10,000 barrels per day project in each area.

SUMMARY OF AUDITED FINANCIAL FIGURES

As at and for the year ended December 31	2012 (\$000s)	2011 (\$000s)	2010 (\$000s)	2009 (\$000s)	2008 (\$000s)
Cash and cash equivalents	282,231	84,957	41,540	576	541
Exploration and evaluation assets	366,668	382,277	197,836	134,623	124,475
Property and equipment	327,971	719	474	302	355
Total liabilities	108,650	327,128	20,602	7,850	28,922
Shareholders' equity	871,076	148,587	222,433	127,965	98,592
Net loss	61,728	67,392	9,857	2,848	5,446
Net loss per share (\$ per basic and diluted share)	0.02	0.05	0.01	0.06	0.12

Please refer to our Management's Discussion and Analysis included in this Annual Report as well as our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional details on our financial results as at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Statement from the Co-Chairmen



Michael J. Hibberd



Songning Shen

We look at our achievements in 2012 with considerable pride, although we have not been happy with the recent trading price of our Sunshine shares. We completed our Hong Kong IPO initiative, which was critical to our long term progression, we listed on the TSX, we moved our resource and reserves base up considerably and we surged ahead with physical construction activities targeting first steam at West Ells mid-year this year. With the addition of \$200 million in credit facilities, we are fully-funded for 2013 activities and are looking for opportunities to accelerate the regulatory clearing of new projects and the expansion phases of our key project initiatives.

A key strength in our business approach has been to recognize the need to constantly plan to ensure that expert leadership guides each phase of our progression. We have completed Sunshine's key acquisition and resource delineation phases in several key areas, we have moved methodically to initiate regulatory clearances and we have progressed on-time and on-budget in our first SAGD project initiative at West Ells. Our current challenge is to ensure that the scaling-up of our execution initiatives is supported by proven experience and leadership in the management of our rapidly growing organization. With this in mind, we are pleased to report that our Board of Directors has unanimously endorsed our joint recommendation to vest full executive authorities in our President and CEO, John Zahary, effective at the completion of our Annual Meeting on May 7, 2013. John Zahary has proven his capabilities over the course of the last year, and we are delighted to announce this meaningful decision to have him take full charge of our growth initiatives. As a final note, we want to thank our entire management team for their solid work and achievements and we sincerely thank our board for their tireless support. We also want to express our appreciation for the ongoing support of our shareholders. As we look forward, we fully expect to see our initiatives executed in a manner that will attract an increasingly positive trading value for our stock.

Michael J. Hibberd

Co-Chairman of the Board of Directors
March 26, 2013

Songning Shen

Co-Chairman of the Board of Directors
March 26, 2013

adolesia di salah salah di

Statement from the President

2012 was a year of tremendous success for Sunshine Oilsands Ltd. ("Sunshine" or the "Corporation"). We established our position in the capital markets with the closing of a significant IPO and listing on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and the Toronto Stock Exchanges. We grew our resource and reserves base with large additions and we grew our operational presence materially. All of these accomplishments centered around building shareholder value by moving ahead with the development of our enormous clastic and carbonate resource base in the Athabasca region of Alberta. We view these achievements to be just the beginning for developing our long term production potential aimed at increasing shareholder value.

CAPITAL MARKET

We started off the year with the successful completion of our Hong Kong initial public offering ("IPO") which saw us raise HK\$4.5 billion (approximately \$570 million). We secured significant investments from several prominent cornerstone investors. Our IPO was one of the largest IPOs



John Zahary

for the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in 2012. A TSX listing in Canada was obtained in the fourth quarter of the year. This TSX listing facilitates the ability for North American shareholders to buy our stock. In the fourth quarter, we continued to focus on securing funding for our projects and negotiated a credit facility of \$200 million with a syndicate of several major financial institutions led by Alberta Treasury Branches and Bank of China (Canada). The credit facility was oversubscribed and was expanded from its original size due to strong support from financial institutions that included Bank of America, HSBC Bank, Morgan Stanley, Bank of Nova Scotia, Toronto-Dominion Bank, UBS and Industrial and Commercial Bank of China. With the success of these financings, we have secured a financial platform that supports our business plan to begin developing our large oil sands asset base. This initial development includes the completion of the construction of the West Ells project, funding of front end costs for the Thickwood project and regulatory development to expand capacity for these two main projects and a third project at Legend. We believe the opportunity at Sunshine is immense.

Facilitating joint venture discussions with parties who have expressed interest for involvement in the development of our attractive assets remains a top priority for Sunshine. Throughout fiscal 2012, we continued discussions with interested parties, including Sinopec International Petroleum Exploration and Production Corporation with whom we have a Memorandum of Understanding for strategic cooperation. In addition, in January 2013, we signed a Memorandum of Understanding with China Oilfield Services Ltd. ("COSL"). We are working with a syndicate of financial advisors to finalize and implement a debt financing strategy.

RESERVE ADDITIONS

Our resource base is one of the largest in the Athabasca region, where Sunshine owns 100% of approximately 1.1 million acres of oil sands leases. Our December 31, 2012 Reserves and Resources Reports confirmed significant increases in Best Estimate Contingent Resource recognition in both the clastics and carbonates categories compared to fiscal 2011. Total Petroleum-in-Place ("PIIP"), which is the sum of discovered and undiscovered PIIP components, increased to approximately 70 billion barrels. Clastic Best Estimate Contingent Resource recognition increased by 1.3 billion barrels to 3.7 billion barrels. Carbonate Best Estimate Contingent Resource recognition increased by over 700 million barrels to 1.4 billion barrels. Based on this, we believe our current share price is trading at a significant discount to our PV10% resource and reserves value. Our focus remains on the continuous investment in and development of our massive resource base and, ultimately, production from core project areas in order to translate these opportunities into higher shareholder value.

As we look ahead to our long term plan, we believe opportunities associated with our significant reserves and resource assets are impressive. We have commercial development plans in the West Ells, Thickwood and Legend areas targeting over 300,000 barrels per day of production.

Statement from the President - continued

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

With funding in place for West Ells, we broke ground on October 10, 2012 and have made significant progress at the construction site. Several key milestones were successfully achieved including the construction of a 55 km all-season access road, key facility construction and the completion of the drilling of first pair of horizontal SAGD producer wells. Major equipment has been delivered to site, including heat recovery steam generators and free water knockouts. We kicked off 2013 with the standing of the evaporator tower-meeting schedule and without incident.

I am pleased to report that we are progressing as planned for the West Ells construction schedule. We continue to forecast total capital costs of West Ells at approximately \$468 million, excluding road construction costs. With first steam expected in the third quarter of 2013, Phase 1 West Ells is designed to produce 5,000 barrels per day of bitumen followed by an expansion for an additional 5,000 barrels per day expected to be producing from Phase 2 in 2014. As we ramp up activities to achieve near-term production and cash flow, this will provide the basis to further support increasing recognition of value in Sunshine's assets.

Although our near term focus remains on West Ells, we are working to progress regulatory clearance for the Thickwood and Legend applications. We expect to leverage off the first-phase development and construction of our West Ells project and use this data to improve results and cost efficiencies for future development phases and projects. We will continue through the regulatory approval process in 2013 for the 10,000 barrel per day Thickwood and Legend commercial projects. Expansion plans for significant bitumen production growth will continue, we expect to file expansion applications for West Ells, Thickwood and Legend as rapidly as possible.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND COMMUNITY

Sunshine remains committed to working with local stakeholders as we build a strong, sound and sustainable organization that is intended to be meaningful in a global context. The Corporation consistently maintains a disciplined approach to health, safety and environmental issues and remains committed to operating in a socially responsible manner with regularly conducted emergency response training, and safety and environmental audits of our operating facilities. I am pleased to report that we had no significant incidents in fiscal 2012.

WHAT'S NEXT

2012 was an exciting year for Sunshine with achievements that set the groundwork for future milestones and accomplishments. 2013 is a pivotal year for Sunshine as we continue to develop West Ells with first steam in the third quarter. By the end of 2013, we should be at or near first production at West Ells and we expect to be moving forward on developments at Thickwood and Legend, with additional commercial applications filed in support of our 300,000 barrel per day growth plan. Sunshine's significant presence in the north-western part of the Athabasca oil sands region represents an opportunity for investors seeking value growth. As a management team, we continue to believe in our execution capabilities and in the experience of our technical team which strives for operational excellence. It is our dedication and commitment to achieve results which will help to deliver on our projects.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to note that our strong growth and foundation of value for our shareholders has been invigorated by the determined efforts of the Board of Directors and employees. In particular, I would like to acknowledge the many contributions of our two Executive Co-Chairmen and founders, Michael Hibberd and Songning Shen, and thank them for their efforts to bring Sunshine to its current state. We look forward to working with them in their roles as non-executive directors. I would like to extend my sincere gratitude to you, our shareholders, for your continued support and interest in Sunshine.

John Zahary

President and Chief Executive Officer

March 26, 2013

CO-CHAIRMEN EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Michael J. Hibberd, aged 57, is our Co-Chairman and an Executive Director. Mr. Hibberd is a founder of our Company and held the title of Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer from August 7, 2007 to October 6, 2008. Since May 9, 2007, he has been an Executive Director and since October 6, 2008 he has been Co-Chairman of our Company, a title which he shares with Mr. Songning Shen. Mr. Hibberd has more than 24 years of experience in the oil and gas industry and has extensive international energy project planning and capital markets experience. He is currently president and chief executive officer of MJH Services Inc., a company founded in 1995. Mr. Hibberd currently holds directorships in the following public companies: Heritage Oil Plc, Heritage Oil Corporation, Canacol Energy Ltd., Greenfields Petroleum Corporation, Montana Exploration Corp., and PanOrient Energy Corp., all publicly traded entities listed on the London Stock Exchange, the TSX or the TSX Venture Exchange. Mr. Hibberd was previously a director of the following companies: Deer Creek Energy, Zapata Energy Corporation, Iteration Energy Ltd., Avalite Inc., Sagres Energy Inc., Rally Energy Corp., Skope Energy Inc. and Challenger Energy Corp.

Mr. Hibberd obtained his bachelor of arts degree in 1976 and his master of business administration degree in 1978 from the University of Toronto. He obtained his bachelor of laws degree from University of Western Ontario in 1981, was called to the bar in 1983 and is a member of The Law Society of Upper Canada.

The following table sets out the details of each of the above mentioned public companies.

Company Heritage Oil Plc and Heritage Oil Corporation (a subsidiary of Heritage Oil Plc)	Primary business Oil and gas exploration and production with exploration assets in Kurdistan region of Iraq, Malta, Tanzania, and Mali and oil production in Russia	Role in company Non-executive Chairman and does not participate in the daily operations	Types of products Crude oil production. Crude oil and natural gas production potential	How products are sold in general Sales are made through private arrangements to clients in local and international markets	Demand and supply for the products Sales are in the Russian market only	Customers No overlap with Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.
Canacol Energy Ltd.	Oil production and exploration with oil operations in Colombia and exploration assets onshore in Colombia, Guyana and Brazil	Non-executive Chairman and does not participate in the daily operations	Crude oil and natural gas	Sales are made to clients in local and international markets	Sales are primarily in the Latin America region and from international firms	No overlap with Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.

Company Greenfields Petroleum Corporation	Primary business Oil production and exploration company with operations in Azerbaijan	Role in company Non-executive Chairman and does not participate in the daily operations	Types of products Crude oil and natural gas	How products are sold in general Sales are made to clients in local and international markets	Demand and supply for the products Sales are in only Azerbaijan	Customers No overlap with Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.
Montana Exploration Corp	Junior oil and gas exploration and production company with natural gas production and an exploration focus on oil formations in Montana USA. Also holds minor conventional oil and gas assets in Alberta.	Non-executive director and does not participate in the daily operations	Natural gas. Future oil production potential.	Sales are made through private arrangements to clients in local markets	In excess of 90% of sales are of natural gas	No overlap with Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.
PanOrient Energy Corp.	Junior oil and natural gas company with oil production onshore Thailand, interests in onshore Indonesia and a 53.3% interest in a private company which holds working interests in 85.5 sections of Oil Sands Leases in the Peace River oil sands area in Alberta	Non-executive director and does not participate in the daily operations	Oil production	Sales are made through private arrangements to clients in local and international markets	Sales are in the Thailand market only	No overlap with Sunshine Oilsands Ltd. Oil sands holdings are all in the Peace River oil sands area while Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.'s oil sands assets are all held in the Athabasca oil sands region; revenues are currently from sales to the Thai National Oil Company

CO-CHAIRMEN EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - Continued

Mr. Songning Shen, aged 47, is our Co-Chairman and an Executive Director. Mr. Shen is a founder of our Company and held the title of President from February 22, 2007 to October 6, 2008 and Co-Chief Executive Officer from August 7, 2007 to October 6, 2008. Since February 22, 2007 he has been an Executive Director and since October 6, 2008 he has been Co-Chairman of our Company, a title which he shares with Mr. Hibberd. Mr. Shen is president and chief executive officer of 1226591 Alberta Inc, a company established in 2006. Mr. Shen has over 22 years of experience in oil and gas industry. From 2006 to 2007, Mr. Shen worked at Koch Exploration Canada LP as a senior geology consultant. Mr. Shen obtained his bachelor of science degree from Tongji University in 1986 and his master of science degree from Norwegian University of Science and Technology in 1998. Mr. Shen is a professional geologist registered in Alberta, Canada.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hok Ming Tseung, aged 51, is a non-executive Director appointed by the Board on March 2, 2010 as a nominee selected by Orient International Petroleum & Chemical Limited and Orient International Resources Group Limited, each of which he is a director. Mr. Tseung, through directly and indirect shareholdings, is our largest shareholder. The Board resolved to approve the appointment of a nominee by Orient International Petroleum & Chemical Limited on August 13, 2009. Mr. Tseung is also vice chairman of the Hong Kong Financial Service Institute and the Hong Kong China Education Fund. Mr. Tseung was appointed as a director of the second board of directors of the China Foreign Affairs University on March 11, 2005 and since November 29, 2011 has been a non-executive director of Dongwu Cement International Ltd. (which became a publicly listed company on the HKEx on June 13, 2012). Mr. Tseung obtained a postgraduate degree in international economics from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in 1998.

Mr. Tingan Liu, aged 51, is a non-executive Director and Hong Kong Company Secretary. He was appointed by the Board as a Director on February 1, 2011 as a nominee selected by China Life pursuant to the terms of the subscription agreement for the Class B Shares. Mr. Liu has been appointed as our authorised representative pursuant to Rules 2.11 and 3.05 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Liu is the deputy chairman and president of China Life Insurance (Overseas) Company Limited. Mr. Liu also holds a number of positions of responsibility in various professional and industry bodies, including serving as a council member of the Financial Services Development Council of the Hong Kong S.A.R., as a member of the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, as a member of the Insurance Advisory Committee of the Government of Hong Kong S.A.R., as a councilor of the Life Insurance Council of the Hong Kong Federation of Insurers, as an executive director of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association and as a council member and fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Liu received the Director of the Year Award, organised by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, in 2009 in the category of "Private Company Executive Directors" and he was also a winner of China's "Top 10 Economic Talents Special Award 2009". Mr. Liu obtained a masters degree in economics from Renmin University of China in 1988 and completed a training programme at the University of Oxford in 1991. He is a senior economist, a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.



NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - Continued

Mr. Haotian Li, aged 41, is a non-executive Director appointed by the Board on February 14, 2011 as nominee selected by BOCGI pursuant to the terms of the subscription agreement for the investment by Charter Globe Limited. Mr. Li has been appointed as our authorised representative pursuant to Rules 2.11 and 3.05 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Li is currently the deputy chief executive officer of BOCGI and chairman of BOCGI's investment committee. He is also responsible for the strategic investment department, the non-performing asset investments department and the funds investment management department, with the total investments under management of these divisions in excess of HK\$30 billion. Since June 2010, Mr. Li has also been a director of Bank of China Investment Limited and a director of BOCGI Zheshang Investment Fund Management (Zhe Jiang) Co., Ltd. the fund management company of ZheShang PE Fund since 2009, a RMB5 billion fund that he was instrumental in establishing and successfully launching. Mr. Li obtained a masters of business administration degree from the University of Denver in 1998 and a bachelor of engineering degree from Tsinghua University in 1995.

Mr. Gregory G. Turnbull, aged 58, is a non-executive Director and was Chairman of the Compensation Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee until April 1, 2012. He was appointed as a Director on August 24, 2007. Mr. Turnbull is a senior partner of the Calgary office of McCarthy Tétrault LLP, which he joined in July 2002 following his previous position as partner of Donahue Ernst and Young LLP. Mr. Turnbull has approximately 15 years of experience in oil and gas industry. Mr. Turnbull is currently a director of Crescent Point Energy Corp., Storm Resources Ltd., Heritage Oil Plc, Heritage Oil Corporation, Hawk Exploration Ltd., Sonde Resources Corp., Porto Energy Corp. and Hyperion Exploration Corp., all publicly traded entities listed on the London Stock Exchange, the TSX or the TSX Venture Exchange. Mr. Turnbull is also currently a director of a number of private companies. Mr. Turnbull obtained a bachelor of arts from Queen's University in 1976 and a bachelor of laws from the University of Toronto in 1979, and was appointed as a Queen's Counsel in 2009.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Raymond S. Fong, aged 66, is an independent non-executive Director appointed on May 9, 2007. Mr. Fong has over 22 years of experience in the oil and gas industry. Mr. Fong is currently the chief executive officer of China Coal Corporation of Calgary. He held previous directorships with Abenteuer Resources Ltd., Stealth Ventures Ltd., Zapata Capital Inc., director and president of Ultra Capital Inc. and a former director of United Rayore Gas Ltd. Mr. Fong obtained a bachelor of science degree from the Taiwan Cheng Kung University in 1970, and a master of science degree from the Tennessee Technological University in 1971. Mr. Fong is a registered professional engineer in Ontario and Alberta, Canada.

Mr. Robert J. Herdman, aged 61, is an independent non-executive Director appointed on July 18, 2011. Mr. Herdman has over 36 years of experience in the oil and gas industry. Mr. Herdman is a fellow chartered accountant qualified in Alberta, Canada. He joined PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. in 1976 and worked as a partner from 1989 to 2010 in the Calgary office, serving the firm's Calgary based public clients including service to companies operating in both the mining and thermal recovery of oil sands. Following a 34 year career with PriceWaterhouseCoopers, Mr. Herdman retired from practice in 2010. He currently serves on the boards of directors of Blackline GPS Corp., Chinook Energy Inc., Black Diamond Group, and TriOil Resources, all public companies listed on the TSX or the TSX Venture Exchange, and he is also a board member of Western Financial Group Inc., which voluntarily delisted in 2013 as it no longer has publicly traded securities. He was a member of the governors of the Glenbow Museum. He recently completed a six year term on the board of governors of the Chartered Accountants Education Foundation and has served on a number of other committees overseeing the practice of accounting in Alberta and as a director for a number of non-profit making organisations. Mr. Herdman graduated with a bachelor of education degree from the University of Calgary in 1974.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - Continued

Mr. Wazir C. Seth, aged 72, is an independent non-executive Director and Chairman of the Reserves Committee. He was appointed as a director on September 1, 2008. Mr. Seth has over 41 years of experience in the oil and natural gas industry. He is currently president of Seth Consultants Ltd. From January 1968 to June 2006 he was employed by McDaniel & Associates Consultants Ltd., and from July 1989 to June 2007, he served as its chairman, president and managing director. Mr. Seth is currently on the board of directors of Enerplus Corporation, Connacher Oil & Gas Limited, Corridor Resources Inc. and Lateral Capital Corp., all public companies listed on the TSX or the TSX Venture Exchange. He is also the founder and director of Energy Navigator Inc., a private software development firm servicing the petroleum industry. Mr. Seth has previously served as a director of Open Range Energy Corp., Redcliffe Exploration Inc., Reliable Energy Ltd., Torquay Oil Corp. and Triton Energy Corp. Mr. Seth graduated from the University of British Columbia in 1966 with a bachelor of applied science degree in mechanical engineering and is a registered professional engineer in the province of Alberta.

Mr. Gerald F. Stevenson, aged 69, is an independent non-executive Director appointed on July 15, 2011. Mr. Stevenson has over 34 years of experience in the oil and gas industry. Mr. Stevenson was head of oil and gas acquisitions and divestitures for CIBC World Markets Inc. in Calgary, Alberta from January 2006 to April 2011 where he was responsible for selling oil and gas companies or individual oil and gas properties, and was involved in M&A and financing activities. Mr. Stevenson also has extensive experience in oil and gas operations, including senior management positions and international experience, including two years in Jakarta, Indonesia.

Mr. Stevenson obtained a bachelor of engineering degree in mechanical engineering in 1965 and a masters of science degree in mechanical engineering in 1967 from the University of Saskatchewan in Saskatoon. Mr. Stevenson is a professional engineer registered in province of Alberta.



Senior Management

Mr. John E. Zahary, aged 51, was appointed as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation on December 20, 2011. Mr. Zahary has more than 25 years of experience in several large integrated and upstream companies in the oil and gas industry in Canada and internationally. He has significant experience with heavy oil, oil sands, light oil, natural gas, and refining and marketing operations.

Most recently, Mr. Zahary served as president and chief executive officer of Harvest Operations Corp. ("Harvest") and a predecessor company from April 2004 to January 21, 2012. He continued on the board of Harvest whose equity was owned by Korean National Oil Corporation, as a non-executive director until September 2012. Harvest is an integrated oil and gas company with approximately 60,000 barrels of oil equivalent per day production, a 115,000 barrels per day refining and marketing operation and an active 100% owned Athabasca Region oil sands project. Mr. Zahary served as president and chief executive officer of Viking Energy Trust from April 2004 to February 2006 prior to its acquisition by Harvest under a corporate plan of arrangement.

Mr. Zahary obtained a bachelor of science degree in mechanical engineering in 1983 from the University of Calgary and a masters of philosophy degree in management studies in 1989 from the University of Oxford. Mr. Zahary serves as a non-executive director of other private and public oil companies and is active with volunteer positions in the community.

Mr. Robert A. Pearce, aged 54, was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President Finance of the Corporation on November 20, 2012. Mr. Pearce has over 25 years of varied technical and business experience in the areas of corporate development, general management, debt and equity finance, strategy and planning. Prior to joining Sunshine, Mr. Pearce was the chief operating officer at Harvest and the chief financial officer of a junior company developing a new oil sands extraction technology. Mr. Pearce was also chief executive officer and co-founder of North West Upgrading where he led a team developing an independent upgrader and refiner to service Alberta's growing oil sands sector. Mr. Pearce has held various for profit and not-for-profit director positions. Mr. Pearce has an undergraduate degree in geological engineering and a masters of business administration in finance.

Mr. David O. Sealock, aged 53, has been our Executive Vice President, Corporate Operations since June 14, 2010. Previously, Mr. Sealock was our Vice President, Corporate Operations from June 2008 to June 2010. Mr. Sealock has approximately 25 years of experience in the oil and gas industry. Mr. Sealock is responsible for the development and implementation of corporate support services for the organisation, including IT/IS, procurement and logistics. He was previously the vice president, corporate services, investor relations and corporate secretary at MegaWest Energy Corp., an oil and gas company. Mr. Sealock holds directorships with Solaris Synthetic Petroleum Ltd., Infinity Power Inc. and the Airdrie Progressive Conservative Constituency Association. Mr. Sealock obtained a bachelor's degree in business management from the University of Phoenix in 2008, an information technology management certificate from the University of Calgary in 2002 and a diploma of electronics engineering technology from DeVry Institute of Technology in 1991 and is a registered engineering technologist.

Mr. Dong Liu, aged 43, was appointed as the Senior Vice President in Hong Kong and Canada of the Corporation on May 17, 2012. Mr. Liu has over eight years of experience in investor relations, equity and capital markets, and merger & acquisition transactions. He was previously with Orient International for over seven years, where he was vice president of Orient Financial Holdings Limited since 2006 and responsible for investor relations, equity markets, and capital transactions.

Mr. Tonino Sabelli, aged 57, has been our Senior Vice President, Operations since December 15, 2011. Mr. Sabelli was previously our Vice President, Drilling and Completions and Construction from August 16, 2010 to December 15, 2011. Mr. Sabelli has over 35 years of oil and gas drilling and production experience in Alberta. He was previously a founder and officer of Rising Sky Energy Ltd. Mr. Sabelli obtained a petroleum engineering diploma from the Southern Alberta Institute of Technology in 1977.

The Board of Directors ("the Board") of the Corporation is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended December 31, 2012. The Corporation and the Board are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance. The Corporation and the Board recognize that high quality corporate governance practices are fundamental to the effective and transparent operation of a company and its ability to protect the rights of its shareholders and enhance shareholder value.

Since March 1, 2012 (the "Listing Date"), the Corporation was in compliance with the Corporate Governance compliance obligations under Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules"). The Corporation confirms compliance with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules since the Listing Date, save that the Corporation has not yet entered into formal letters of appointment with its directors and therefore will deviate from Code Provision D.1.4 of the Code. The Corporation will deviate from Code Provision D.1.4 of the Code since each of the Directors will be elected on an annual basis at each annual general meeting, which is consistent with market practice in Canada.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Board of Directors confirmed they have also complied with the Corporate Disclosure and Trading Policy during the accounting period covered by this Annual Report.

The Board has an audit committee, a corporate governance committee, a compensation committee and a reserves committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Corporation's affairs. All Board committees are established with defined written terms of reference which are posted on the Corporation's website and are available to shareholders upon request. Meetings of the Board committees generally follow the same procedures as for meetings of the Board.

The Corporation has, throughout the year ended December 31, 2012, applied the principles and complied with the requirements of its corporate governance practices as defined by the Board and all applicable statutory, regulatory and stock exchange listings standards. The Corporation's current practices are reviewed and updated regularly to enable high quality corporate governance.

The Corporation has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Corporation considers that all of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent. The Board is of the view that all the independent Non-Executive Directors are independent and have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise in accordance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. Further, the Corporation has received from the Joint Company Secretaries annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has established clear guidelines with respect to matters that must be approved or recommended by the Board, including, without limitation, approval and adoption of the Corporation's annual operating budget and capital expenditure budget; the hiring or dismissal of the CEO, Chief Financial Officer, Joint Company Secretary or certain other members of the Corporation's senior management team; and approving and recommending significant transactions. The day-to-day management administration and operation of the Corporation is delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management of the Corporation. The Corporation has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in respect of potential legal actions against its directors and senior management.

The Board consists of the following members:

Mr. Michael J. Hibberd Co-Chairman Executive Director ("ED")
Mr. Songning Shen Co-Chairman Executive Director

Mr. Hok Ming Tseung

Non-Executive Director ("NED")

Mr. Tingan Liu Non-Executive Director
Mr. Haotian Li Non-Executive Director
Mr. Gregory G. Turnbull Non-Executive Director

Mr. Raymond S. Fong Independent Non-Executive Director ("INED")

Mr. Robert J. Herdman Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. Wazir C. (Mike) Seth Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. Gerald F. Stevenson Independent Non-Executive Director

The biographical details of each director and their respective responsibilities and dates of appointment are included in the "Directors and Senior Management" of this Annual Report.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notice of regular Board meetings is given to all directors at least three days in advance, and reasonable notice is generally given for other Board meetings. Annual meeting schedules and the draft agenda of each meeting are normally made available to directors in advance. Arrangements are in place to allow directors to include items in the agenda, and final agendas together with Board papers are sent to directors at least three days before each Board meeting so that the Board can make informed decisions on matters placed before it. Each director also has separate and independent access to the senior management where necessary.

Minutes of the Board meetings are kept by the Joint Company Secretaries. Draft minutes are circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting.

If a director or any of his associates has a material interest in a transaction, that director is required to disclose his interest and to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at the meeting for approving the transaction.

Appointment and Election of Directors

The Corporation uses a formal and transparent procedure for the identification of nominees for director and recommendation to the Board, which is led by the corporate governance committee.

Nominees for Director are elected to hold office until the next annual meeting of the shareholders of the Corporation or until his successor is duly elected or appointed, unless his office is vacated earlier, in accordance with the articles of incorporation and by-laws of the Corporation.

Each of the NEDs and INEDs was elected on May 29, 2012, subject to re-election. Details of the appointment and election of directors are set out in the "Directors and Senior Management" section of this Annual Report.

Induction and Ongoing Development

Each newly appointed director receives a formal, comprehensive and tailored induction to ensure his or her understanding of the business and operations of the Corporation and awareness of a director's responsibilities and obligations. Directors are continually updated on developments and participate in continuous professional development in the statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities and to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership of the Corporation, and for promoting the success of the Corporation by directing and overseeing the Corporation's affairs. In addition, the Board is responsible for overseeing the corporate governance and financial reporting of the Corporation and for reviewing the effectiveness of the Corporation's system of internal control. To assist it in fulfilling its duties, the Board has established four board committees: the audit committee, the compensation committee, the corporate governance committee and the reserves committee.

Audit Committee

The Board established an audit committee on January 9, 2008 and adopted written terms of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the committee, which have been revised from time to time since then. The audit committee currently consists of four members, namely Mr. Robert Herdman (Chairman of the audit committee) (INED), Mr. Gerald Stevenson (INED), Mr. Wazir Seth (INED) and Mr. Tingan Liu (NED).

In compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, at least one member of the audit committee possesses appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or related financial management expertise in discharging the responsibilities of the audit committee.

All members have sufficient experience in reviewing audited financial statements as aided by the independent external auditors of the Corporation whenever required.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and supervise the Corporation's financial reporting process and internal controls, to monitor the integrity of the Corporation's financial statements and financial reporting, and to oversee the audit process.

There were seven meetings of the audit committee held during the year ended December 31, 2012. The following is a summary of the work performed by the audit committee during 2012:

- reviewed the scope of the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Corporation for the year ended December 31,
 2012, as well as the fee proposal for such audits;
- reviewed the interim consolidated financial statements for the periods ended March 31, 2012, June 30, 2012 and September 30, 2012, respectively;
- reviewed the assessment of the design and testing of the effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control systems as performed by the external auditor; and
- reported to the Board on the meetings of the Committee.

Since the Corporation was only listed on March 1, 2012, it was not required for the audit committee to perform certain of its duties, including in relation to the appointment or re-appointment of independent external auditors, the review of the Corporation's relationship with its independent external auditors, and the review of its systems for financial reporting, internal controls and risk management, during 2012. However, these duties were discharged by the audit committee.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Board established a corporate governance committee on January 9, 2008 and adopted written terms of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the committee, which have been revised from time to time since then. Since April 1, 2012, the Corporate Governance Committee has consisted of seven members, namely Mr. Gerald Stevenson (Chairman), Mr. Michael Hibberd, Mr. Robert Herdman, Mr. Gregory Turnbull, Mr. Haotian Li, Mr. Raymond Fong and Mr. Wazir Seth. The Corporate Governance Committee consists of a majority of independent non-executive Directors and is chaired by an independent non-executive Director.

The primary duties of the corporate governance committee in respect of nominations include, but are not limited to, making recommendations to the Board relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors and senior officers, succession planning for directors, in particular the Co-Chairmen and the chief executive officer and assessing the independence of independent non-executive directors. Further, the corporate governance committee has certain duties in respect of other corporate governance matters, including, to consider and review the Corporation's corporate governance principles, practices and processes and to make recommendations to the Board, to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management and to review the Corporation's compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance. Going forward, the corporate governance committee meets at least once a year to discharge its responsibilities.

In compliance with Code Provision A.5.1 and D.3.2, on April 1, 2012:

- Mr. Gregory Turnbull stepped down as chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee and was replaced by Mr. Gerald Stevenson, an independent non-executive Director of our Corporation. Mr. Gregory Turnbull, a non-executive Director, remains a member of the Compensation Committee.
- Mr. Hok Ming Tseung, non-executive Director, ceased to be a member of the Corporate Governance Committee.
- Mr. Raymond Fong and Mr. Wazir Seth, independent non-executive Directors, became members of the Corporate Governance Committee.

Compensation Committee

The Corporation established a compensation committee on January 9, 2008 and adopted written terms of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the committee. Since April 1, 2012, the Compensation Committee has consisted of five members, namely Mr. Robert Herdman (Chairman), Mr. Gregory Turnbull, Mr. Hok Ming Tseung, Mr. Raymond Fong and Mr. Gerald Stevenson. The Compensation Committee consists of a majority of independent non-executive Directors and is chaired by an independent non-executive Director.

The primary duties of the compensation committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the Corporation's policy and structure for the remuneration of directors and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration, as well as to determine the specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and certain members of Senior Management.

In compliance with Code Provision B.1.1, on April 1, 2012:

- Mr. Gregory Turnbull stepped down from his role as Chairman of the compensation committee, and was replaced by Mr. Robert Herdman, an independent non-executive Director of our Corporation. Mr. Gregory Turnbull, a non-executive Director, remains as a member of the Compensation Committee.
- Mr. Raymond Fong and Mr. Gerald Stevenson, independent non-executive Directors, became members of the Compensation Committee.

Reserves Committee

The Corporation has established a reserves committee on January 9, 2008 and adopted written terms of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the committee. The reserves committee consists of four members, namely Mr. Wazir Seth (INED) (Chairman of the reserves committee), Mr. Songning Shen (ED), Mr. Gerald Stevenson (INED) and Mr. Raymond Fong (INED).

The primary duties of the reserves committee include but are not limited to reviewing and approving management's recommendations for the appointment of independent evaluators; reviewing procedures for providing information to the independent evaluators; meeting with management and the independent evaluators to review the reserves data and reports; recommending to the Board whether to approve the content of the independent evaluators' report; and reviewing procedures for reporting on other information associated with oil sands producing activities and generally reviewing all public disclosure of estimates of reserves.

The Reserves Committee meets at least once annually to review procedures relating to the disclosure of information with respect to oil and gas activities, including reviewing its procedures for complying with its disclosure requirements and restrictions set forth under applicable securities requirements.

The Reserves Committee also reviews and assesses the Corporation's health, safety and environment processes and controls.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

There were 16 meetings of the Board held during the year ended December 31, 2012. The following is the attendance record of the Board and committee meetings held during the year:

	Corporate					
	Board of	Audit	Governance	Compensation	Reserves	
	Directors	Committee	Committee	Committee	Committee	
Mr. Michael Hibberd	16/16	_	3/3	_	_	
Mr. Songning Shen	16/16	_	_	_	4/4	
Mr. Hok Ming Tseung	16/16	_	_	7/7	_	
Mr. Tingan Liu	14/16	4/7	_	_	_	
Mr. Haotian Li	15/16	_	3/3	_	_	
Mr. Gregory Turnbull	16/16	_	3/3	7/7	_	
Mr. Raymond Fong	16/16	_	3/3	7/7	4/4	
Mr. Robert Herdman	16/16	7/7	3/3	7/7	_	
Mr. Wazir Seth	16/16	7/7	3/3	_	4/4	
Mr. Gerald Stevenson	16/16	7/7	3/3	3/31	4/4	

Mr. Stevenson became a member of the Compensation Committee, effective April 1, 2012, and attended all three compensation committee
meetings held while he was a member of that committee.

Each INED has provided the Corporation with an annual confirmation of his or her independence, and the Corporation considers each of the INEDs to be independent under rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Corporation introduced a shareholder communication policy on April 1, 2012 in compliance with Code Provision E.1.4.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT ("HSE")

Sunshine executives and managers believe in the HSE principle of "Safety First" and the Corporation has an excellent safety record. In 2012, the Corporation continued to emphasize improvements in the field safety monitoring system for preventing workplace injuries. We are committed to protecting and promoting the safety and well being of our employees, contractors, communities and the environment. We aim for safe and reliable operations where any risks which compromise the health and safety of workers are identified and addressed.

Sunshine meets all regulated standards for environment, health and safety. We continue to improve by working together and sharing responsibility for a healthy environment, as well as the safety and well being of our contractors, our families, our communities and ourselves.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The following is a general description of the emolument policy of the Corporation, as well as the basis of determining the emoluments payable to the directors.

The compensation of directors is determined by our Board, which receives recommendations from the compensation committee. One of our NEDs did not receive any directors' fees. All of our EDs, INEDs and remaining NED's received directors' fees and Board committee retainers in 2012.

Under our current compensation arrangements, EDs, NEDs, INEDs and senior management receive compensation in the form of cash and bonuses subject to performance targets and are eligible to receive option grants.

As of the date of this annual report, the Corporation does not have any employee long-term incentive plans. If it is decided to establish any such plans in the future, further to recommendations from the compensation committee, such plans will comply with applicable provisions of the Listing Rules.

Remuneration of the directors (including retainers, fees, salaries, discretionary bonuses, and other benefits including share based payments) was approximately \$21.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 (2011 – \$7.7 million).

Please refer to our Audited Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report for additional details on remuneration of directors.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Corporation has adopted its own policy (the "Corporate Disclosure and Trading Policy") for securities transactions by directors and employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of the Corporation. This policy is no less exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules ("Model Code").

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Board of Directors confirmed they have complied with the Corporate Disclosure and Trading Policy during the accounting period covered by this Annual Report. Since the Corporation was listed subsequent to the reporting period, it was not obliged to comply with the Model Code.

Directors' and Chief Executive Officer's ("CEO") interests in the Corporation's shares as at December 31, 2012 are set out in this Annual Report.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

The auditors' statement about their reporting responsibilities for the Corporation's consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditors' Report included in this Annual Report.

The fees in relation to the audit and related services for the year ended December 31, 2012 provided by Deloitte, the independent external auditors of the Corporation, were as follows:

Nature of services rendered	Fees paid
Audit fees¹	\$ 422,945
Non-audit fees ²	25,360
	\$ 448,305

- 1. Audit fees consist of:
 - a. Audit of the Corporation's annual financial statements;
 - b. Reviews of the Corporation's interim financial statements;
 - c. Assessment of the design and testing of the effectiveness of internal controls; and
 - d. Consents and other services related to the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and Canadian securities regulatory and authorities' matters.
- Non-audit fees consist of:
 - a. Fees for tax services consisting of review of income tax compliance filings.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges that it holds responsibility for:

- Overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the Corporation with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Corporation; and
- Selecting suitable accounting policies and applying them consistently with the support of reasonable judgment and estimates.

The Board ensures the timely publication of the financial statements of the Corporation. Management provides explanations and information to the Board to enable it to make an informed assessment of the financial and other information to be approved. The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Corporation keeps proper accounting records, for safeguarding the Corporation's assets and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention of fraud and other irregularities.

The Board strives to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Corporation's financial reporting, including annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive announcements, and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators any information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board places great importance on internal control and is responsible to ensure that the Corporation maintains sound and effective internal controls.

The Corporation reviews and monitors the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system on ongoing basis. Since the Corporation does not have an internal audit function, the Corporation engaged the external auditor to complete testing of the design and effectiveness of its internal control system for the year ended December 31, 2012. The audit plans are discussed and agreed to each year with the audit committee.

Each year the Board reviews the overall effectiveness of the Corporation's internal controls. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Corporation's system of internal control for the year ended December 31, 2012. In conducting such review, the Board has (i) reviewed the Corporation's internal control activities during the year and discussed such activities and the results thereof with the Corporation's Chief Financial Officer, (ii) reviewed and discussed the scope and results of the annual audit with the Corporation's independent external auditors, (iii) reviewed the assessment of internal controls conducted in connection with the Corporation's initial public offering, and (iv) reviewed with management the results of the Corporation's internal management representation process that was performed in connection with the preparation of the annual financial statements. Based on its review, the Board is not aware of any material defects in the effectiveness of internal controls.

ANNUAL ASSESSMENT

A review of the effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control system covering all material controls, including financial, operational, compliance, and risk management controls, is conducted annually. The review at the end of 2012 was conducted with reference to the COSO (The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission) internal control framework, which assesses the Corporation's internal control system against the five elements of control environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and communication, and monitoring. The Corporation has also conducted an annual review to assess the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Corporation's accounting and financial reporting function and their training. The approach, findings, analysis and results of this annual review have been reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Corporation also has conducted an annual review to assess the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Corporation's accounting and financial reporting function, and their budget (for training and related programs).

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Corporation strives to maintain a high level of transparency in communications with shareholders and investors. The Corporation keeps a constant dialogue with the investment community through company visits, conference calls, information sessions and participation in major investor conferences to communicate the Corporation's business strategies, developments and goals.

The Corporation's annual and interim reports, stock exchange filings, press releases and other information and updates on the Corporation's operations and financial performance are available for public access on the Corporation's website, www.sunshineoilsands.com, and some of these documents are also available on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, www.hkexnews.hk and on the website of SEDAR, www.sedar.com.

The Corporation encourages its shareholders to attend the Corporation's Annual General Meeting ("AGM"), to communicate their views and concerns to the Board directly so as to ensure a high level of accountability and also to stay informed of the Corporation's strategies, developments and goals.

The AGM will be held on May 7, 2013 at 8 am in Hong Kong and on May 6, 2013 at 6 pm in Calgary, Canada.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Under the Business Corporations Act (Alberta) ("ABCA"), the directors of a corporation are authorized to call meetings of shareholders. The ABCA establishes two categories of meetings of shareholders: (i) annual meetings, and (ii) special meetings.

There are also specific circumstances in which shareholders may call special meetings where the directors fail to do so. Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the ABCA, registered or beneficial holders of not less than five per cent (5%) of the issued voting shares may requisition the directors to call a meeting of shareholders. If the directors do not call a meeting within 21 days after receiving the requisition, a shareholder who signed the requisition may call the meeting. The ABCA mandates that such shareholders be reimbursed for expenses incurred in requisitioning, calling, and holding the meeting unless the shareholders resolve otherwise at the meeting.

In order to safeguard shareholders' interests and rights, a separate resolution will be proposed for each separate issue to be decided at a shareholders' meeting, including for the election of individual directors.



The Board of Directors of the Corporation is pleased to present their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2012 together with comparative figures for the corresponding period in 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Corporation is engaged in the exploration for, and the development of, oil properties for the future production of bitumen in the Athabasca oil sands region in Alberta, Canada.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Corporation's principal wholly owned subsidiaries as at December 31, 2012 are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. The activities of the principal wholly owned subsidiaries of the Corporation at December 31, 2012 are set out in the table below:

		Issued and fully paid	
Name	Country of incorporation	share capital	Principal activities
Fare Francis Ltd	Albanta Canada	\$00,000	Evalenation
Fern Energy Ltd.	Alberta, Canada	\$60,000	Exploration
Sunshine Oilsands (Hong Kong) Ltd.	Hong Kong	\$100	Management services

RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTIONS TO SHAREHOLDERS

The results of the Corporation for the financial year are set out in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss included in this Annual Report. The Board has not recommended, declared or paid any distributions for the financial year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Corporation has one business and geographical segment. Accordingly, no business and geographical segment information are presented.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property and equipment of the Corporation during the year ended December 31, 2012 are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the Corporation's reserves during the year ended December 31, 2012 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2012, reserves available for distribution to shareholders amounted to approximately \$871.1 million as shown in the statutory accounts of the Corporation and calculated in accordance with the Corporation's articles of incorporation.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Corporation's articles of incorporation, by-laws of the Corporation or the ABCA.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Corporation during the year ended December 31, 2012 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity in this Annual Report.

During 2012, the Corporation repurchased for cancellation its own common shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Details of the share repurchases are included and discussed in this Annual Report. The Board believes the Corporation has adequate financial resources for its near term development plan, specifically at West Ells, and believes the shares of the Corporation have been undervalued.

DIRECTORS

As at December 31, 2012 and up to the date of this annual report, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Co-Chairmen Executive Directors

Mr. Michael J. Hibberd Mr. Songning Shen

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Hok Ming Tseung

Mr. Tingan Liu

Mr. Haotian Li

Mr. Gregory Turnbull

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Raymond Fong

Mr. Robert Herdman

Mr. Wazir Seth

Mr. Gerald Stevenson

Biographical details of the directors of the Corporation as at the date of this report are included in this Annual Report in the section headed "Directors and Senior Management".

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who is proposed for re-election at the 2013 AGM has or is proposed to have a service contract that is not determinable by the Corporation within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save for the related party transactions set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the transactions disclosed under the heading "Transactions with Related Parties" in the section entitled "Management Discussion and Analysis" of this Annual Report, no director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Corporation and its subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2012.

DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S INTEREST IN SHARES AND SHARE OPTIONS

As of December 31, 2012, the interests and short positions of the directors and chief executives of the Corporation in the shares and underlying shares of the Corporation and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO")) which were required to be notified to the Corporation and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Corporation under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Corporation and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Common shares

			Number of common	Approximate % interest in the
Name	Company	Nature of Interest	shares held ¹	Common Shares
Mr. Michael Hibberd	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Direct/indirect	62,090,000	2.19%
Mr. Songning Shen	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Direct/indirect	61,967,660	2.19%
Mr. Hok Ming Tseung	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Direct/indirect	280,233,035	9.90%
Mr. Tingan Liu	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal	_	0.00%
Mr. Haotian Li	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal	_	0.00%
Mr. Gregory Turnbull	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Direct/indirect	11,400,000	0.40%
Mr. Raymond Fong	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal	7,800,000	0.28%
Mr. Robert Herdman	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal	_	0.00%
Mr. Wazir (Mike) Seth	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal	_	0.00%
Mr. Gerald Stevenson	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal	34,000	0.00%
Mr. John Zahary	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal	200,000	0.01%

^{1.} All positions are long positions.

Preferred shares

			Number	Approximate %
			of preferred	interest in the
Name	Company	Nature of Interest	shares held	Preferred Shares
Mr. Michael Hibberd	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Direct/indirect	11,000,000	13.31%
Mr. Songning Shen	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Direct/indirect	11,000,000	13.31%
Mr. Hok Ming Tseung	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Direct/indirect	15,000,000	18.15%
Mr. Tingan Liu	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal		0.00%
Mr. Haotian Li	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal		0.00%
Mr. Gregory Turnbull	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Direct/indirect	600,000	0.73%
Mr. Raymond Fong	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal		0.00%
Mr. Robert Herdman	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal	<u> </u>	0.00%
Mr. Wazir (Mike) Seth	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal		0.00%
Mr. Gerald Stevenson	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal		0.00%
Mr. John Zahary	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal	4,000,000	4.84%

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pre-IPO Stock Option Plan:

The Corporation's pre-IPO stock option plan is for directors, officers, employees, consultants and advisors of the Corporation. These options vest over a period up to three years from the date of grant. Following the IPO closing on March 1, 2012, no further options were issued under the Pre-IPO Stock Option Plan.

Post-IPO Stock Option Plan:

On January 26, 2012, the Post-IPO Stock Option Plan was approved and adopted by shareholders at the Corporation's Annual General Meeting. The Post-IPO Stock Option Plan was effective immediately prior to the Corporation's IPO and listing on the SEHK, March 1, 2012. The maximum number of Class "A" common shares that may be reserved for issuance pursuant to the Post-IPO Stock Option Plan is 10% of the total number of issued and outstanding shares, less the maximum aggregate number of shares underlying the options already granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Stock Option Plan. Options granted under the Post-IPO Stock Option Plan will have an exercise price that is determined by the Board of Directors but is not less than the higher of the closing price and the five day average closing price of Class "A" common shares, listed on the SEHK.

Stock options

				Approximate %
			Number of stock	interest in the
Name	Company	Nature of Interest	options held	Options
Mr. Michael Hibberd	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Direct/indirect	26,070,000	13.54%
Mr. Songning Shen	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Direct/indirect	26,070,000	13.54%
Mr. Hok Ming Tseung	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Direct/indirect	1,510,000	0.78%
Mr. Tingan Liu	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal	_	0.00%
Mr. Haotian Li	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal	1,510,000	0.78%
Mr. Gregory Turnbull	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Direct/indirect	1,310,000	0.68%
Mr. Raymond Fong	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal	1,210,000	0.63%
Mr. Robert Herdman	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal	1,510,000	0.78%
Mr. Wazir (Mike) Seth	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal	2,210,000	1.15%
Mr. Gerald Stevenson	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal	1,510,000	0.78%
Mr. John Zahary	Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.	Personal	10,000,000	5.19%

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2012, none of the directors or chief executives (senior management team) of the Corporation have or are deemed to have interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares of the Corporation and any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notifiable to the Corporation and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or recorded in the register required to be maintained by the Corporation under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or as otherwise notifiable to the Corporation and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code.

Movements in Stock options

	Outstanding,					
	beginning					Outstanding,
Name	of year	Granted	Exercised	Forfeited	Expired	end of year
Mr. Michael Hibberd	30,680,000	11,760,000	(16,370,000)	_	_	26,070,000
Mr. Songning Shen	30,880,000	11,760,000	(16,570,000)	_	_	26,070,000
Mr. Hok Ming Tseung	1,000,000	510,000	_	_	_	1,510,000
Mr. Tingan Liu	_	_	_	_	_	_
Mr. Haotian Li	1,000,000	510,000	_	_	_	1,510,000
Mr. Gregory Turnbull	1,600,000	510,000	(800,000)	_	_	1,310,000
Mr. Raymond Fong	1,500,000	510,000	(800,000)	_	_	1,210,000
Mr. Robert Herdman	1,000,000	510,000	_	_	_	1,510,000
Mr. Wazir (Mike) Seth	1,700,000	510,000	_	_	_	2,210,000
Mr. Gerald Stevenson	1,000,000	510,000				1,510,000
Total for Directors	70,360,000	27,090,000	(34,540,000)			62,910,000
Mr. John Zahary	2,000,000	8,000,000	_	_	_	10,000,000
Mr. Robert Pearce	_	2,000,000	_	_	_	2,000,000
Mr. David Sealock	4,900,000	3,000,000	_	_	_	7,900,000
Mr. Tonino Sabelli ¹	1,400,000	3,000,000	_	_	_	4,400,000
Ms. Laura Sullivan ²	_	4,000,000	_	_	_	4,000,000
Mr. Douglas Brown ³	11,260,000	_	(5,580,000)	_	_	5,680,000
Mr. John Kowal⁴	8,980,000	_	_	_	_	8,980,000
Mr. Thomas Rouse⁵	4,700,000	1,000,000	(400,000)			5,300,000
Total for Executive Management	33,240,000	21,000,000	(5,980,000)			48,260,000
Total for other share option holders	99,358,540	22,104,338	(33,912,426)	(6,214,764)		81,335,688
Total	202,958,540	70,194,338	(74,432,426)	(6,214,764)		192,505,688

Ms. Sullivan joined Sunshine in July 2012 as Senior Vice President, Engineering and Geosciences. In March 2013, Ms. Sullivan resigned from the Corporation.

Other than the holdings disclosed in the tables above, none of the directors or Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation or their related parties had any interests or short positions in any shares of the Corporation or its associated corporations as at December 31, 2012. Please refer to our Consolidated Financial Statements (note 13) included in this Annual Report for additional details on our stock option plans and movements for the year ended December 31, 2012.

^{2.} Mr. Brown joined Sunshine in October 2008 as Co-Chief Executive Officer. In June 2012, Mr. Brown resigned from the Corporation.

^{3.} Mr. Kowal joined Sunshine in June 2008 and was Co-Chief Executive Officer. In June 2012, Mr. Kowal resigned from the Corporation.

^{4.} Mr. Rouse joined Sunshine in February 2008 and was Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Officer. In November 2012, Mr. Rouse resigned from the Corporation.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at December 31, 2012, so far as the directors are aware, the following shareholders (other than the directors or chief executives of the Corporation) had 5% or more beneficial interests or short positions in the issued shares and underlying shares of the Corporation which were recorded in the register required to be maintained by the Corporation under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

Name	Nature of Interest	Number of common shares held ¹	Approximate % interest in the Common Shares
Orient International Resources Group Limited	Beneficial	266,666,640	9.42%
Premium Investment Corporation	Beneficial	239,197,500	8.45%
Sinopec Century Bright Capital Investment Limited	Beneficial	239,197,500	8.45%
Charter Globe Limited	Beneficial	206,611,560	7.30%
China Life Insurance	Beneficial	169,680,600	5.99%

^{1.} All positions are long positions

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2012, so far as the directors are aware, no other persons (except the directors or chief executives) or corporations had 5% or more interests or short positions in shares and underlying shares of the Corporation which were recorded in the register required to be maintained by the Corporation pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the executives of the Corporation is set up by the Compensation Committee on the basis of merit, qualifications and competence and recommendations from the Co-Chairmen. Subject to changes directed by the Co-Chairmen, the emolument policy for the rest of the employees is determined on a department by department basis with the executive in charge of each department determining the emoluments for senior employees and managers in the department and the emoluments for non-senior employees being determined by an appropriately designated manager. The emolument policy for nonexecutives is administered in conjunction with the human resources department and is done on the basis of merit, qualifications and competence.

The emolument policy for the directors of the Corporation is decided by the Compensation Committee and approved by the Board, having regard to comparable market statistics.

Since the Corporation became a publicly listed company and subsequent to the reporting period, Sunshine confirms that the principles of the above will be applied prospectively effective with its public listing.

The Corporation also has a stock option plan for directors, officers, employees, consultants and advisors (the "Stock Option Plan"). The options vest over a period ranging up to three years from the date of grant. Options granted under the Stock Option Plan will have an exercise price that is not less than the price of the most recent private placement, or, if the common shares are listed on a stock exchange, the price which is, from time to time, permitted under the rules of any stock exchange or exchanges on which the common shares are then listed.

On September 9, 2010, the 2009 Stock Option Plan dated May 7, 2009, was amended, approved, ratified and adopted by shareholders at the Corporation's annual general meeting. The amendment increased the maximum number of common shares that may be reserved for issuance pursuant to the 2009 Stock Option Plan from 169,289,160 to the greater of 210,000,000 or 10% of the total number of issued and outstanding shares.

LOANS

As at December 31, 2012, the Corporation had no loans outstanding that were repayable upon demand or within one year or more.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Customers

The largest customer accounted for 65% of the Corporation's sales. Two customers accounted for the Corporation's total sales for the year ended December 31, 2012.

To the knowledge of the directors, none of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Corporation) had a beneficial interest in the Corporation's five largest suppliers and customers.

Suppliers

The largest supplier accounted for 8% of the Corporation's purchases. The five largest suppliers accounted for 21% of the Corporation's purchases for the year ended December 31, 2012.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In 2011, the Corporation entered into a credit facility agreement with Orient International Resources Group Limited, a non-arm's length lender, in which a loan for general working capital purposes was available of up to a maximum of \$100.0 million. The loan was interest free up to May 31, 2012. Amounts drawn in 2012 on the loan (which were subsequently repaid in the same period end) were accounted for as a related party transaction since a director of the Corporation is also the controlling shareholder of the lending company and a significant shareholder of the Corporation. In the fourth quarter of 2012, the Corporation terminated this credit facility agreement. This loan agreement constituted a continuing connected transaction exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders' approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.65(4) of the Listing Rules.

During 2010, the Corporation entered into an agreement to pay a fee for services to be rendered in connection with an initial filing of an IPO prospectus and listing. On March 1, 2012, the Corporation successfully closed its Qualifying IPO and listing on the SEHK. The service provider is a company which is controlled by a director who is a principal of a significant shareholder of the Corporation, and who also holds a senior management position with the service provider company. The advisory fee agreement was terminated prior to the listing on the SEHK and, therefore, did not constitute a connected transaction.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken by the Corporation during the year in the ordinary course of business are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements. Other than those transactions disclosed above in the section headed "Connected Transactions", none of these transactions constitutes a disclosable connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Corporation and within the knowledge of the Directors at the date of this annual report, the Corporation has maintained the prescribed public float of more than 25% of the issued share capital required under the Listing Rules during the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements were audited by Deloitte LLP, who shall be eligible for re-appointment, and a resolution to this effect will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Corporation.

On behalf of the Board

Michael J. Hibberd Co-Chairman of the Board

March 26, 2013

Songning Shen
Co-Chairman of the Board
March 26, 2013

This Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") of the financial condition and performance of Sunshine Oilsands Ltd. ("Sunshine" or the "Corporation") for the year ended December 31, 2012 is dated March 26, 2013. This MD&A should be read in conjunction with the Corporation's audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2012. All amounts and tabular amounts are stated in Canadian dollars unless indicated otherwise.

FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements in this MD&A are forward-looking statements that are, by their nature, subject to significant risks and uncertainties and the Corporation hereby cautions investors about important factors that could cause the Corporation's actual results to differ materially from those projected in a forward-looking statement. Any statements that express, or involve discussions as to expectations, beliefs, plans, objectives, assumptions or future events or performance (often, but not always, through the use of words or phrases such as "will", "expect", "anticipate", "estimate", "believe", "going forward", "ought to", "may", "seek", "should", "intend", "plan", "projection", "could", "vision", "goals", "objective", "target", "schedules" and "outlook") are not historical facts, are forward-looking and may involve estimates and assumptions and are subject to risks (including the risk factors detailed in this MD&A), uncertainties and other factors some of which are beyond the Corporation's control and which are difficult to predict. Accordingly, these factors could cause actual results or outcomes to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements.

Since actual results or outcomes could differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements, the Corporation strongly cautions investors against placing undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements. Statements relating to "reserves" or "resources" are deemed to be forward-looking statements, as they involve the implied assessment, based on estimates and assumptions that the resources and reserves described can be profitably produced in the future. Further, any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such statement is made and the Corporation undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statement or statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which such statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

All forward-looking statements in this MD&A are expressly qualified by reference to this cautionary statement.

OVERVIEW

Sunshine is one of the largest independent developers of oil sands leases by land holdings in the Athabasca oil sands region, which is located in the Province of Alberta, Canada. Sunshine has secured approximately 0.4 million hectares (approximately 1.1 million acres) of oil sands leases (equal to approximately 7% of all granted leases in this area). Its principal operating regions in the Athabasca area are at West Ells, Thickwood, Legend, Harper, Muskwa, Goffer, Pelican and Portage. Sunshine's properties are grouped into three main asset categories: clastics, carbonates and conventional heavy oil.

The Athabasca region is the most prolific oil sands region in the Province of Alberta, Canada. Canada's oil sands represent the largest oil resource found in a stable political environment located in the western hemisphere and the third largest oil resource in the world, with 169 billion barrels of recoverable resource. The Canadian oil sands comprises the largest single source of supply of oil imported into the United States.

As at December 31, 2012, the Corporation had invested \$694.6 million in oil sands leases, drilling operations, project planning, regulatory application processing and other assets. As at December 31, 2012, the Corporation had \$282.2 million in cash and cash equivalents (high yield savings and term deposits) and no debt. The Corporation has raised approximately \$1.0 billion in equity proceeds, including the proceeds from its IPO in March 2012. Through equity financings, the Corporation has secured significant investments from Premium Investment Corporation (a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation), EIG Management Company and Sinopec Century Bright Capital Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Petrochemical Corporation, otherwise known as the Sinopec Group., Orient International Resources Group Limited, China Life, Bank of China Group and Cross Strait Development Fund.

OPERATIONAL UPDATE

Sunshine is a major holder and developer of oil sands resources, with approximately 70 billion barrels of total PIIP. Total PIIP is a sum of discovered and undiscovered PIIP components. The Corporation is focused on evaluating and developing these assets with the first phase of a 10,000 barrels per day project, currently under construction at West Ells, scheduled for first steam in the third quarter of 2013. Sunshine is also progressing regulatory approvals for two additional 10,000 barrels per day (total 20,000 barrels per day) projects at Thickwood and Legend. Approvals are expected in the first half of 2013 and later in 2013, respectively. With approximately 5.1 billion barrels of contingent resources and 446 million barrels of proved plus probable ("2P") reserves, the Corporation has significant commercial development potential.

West Ells Development

As at December 31, 2012, significant progress was achieved on Sunshine's Steam Assisted Gravity Drainage ("SAGD") project at West Ells. Sunshine completed the West Ells access and spur roads, built a pipeway corridor to provide pipeline and road access from the Central Processing Facility ("CPF") to the wellpads, constructed the first wellpad, and readied the CPF site for mechanical construction. Approximately 33% of the pilings had been installed with three pile rigs active and onsite. Major equipment, including the heat recovery steam generators, free water knockouts, glycol coolers, and office modules had arrived on site. Furthermore, 82 modules and skids are currently in various fabrication phases. A production drilling rig was mobilized with Sunshine successfully drilling its first horizontal SAGD producer well pair in December. As at year end, of the 16 SAGD well pairs planned for the project, Sunshine successfully drilled ten surface, four intermediate, and two horizontal sections. Seven of eleven observation wells have been drilled.

\$202.7 million has been incurred for West Ells equipment, engineering, construction, civil works, drilling, completions and other project related expenditures. At year end, civil construction of the CPF was approximately 40% finished, with facilities engineering approximately 75% complete. With respect to capital commitments, 100% of the long lead equipment has been ordered and approximately 80% of the secondary long lead equipment was procured. Also, all Phase 1 downhole completion and production equipment has been ordered.

As at the date of this MD&A, Sunshine continues to achieve several West Ells milestones. In relation to construction progress, this includes the standing of the West Ells' Phase 1 evaporator tower without incident, delivery of the Phase 1 steam generator and installation of the site office. With respect to drilling, all eleven observation wells, five SAGD wellpairs (ten wells), and six surface sections have been drilled. As of the date of this MD&A, progress increased to approximately, 64% for the pilings, 95% for the civil construction of the CPF, 90% for the facilities general engineering, and 88% for the procurement of secondary long lead equipment.

West Ells remains on schedule and budget with funding fully secured. The total capital cost of West Ells (Phase 1 and Phase 2) remains unchanged at approximately \$468 million, excluding road construction costs. First steam for Phase 1 continues to be expected in the third quarter of 2013 with production to follow by year end or early 2014. West Ells Phase 1 is designed to produce 5,000 barrels per day of bitumen followed by an expansion for an additional 5,000 barrels per day from Phase 2 to be complete in early 2014.

Thickwood and Legend

The Thickwood 10,000 barrels per day SAGD project continued to progress through the regulatory approval process as expected, including full completion of two rounds of supplemental information requests and responses in 2012. Full regulatory approval of the project is expected in the first half of 2013. In addition, the Corporation has advanced Front End Engineering Design ("FEED") activities for the project. The Corporation is finishing environmental fieldwork and analysis to support planned significant commercial expansions in both areas.

The Legend 10,000 barrels per day SAGD project also progressed in the regulatory approval process, with responses to the initial round of supplemental information requests submitted in the third quarter of 2012. Full regulatory approval of this project is anticipated later in 2013.

Cold flow assets

The Corporation continued with the evaluation of development of its cold flow heavy oil assets. At the Muskwa project, cumulative production for the year ended December 31, 2012 was approximately 215,000 barrels, representing an average of approximately 590 barrels per day. As at December 31, 2012, 39 development wells drilled from five surface pads have produced a cumulative total of approximately 352,000 barrels since project inception.

During 2012, the Corporation continued production optimization activities at the Muskwa project through evaluation of new technologies for enhancing production and recovery, including sand clean outs, wellbore stimulation and downhole heating. In the third quarter, Sunshine received regulatory approval for the installation of downhole electrical heating at Muskwa. Since year end, field work was completed for the installation of a downhole heater in a horizontal wellbore and initial heating commenced. The Corporation is in the early stages of optimization and analysis of this process. In addition, the Corporation commenced construction of its planned pad extension to accommodate future drilling. Since Muskwa remains in the resource definition stage, the Corporation capitalizes all costs incurred to date, including operating costs net of revenues, for financial reporting purposes.

Alberta Government Initiatives

On August 22, 2012 the Government of Alberta approved the LARP to conserve land for conservation, tourism and recreation. The implementation of, and compliance with the terms of, the LARP may adversely impact Sunshine's current properties in northern Alberta, as there is the potential for specific oil sands leases to be cancelled by the government. The Corporation is currently evaluating its options including approaching the Government of Alberta for compensation of all expenditures incurred plus loss of future opportunities. The impact of LARP on the Corporation's land holdings and exploration plans is yet to be determined.

NON-IFRS FINANCIAL MEASURES

This MD&A includes references to financial measures commonly used in the oil and natural gas industry, such as cash flow from operations. These financial measures are not defined by IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and therefore are referred to as non-IFRS measures. The non-IFRS measures used by the Corporation may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other companies. The Corporation uses these non-IFRS measures to help evaluate its performance. Management uses cash flow from operations to measure the Corporation's ability to generate funds to finance capital expenditures and repay debt.

These non-IFRS measures should not be considered as an alternative to or more meaningful than net income or net cash provided by operating activities, as determined in accordance with IFRS. The data is intended to provide additional information and should not be considered in isolation or as substitute for measures of performances prepared in accordance with IFRS. The non-IFRS measure of cash flow from operations can be reconciled to net cash provided by operating activities, as determined in accordance with IFRS.

OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following table summarizes selected financial information of the Corporation for the periods presented:

A CONTRACTOR OF THE CONTRACTOR	For the three months ended December 31,		For the year ended December 31,		
	2012 (\$000)	2011 (\$000)	2012 (\$000)	2011 (\$000)	
Financial Highlights					
Other income	\$ 1,032	\$ 257	\$ 12,228	\$ 1,625	
Expensed portion of IPO costs		1,852	16,258	3,547	
Fair value of warrants	- 1	(11,791)	- 1	20,298	
Finance costs	2,859	7,029	20,237	25,470	
Net loss	9,196	2,473	61,728	67,392	
Basic and diluted loss per share	0.00	0.00	0.02	0.05	
Expenditures on exploration and evaluation	64,832	31,622	229,382	155,561	

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation had a net loss of \$61.7 million compared to a net loss of \$67.4 million in 2011. The net loss in the year ended December 31, 2012 was primarily attributable to general administration costs of \$23.8 million, finance costs of \$20.2 million, the expensed portion of IPO costs of \$16.3 million and \$13.4 million for share-based payment expense compared to finance costs of \$25.5 million, fair value loss on warrants of \$20.3 million, general administration costs and legal expense of \$12.8 million, \$8.1 million for share-based payment expense and expensed portion of IPO costs of \$3.5 million for the same period in 2011.

The Corporation recognized a net loss for the three months ended December 31, 2012 of \$9.2 million compared to \$2.5 million for the same period in 2011. For the three month period ended December 31, 2012, the net loss was primarily attributable to general administration costs and legal expense of \$4.6 million, which included \$2.0 million for salaries, consulting and benefits and \$2.6 million for legal, audit, rent and other costs for travel and related annual filing and printing costs, share-based payments of \$2.7 million and finance costs of \$2.9 million partially offset by interest income of \$1.0 million. For the same period in 2011, the net loss was attributable to \$7.0 million of finance costs related primarily to the share repurchase obligation, \$3.3 million in general administration costs, which included \$1.7 million for salaries, consulting and benefits and \$1.6 million of legal, audit, rent and other costs for travel costs, \$2.3 million of share-based payments, and \$1.9 million for expensed portion of IPO costs offset by \$11.8 million mark to market gain on warrants and \$0.3 million of interest income.

	As at December 31,		
	2012	2011	
	(\$000)	(\$000)	
Financial Position			
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 282,231	\$ 84,957	
Total assets	979,726	475,714	
Total liabilities	108,650	327,127	

The Corporation had a combined cash and short-term investment balance of \$282.2 million as at December 31, 2012 compared to a combined cash and short-term investment balance of \$85.0 million as at December 31, 2011. For the year ended December 31, 2012, the increase in these balances was due primarily to gross proceeds received from the Corporation's IPO of approximately \$570 million (HK\$4.5 billion) for the issuance of 923,299,500 shares, partially offset by approximately \$230 million in capital investments, \$68.9 million for warrant settlement costs, \$38.7 million for share repurchases and \$25.1 million for share issue costs related to the IPO.

The following table summarizes the Corporation's cash flow used in operations:

	For the three	e months	For the year		
_	ended Dece	mber 31,	ended December 31,		
	2012 2011		2012	2011	
&	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	
Loss before income taxes	\$ (9,196)	\$ (2,460)	\$ (61,728)	\$ (68,760)	
Addback/Deduct				Karal Barrel	
Expense portion of IPO costs	_	1,852	10,863	3,547	
Fair value adjustment on warrants	_	(11,791)	— }	20,298	
Finance costs	2,859	7,029	20,237	25,470	
Unrealized foreign exchange loss/ (gain)	72	<u> </u>	21		
Interest income	(987)	(257)	(3,229)	(1,625)	
Depreciation	91	53	290	186	
Share-based payment expense	2,705	2,277	13,384	8,075	
Cash flow used in operations	\$ (4,456)	\$ (3,297)	\$ (20,162)	\$ (12,809)	

This non-IFRS measurement is intended to provide additional information and should not be considered in isolation or as substitute for measures of performances prepared in accordance with IFRS. The above table reconciles the non-IFRS measurements "Cash flow used in operations" from "Net loss for the period", the nearest IFRS measure. Cash flow used in operations is defined as net loss as reported, addback or deduct non-cash items including expensed portion of IPO costs, fair value adjustment on warrants, finance costs, share-based payments, unrealized portion of foreign exchange adjustments, depreciation and interest income.

Cash flow used in operations in the year ended December 31, 2012 totaled \$20.2 million compared to \$12.8 million for the same period in 2011. For the three month period ended December 31, 2012, cash flow used in operations totaled \$4.5 million compared to \$3.3 million for the last quarter of 2011. The change resulted from higher general administration costs in 2012 compared to 2011. Due to the nature of its business and stage of development, cash flow used in operations is a small portion of the Corporation's total cash needs and expenditures.

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS

The following table summarizes selected unaudited financial information for the Corporation for the eight preceding quarters:

	Q4 2012	Q3 2012	Q2 2012	Q1 2012	Q4 2011	Q3 2011	Q2 2011	Q1 2011
		(\$000 except for per share amounts)						
Other income	\$ 1,032	\$ 1,142	\$ 2,992	\$ 7,061	\$ 257	\$ 425	\$ 516	\$ 426
Expense portion of IPO costs	_	_	44	16,213	1,852	1,695	_	_
Fair value adjustment on warrants	_	_	_	_	(11,791)	(2,440)	(2,255)	36,784
Finance costs	2,859	215	66	17,098	7,029	6,278	46,661	(34,498)
Net loss for the period	9,196	15,531	4,673	32,331	2,473	10,229	8,481	46,209
Loss per share	0.00	0.00	_	0.02	0.01	0.01	0.03	0.00
Exploration and evaluation expenditures	64,832	32,305	89,949	42,296	31,622	17,906	62,407	43,626

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Finance Expense

Finance cost on share repurchase obligation
Expensed portion of share issue costs
Finance cost on related party loan
Finance costs on credit facility
Unwinding of discounts on provisions
Less: Amounts capitalized in exploration and
evaluation assets

For the three months			For the year			
	ended Dec	cember 31,	ended December 31,			
	2012	2011	2012	2011		
	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)		
	\$ —	\$ 9,620	\$ 5,864	\$ 32,132		
	_	_	13,012	<u> </u>		
	_	_	266	_		
	2,449	1 A 1	2,449			
	410	36	761	129		
_		(2,627)	(2,115)	(6,791)		
	\$ 2,859	\$ 7,029	\$ 20,237	\$ 25,470		
12		Description was a second of the		Notice of the property of the second		

Finance expense for the three month period ended December 31, 2012 decreased by \$4.1 million to \$2.9 million from \$7.0 million for the same period in 2011, primarily due to the extinguishment of the share repurchase obligation. For the three months ended December 31, 2011, the Corporation recognized \$9.6 million in total for non-cash finance costs on the share repurchase obligation, less \$2.6 million which was capitalized, resulting in net finance expense of \$7.0 million. For the three months ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation recorded \$2.5 million in finance fees and costs in relation to the closing of the credit facility. For the three months ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation recorded \$0.4 million in accretion for its decommissioning liability compared to \$36,000 for the same period in 2011.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, total finance expense decreased by \$5.3 million to \$20.2 million from \$25.5 million expensed in the same period in 2011, primarily due to non-cash finance costs attributable to the share repurchase obligation, which were settled upon the SEHK listing. For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation recorded finance costs of \$5.9 million in total on the share repurchase obligation and capitalized \$2.1 million to exploration and evaluation assets resulting in net finance expense of \$3.8 million compared to finance costs of \$32.1 million, offset by \$6.8 million capitalized and net finance expense (in respect of the share repurchase obligation) of \$25.3 million, respectively, for the same period in 2011.

The finance cost associated with the redeemable shares is a result of the accounting treatment of these shares. In conjunction with an equity financing completed in February 2011, common shares were issued to subscribers whereby a put right ("Share Redemption Rights") was agreed to pursuant to the terms and conditions of the subscription agreements ("Subscription Agreements"). According to the Share Redemption Rights, the subscribers, in specific circumstances and at the option of the subscribers, could have required the Corporation to repurchase, for cancellation, all common shares issued under the Subscription Agreements at a redemption price equivalent to the subscription price plus a 15% annual rate of return, compounded annually, if the Corporation did not complete a Qualifying IPO by December 31, 2013. As a consequence, the put right in the Subscription Agreements resulted in these shares being presented as financial liabilities in the Corporation's statement of financial position in 2011. The redeemable shares were accounted for using amortized cost and the effective interest on the redeemable shares for the period was included in finance expense up to March 1, 2012, the date on which the put right was extinguished with the closing of the Qualifying IPO and listing on the SEHK.

Pursuant to this event, immediately prior to the IPO closing and listing, the redeemable Class "B" common shares converted to Class "A" common shares and the redemption rights of all redeemable common shares were removed with the completion of the Qualifying IPO and listing. Total transaction costs of \$17.8 million, which were netted against the share repurchase obligation, included cash fees paid of \$11.4 million and \$6.4 million assigned as fair value of fee warrants issued to finders. The carrying value of these transaction costs was allocated to share issue costs for \$4.7 million. The remainder of \$13.0 million was included in finance costs as the expensed portion of share issue costs for the year ended December 31, 2012.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation drew and repaid \$30.0 million under an available \$100.0 million credit facility agreement (the "Loan Agreement") with a significant shareholder of the Corporation. The Loan Agreement was signed in the third quarter of 2011 with an effective date of October 31, 2011. The loan was classified as a financial liability and accounted for as other liabilities at amortized cost.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, total non-cash finance costs of \$266,090 were recognized, of which \$236,873 was capitalized in exploration and evaluation assets with the remaining \$29,217 expensed in finance costs. Refer to Section: "Transactions with related parties" for terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement.

In October 2012, the Corporation entered into a \$200 million credit facility agreement (the "Credit Facility") with a group of financial institutions. In conjunction with the closing of the Credit Facility, the Corporation agreed to pay related financing costs which totaled \$2.0 million and incurred \$0.5 million in related expenses.

Accretion for the decommissioning obligation was \$0.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$0.1 million in the same period 2011.

1,750

\$6,104

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

	2012			2011	
	(\$000)			(\$000)	
General and			General and		
Administrative	Capitalized		Administrative	Capitalized	
Costs	portion	Expensed	Costs	portion	Expensed
\$ 3,825	\$ 1,875	\$ 1,950	\$ 3,351	\$ 1,650	\$ 1,701
529	318	211	586	309	277

Three months ended December 31,

Salaries, consulting and benefits Rent Other

Voor anded	Docombor 21

1,558

\$ 5,495

383

\$ 2,342

1,175

\$3,153

1,465

\$3,626

	2012			2011	
	(\$000)			(\$000)	
General and			General and		
Administrative	Capitalized		Administrative	Capitalized	
Costs	portion	Expensed	Costs	portion	Expensed
\$ 24,290	\$ 7,951	\$ 16,339	\$ 13,631	\$ 6,300	\$ 7,331
2,108	1,164	944	1,288	677	611
5,981	1,046	4,935	4,473	858	3,615
\$ 32,379	\$ 10,161	\$ 22,218	\$ 19,392	\$ 7,835	\$ 11,557

Salaries, consulting and benefits Rent Other

General and administrative expense, which includes salaries, consulting and benefits, rent, and other general administrative costs, for the three month period ended December 31, 2012 increased by \$0.4 million to \$3.6 million compared to \$3.2 million for the same period in 2011. For the year ended December 31, 2012, these increased by \$10.6 million to \$22.2 million compared with \$11.6 million for the same period in 2011.

285

\$ 2,478

The increase in expense is primarily the result of bonus payments, and overall growth in Sunshine's professional staff and office costs to support the operation and development of our oil sands assets. The Corporation's headcount (including employees and consultants) grew from 122 as of December 31, 2011 to 139 as at December 31, 2012. During the three months and year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation capitalized salaries, consulting and benefits, rent and other general administrative costs related to capital investment of \$2.5 million and \$10.2 million, respectively, compared to \$2.3 million and \$7.8 million, respectively, for the same periods in 2011.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

E a m Ala a	41		and all all	D 04	
For the	tnree	months	enaea	December 31.	

	For the three months ended December 31,					
		2012			2011	
	General and			General and		
	Administrative	Capitalized		Administrative	Capitalized	
	Costs	portion	Expensed	Costs	portion	Expensed
Share-based payment expense - \$000	\$ 4,275	\$ 1,570	\$ 2,705	\$ 3,847	\$ 1,570	\$ 2,277
			For the year en	ded December 31,		
		2012			2011	
	General and			General and		
	Administrative	Capitalized		Administrative	Capitalized	
	7 tallillioti ati vo			,	o apitanzo a	
	Costs	portion	Expensed	Costs	portion	Expensed

The fair value of share-based payments associated with the granting of stock options and preferred shares is recognized by the Corporation in its consolidated financial statements. Fair value is determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Share-based compensation expense for the three months and year ended December 31, 2012 was \$2.7 million and \$13.4 million, respectively, compared to \$2.3 million and \$8.1 million for the three months and year ended December 31, 2011, respectively. The increase in share-based payment expense is primarily the result of the Black-Scholes valuations for the Corporation's stock options granted during the year ended December 31, 2012. The Corporation capitalizes a portion of the share-based compensation expense using the same methodology associated with capitalized salaries and benefits. For the three months and year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation capitalized \$1.6 million and \$7.1 million, respectively, of share-based payments to exploration and evaluation assets compared to \$1.6 million and \$7.2 million, respectively, for the same periods in 2011.

OTHER INCOME

Foreign exchange gain - realized Foreign exchange gain - unrealized Interest income from term deposits

Three months e	nded December 31,	Year ended [December 31,
2012	2011	2012	2011
(\$000	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)
\$ 118	\$ —	\$ 9,020	\$ —
(72	-	(21)	_
986	257	3,229	1,625
\$ 1,032	\$ 257	\$ 12,228	\$ 1,625

Other income for the three months and year ended December 31, 2012 increased by \$0.7 million to \$1.0 million compared to \$0.3 million and increased by \$10.6 million to \$12.2 million compared to \$1.6 million, respectively, for the same periods in 2011. For the year ended December 31, 2012, the increase was primarily due to earned interest income of \$3.2 million and a foreign exchange gain of \$9.0 million. For the three months ended December 31, 2012, \$1.0 million was earned in interest income compared to \$0.3 million for the same period in 2011. Interest income will decline as cash balances are invested in capital projects.

FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENT ON WARRANTS

For the three month period ended December 31, 2011, a mark to market gain on warrants of \$11.8 million was recognized compared to \$Nil for the same period of 2012. A mark to market loss on warrants of \$20.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 was recorded compared to \$Nil for the year ended December 31, 2012. All warrants were repurchased and cancelled on January 4, 2012.

EXPENSED PORTION OF IPO COSTS

The expensed portion of IPO costs was \$NiI and \$16.3 million in the three months ended and year ended December 31, 2012, respectively, compared to \$1.9 million and \$3.5 million for the three months and year ended December 31, 2011, respectively. For 2012, the expense is comprised of \$5.3 million for bonus payments and \$11.0 million for IPO related costs such as legal and audit fees.

DEPRECIATION

Depreciation expense increased by approximately \$38,000 to approximately \$91,000 for the three month period ended December 31, 2012. This compared to depreciation expense of approximately \$51,000 for the same period in 2011. For the year ended December 31, 2012, depreciation expense was \$0.3 million compared to \$0.2 million for the same period in 2011. The increase was primarily due to increased computer equipment purchases.

INCOME TAXES

The Corporation's deferred income taxes for both the three months and year ended December 31, 2012 were \$Nil compared to approximately \$13,000 and \$1.4 million for the same periods in 2011, respectively. The change in deferred income taxes in 2012 compared to 2011 relates primarily to unrecognized tax losses. Recognition of tax losses is based on the Corporation's consideration of its internal development plan for its asset base and the assumption as to whether or not these tax losses will be utilized before their expiry dates. At December 31, 2012, the Corporation had total tax deductions of \$746.4 million, with unrecognized tax losses starting to expire in 2027.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES¹

Working capital (surplus)/deficiency Share repurchase obligation Shareholders' equity

2012	2011
(\$000)	(\$000)
A /A / = / = / 1	
\$ (215,471)	\$ 7,095
_	224,362
871,076	148,587
	1
\$ 655,605	\$ 380,044
	100077.7

Excludes \$200 million Credit Facility

Working capital surplus of \$215.5 million is comprised of \$282.2 million of cash and cash equivalents, offset by a non-cash working capital deficiency of \$66.7 million. With the close of its IPO and listing on March 1, 2012 on the SEHK, the Corporation has sufficient capital to go beyond its current obligations and does not anticipate raising new equity capital in the near future.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation signed a \$200 million Credit Facility with a syndicate of financial institutions. The amount available for drawdown is subject to a sufficient funding requirement which is defined as having on-hand funding equal to or exceeding the sum of the remaining costs to complete the Phase 1 and Phase 2 West Ells project plus a contingency amount equal to 20% of remaining costs to complete. In conjunction with the closing of the Credit Facility, the Corporation terminated its \$100 million loan agreement with a significant shareholder. Refer to Section: "Transactions with related parties" for terms and conditions of the loan agreement.

Management believes its capital resources and credit facility and its ability to manage cash flow and working capital levels will allow the Corporation to meet its current and future obligations and to fund the development of its capital program and the other needs of the business for at least the next 12 months. However, no assurance can be given that this will be the case or that future sources of capital will be available.

The Corporation is exposed to risks arising from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and the volatility of those rates. This exposure primarily relates to certain expenditure commitments, deposits, accounts receivable and accounts payable which are denominated in US dollars and/or HK dollars. The Corporation manages this risk by monitoring foreign exchange rates and evaluating their effects on using Canadian or U.S. vendors as well as timing of transactions. Thus, exchange rate fluctuations can affect the fair value of future cash flows.

The Corporation had no forward exchange rate contracts in place as at or during the year ended December 31, 2012. If exchange rates to convert from HK dollars to Canadian dollars had been \$0.10 higher or lower with all other variables held constant, foreign cash held at December 31, 2012 would have been impacted by approximately \$14,000. At December 31, 2012, the Corporation held HK\$8.2 million or \$1.1 million using the December 31, 2012 exchange rate of 7.7905 as cash in the Corporation's Hong Kong bank account.

The Corporation's \$282.2 million in cash and cash equivalents as at December 31, 2012, are held in accounts with a diversified group of highly rated third party financial institutions and consist of invested cash and cash in the Corporation's operating accounts. The cash equivalents portion is invested in high yield savings and high grade liquid term deposits. To date, the Corporation has experienced no loss or lack of access to its cash in operating accounts, invested cash or cash equivalents. However, the Corporation can provide no assurance that access to its invested cash and cash equivalents will not be affected by adverse conditions in the financial markets. While the Corporation monitors the cash balances in its operating and investment accounts and adjusts the cash balances as appropriate, these cash balances could be affected if the underlying financial institutions or corporations fail or are subject to other adverse conditions in the financial markets.

CASH FLOWS SUMMARY

Cash generated by/(used in) operating activities
Cash used in investing activities Cash (used in)/generated by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents held in foreign currency
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

	For the three	months	For the year			
	ended Decem	ber 31,	ended December 31,			
	2012	2011	2012	2011		
	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)		
	\$ (3,570)	\$ (3,467)	\$ (18,581)	\$ (13,779)		
	(64,113)	(31,513)	(226,893)	(154,366)		
	(5,659)	(2,646)	442,769	211,562		
_	(72)		(21)			
	(73,414)	(37,626)	197,274	43,417		
_	355,645	122,583	84,957	41,540		
	\$ 282,231	\$ 84,957	\$ 282,231	\$ 84,957		
		W-7-7-7-7-8	- N	7/2 3014 37/2 34(0) 2 3 7		

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash flow used in operating activities was \$3.6 million for the three months ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$3.5 million for the same period 2011 due to movements in working capital of \$0.9 million for the fourth quarter of 2012 compared to \$0.2 million for the same period 2011.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, cash flow used from operating activities increased by \$4.8 million to \$18.6 million compared to \$13.8 million for the same period in 2011. The change was due to higher general administration costs related to bonus payments and movements in working capital of \$1.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$0.9 million for the same period in 2011.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net cash used for investing activities for the three months and year ended December 31, 2012 increased to \$64.1 million and \$226.9 million, respectively, compared to \$31.5 million and \$154.4 million, respectively, for the same periods in 2011. This increase for the three months and year ended December 31, 2012, of \$32.6 million and \$72.5 million, respectively, is attributed to the completion of the 2011/2012 capital program investing activities for evaluation assets and includes changes in non-cash working capital balances period over period. The changes in non-cash working capital balances were \$17.8 million and \$37.4 million compared to \$37.4 million and \$10.8 million for the three months and year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The remainder of the increase in investing activities relates to interest income earned of \$1.0 million and \$3.2 million for the three months ended and year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$0.3 million and \$1.6 million earned in the same periods in 2011.

Capital investment for the capital program 2011/2012 focused on initial construction, procurement of major equipment and related capital costs for the first phase of the West Ells project, the completion of construction of the West Ells access road, resource delineation and expenditures related to regulatory advancement for projects at Thickwood and Legend.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Financing activities for the three month period ended December 31, 2012 consisted of the repurchase of 18.2 million common shares at a weighted average cost of \$0.39 per common share, for total consideration of \$7.1 million, offset by \$3.6 million received for stock option exercises. In the fourth quarter 2012, the Corporation incurred \$2.0 million in finance costs with respect to the closing of the Credit Facility and \$0.2 million was paid in relation to the Corporation's TSX listing. Net cash used from financing activities for the three month period ended December 31, 2012 was \$5.7 million.

Financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2012 consisted of gross proceeds received from the IPO approximating \$577.9 million, including \$8.1 million for stock option exercises. Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2012, also included using \$68.9 million for the payment to repurchase and cancel all warrants issued and outstanding, \$38.7 million for the repurchase of common shares and \$26.0 million for share issue costs, which included a payment of \$0.4 million for an IPO advisory fee. In addition, the Corporation paid \$2.5 million in finance fees and expenses for the closing of the Credit Facility with a syndicate of financial institutions.

During the first quarter of 2012, the Corporation drew and repaid \$30.0 million on its \$100 million loan agreement held with Orient International Resources Group Limited. In the fourth quarter 2012, the Corporation signed a \$200 million Credit Facility with a syndicate of financial institutions. The Credit Facility matures on October 10, 2013 and is extendable at the lenders' discretion. The Credit Facility bears interest at a floating rate based on Canadian dollar prime rate, US dollar base rate, bankers' acceptances or LIBOR plus a credit spread above the reference rate. Undrawn amounts are subject to a standby fee of 100 basis points per annum. The Credit Facility is secured by all assets of the Corporation. The amount available for drawdown is subject to a sufficient funding requirement which is defined as having on-hand funding equal to or exceeding the sum of the remaining costs to complete the Phase 1 and Phase 2 West Ells project plus a contingency amount equal to 20% of remaining costs to complete. The Credit Facility is subject to various non-financial covenants including, amount other things, restrictions on issuing debt, making investments or loans, paying dividends, altering the nature of the business and undertaking corporate transactions. The Credit Facility also has certain financial covenants.

In conjunction with the closing of the above Credit Facility, the Corporation terminated its \$100 million loan agreement with a significant shareholder (Orient Group). Refer to Section: "Transactions with related parties" for terms and conditions of the loan agreement.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMITMENTS

The information presented in the table below reflects management's estimate of the contractual maturities of the Corporation's obligations. These maturities may differ significantly from the actual maturities of these obligations. As at December 31, 2012, the Corporation's commitments are as follows:

	Due within the next 12 months (\$000)	Due in the next 2 to 5 years (\$000)	Over 5 years (\$000)
Drilling and other equipment and contracts	\$ 173,815	\$ <i>-</i>	\$ <i>-</i>
Lease rentals	1,840	7,225	10,593
Office leases	2,155	8,494	2,278
	\$ 177,810	\$ 15,719	\$ 12,871

SHARES OUTSTANDING

As at March 26, 2013, the Corporation had the following shares issued and outstanding:

 Class "A" common shares
 2,865,138,161

 Class "G" preferred shares
 58,890,000

 Class "H" preferred shares
 22,200,000

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Balances and transactions between the Corporation and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation. The Corporation had related party transactions with the following companies related by way of directors or shareholders in common:

- Orient International Resources Group Limited and its affiliated companies ("Orient Group") is a private group of companies
 controlled by Mr. Hok Ming Tseung, a significant shareholder and director of the Corporation. At December 31, 2012, Orient
 Group owned approximately 9.9% of the outstanding shares of the Corporation. In 2010 through to 2012, Orient Group provided a
 credit facility agreement to the Corporation and provided advisory services with respect to various IPO related matters and other
 strategic topics.
- MJH Services Ltd. ("MJH Services") is a private company wholly owned by one of Sunshine's Co-Chairmen of the Board of Directors and an Executive Director. MJH Services provides overall operational services to the Corporation.
- 1226591 Alberta Inc. ("1226591 Inc.") is private company wholly owned by one of Sunshine's Co-Chairmen of the Board of Directors and an Executive Director. 1226591 Inc. provides overall operational services to the Corporation.
- McCarthy Tetrault LLP is a law firm in which a director of the Corporation is a partner. McCarthy's provides legal counsel to the Corporation.

Details of transactions between the Corporation and its related parties are disclosed below.

Advisory Fee Agreement (the "Agreement")

During 2010, the Corporation entered into the Agreement with Orient Group, in which the Corporation agreed to pay a fee for services to be rendered in connection with an initial filing of an IPO prospectus and listing. The fee, equal to 0.75% of the number of common shares issued and outstanding, could at the time of the initial filing of an IPO be settled at the option of the Corporation by either issuing up to 95% of the fee due in common shares plus cash or 100% of the fee due in cash. The term of the Agreement had a January 20, 2013 expiry date. On March 1, 2012, the Corporation successfully closed its Qualifying IPO and listing on the SEHK. Pursuant to this event, the obligation owing for the advisory fee was recognized and 13,566,395 common shares were issued for \$8.4 million and cash fee of \$440,933 was paid. Since the terms have been fulfilled, the Agreement has terminated. The service provider, Orient Group, is a company which is controlled by a director who is a principal of a significant shareholder of the Corporation.

Related Party Loan Agreement

In 2011, the Corporation entered into a Loan Agreement with Orient Group, a non-arm's length lender. Amounts drawn on the Loan Agreement were accounted for as a related party transaction since a director of the Corporation is also the controlling shareholder of the lending company. During the first quarter of 2012, the Corporation drew \$30.0 million. For the three months and year ended December 31, 2012, total non-cash finance costs were \$Nil and \$266,090, respectively, of which \$Nil and \$29,217, respectively, was expensed and \$Nil and \$236,873, respectively, was capitalized as the funds are directly attributable to the development of the Corporation's qualifying assets. Upon repayment of the outstanding balance owing on this Loan Agreement, \$266,090 was recorded to Other Reserve due to the related party nature of this transaction. In conjunction with the closing of the Credit Facility (held by with a syndicate of financial institutions), the Corporation terminated its Loan Agreement.

The Corporation incurred consulting fees, share-based compensation and performance related incentive payments to MJH Services totaling \$6.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$2.5 million for the same period in 2011.

The Corporation incurred consulting fees, share-based compensation and performance related incentive payments to 1226591 Inc. totaling \$6.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$2.5 million for the same period in 2011.

The Corporation entered into the following trading transactions with McCarthy Tetrault LLP:

	Three months end	ded December 31,	Year ended December 31,	
	2012	2011	2012	2011
	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)
Other assets ¹	\$ —	\$ 244	\$ —	\$ 867
Share issue costs			271	115
	<u> </u>	\$ 244	\$ 271	\$ 982
Legal expense	\$ 270	\$ 115	\$ 398	\$ 291
Expense portion of IPO costs			551	
	\$ 270	\$ 115	\$ 949	\$ 291

^{1.} Other assets consisted of IPO financing costs before allocation expense.

The following balances were outstanding and included in trade and other payables for McCarthy Tetrault LLP at the end of the reporting period:

2012	2011
(\$000)	(\$000)
\$ 136	\$ 363
	Ψ σσσ

Legal

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received. No expense was recognised in the current or prior periods for bad or doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related parties.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

At December 31, 2012, the Corporation did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS ISSUED BUT NOT YET ADOPTED

The International Accounting Standard Board (the "IASB") issued a number of new and revised International Accounting Standards ("IASS"), International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs"), amendments and related Interpretations ("IFRICs") (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "New IFRSs") which are effective for the Corporation's financial period beginning on January 1, 2013. At the date of this report, the IASB has not issued any new or revised standards, amendments and interpretations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Corporation's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving estimations, that management has made in the process of applying the Corporation's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Oil and gas reserves

The process of estimating quantities of reserves is inherently uncertain and complex. It requires significant judgments and decisions based on available geological, geophysical, engineering and economic data. These estimates may change substantially as additional data from ongoing development activities and production performance becomes available and as economic conditions impacting oil and gas prices and costs change. Reserve estimates are based on, among other things, current production forecasts, prices, cost estimations and economic conditions.

Reserve estimates are critical to many accounting estimates including:

- determining whether or not an exploratory well has found economically recoverable reserves. Such determinations involve
 the commitment of additional capital to develop the field based on current estimates of production forecasts, prices and other
 economic conditions;
- calculating unit-of-production depletion rates. Proved plus probable reserves are used to determine rates that are applied to each unit-of-production in calculating depletion expense; and
- assessing development and production assets for impairment. Estimated future net cash flows used to assess impairment of the Corporation's development and production assets are determined using proved and probable reserves.

Independent qualified reserves evaluators prepare reserve estimates for each property at least annually and issue a report thereon. The reserve estimates are reviewed by the Corporation's engineers and operational management familiar with the property.

Bitumen Reserves

The estimation of reserves involves the exercise of judgment. Forecasts are based on engineering data, estimated future prices, expected future rates of production and the timing of future capital expenditures, all of which are subject to many uncertainties and interpretations. The Corporation expects that over time its reserves estimates will be revised either upward or downward based on updated information such as the results of future drilling, testing and production. Reserve estimates can have a significant impact on net earnings, as they are a key component in the calculation of depletion and depreciation and for determining potential asset impairment. For example, a revision to the proved reserves estimates would result in a higher or lower depletion and depreciation charge to net earnings. Downward revisions to reserve estimates may also result in an impairment of oil sands property, plant and equipment carrying amounts.

Recoverability of exploration and evaluation costs

Exploration and Evaluation costs ("E&E") are capitalized as exploration and evaluation assets and are assessed for impairment when circumstances suggest that the carrying amount may exceed its recoverable value. This assessment involves judgment as to: (i) the likely future commerciality of the asset and when such commerciality should be determined; (ii) future revenues based on forecasted oil and gas prices; (iii) future development costs and production expenses; (iv) the discount rate to be applied to such revenues and costs for the purpose of deriving a recoverable value, and (v) potential value to future E&E activities of any geological and geographical data acquired.

Decommissioning costs

A provision is required to be recognised for the future retirement obligations associated with the Corporation's exploration and valuation assets. The decommissioning provision is based on estimated costs, taking into account the anticipated method and extent of restoration consistent with legal, regulatory and constructive requirements, technological advances and the possible use of the site. Since these estimates are specific to the sites involved, there are many individual assumptions underlying the amount provided. These individual assumptions can be subject to change based on actual experience and a change in one or more of these assumptions could result in a materially different amount.

Share repurchase obligation

The Corporation had a share repurchase obligation pursuant to the accounting treatment required under IAS 32. In order to calculate a value for the share repurchase obligation, the effective interest method was applied which is based on estimates and assumptions to determine the effective interest rate.

Share-based payments

The Corporation recognises compensation expense on options, preferred shares and stock appreciation rights ("SARs"), if granted. Compensation expense is based on the estimated fair value of each option, preferred share and stock appreciation rights at its grant date, the estimation of which requires management to make assumptions about future volatility of the Corporation's stock price, future interest rates and the timing with respect to exercise of the options. The effects of a change in one or more of these variables could result in a materially different fair value.

Deferred income taxes

The calculation of deferred income taxes is based on a number of assumptions, including estimating the future periods in which temporary differences, tax losses and other tax credits will reverse. Tax interpretations, regulations, and legislation in the various jurisdictions in which the Corporation and its subsidiaries operate are subject to change.

RISK FACTORS

The business of resource exploration, development and extraction involves a high degree of risk. Material risks and uncertainties affecting the Corporation, their potential impact and the Corporation's principal risk management strategies are substantially unchanged from those disclosed in the Corporation's MD&A for the year ended December 31, 2011. Many of these risks are beyond the control of the Corporation. These risk factors are described in the 2012 annual information form available at the Corporation's website, www.sunshineoilsands.com, the website of the SEHK, www.hkexnews.hk and at www.sedar.com.

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Corporation's Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") and Chief Financial Officer ("CFO") have designed, or caused to be designed under their supervision, disclosure controls and procedures to provide reasonable assurance that: (i) material information relating to the Corporation is made known to the Corporation's CEO and CFO by others, particularly during the period in which the annual filings are being prepared; and (ii) information required to be disclosed by the Corporation in its annual filings, interim filings or other reports filed or submitted by it under securities legislation is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time period specified in securities legislation. Such officers have evaluated, or caused to be evaluated under their supervision, the effectiveness of the Corporation's disclosure controls and procedures at the financial year end of the company and have concluded that the Corporation's disclosure controls and procedures are effective at the financial year end of the company for the foregoing purposes. There was no change in the Corporation's internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the most recently completed quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Corporation's internal controls over financial reporting.

INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The CEO and CFO have designed, or caused to be designed under their supervision, internal controls over financial reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of the Corporation's financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with IFRS. Such officers have evaluated, or caused to be evaluated under their supervision, the effectiveness of the Corporation's internal controls over financial reporting at the financial year end of the company and concluded that the Corporation's internal controls over financial reporting are effective at the financial year end of the company for the foregoing purpose.

No material changes in the Corporation's internal controls over financial reporting were identified during the year ended December 31, 2012 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Corporation's internal controls over financial reporting. It should be noted that a control system, including the Corporation's disclosure and internal controls and procedures, no matter how well conceived, can provide only reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system will be met and it should not be expected that the disclosure and internal controls and procedures will prevent all errors or fraud. In reaching a reasonable level of assurance, management necessarily is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost/benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

ADDITIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE INFORMATION

Additional information required by the SEHK and not shown elsewhere in this announcement is as follows:



CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE (THE "CODE")

The Corporation is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance. The Corporation recognizes that corporate governance practices are fundamental to the effective and transparent operation of a company and its ability to protect the rights of its shareholders and enhance shareholder value.

Since the Corporation became a publicly listed company during the reporting period on March 1, 2012, the Corporation confirms that the Code was complied with following its public listing, save that the Corporation has not entered into formal letters of appointment with its directors and therefore will deviate from Code Provision D.1.4 of the Code. The Corporation will deviate from Code Provision D.1.4 of the Code since each of the Directors will be appointed on an annual basis at each annual general meeting, which is consistent with market practice in Canada.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED COMPANIES (THE "MODEL CODE")

The Corporation confirms that it complied with the Model Code following its public listing.

The Corporation adopted policies regarding directors' securities transactions in its Corporate Disclosure and Trading Policy that has terms that are no less exacting than those set out in the Model Code of Appendix 10 of the rules governing the listing of securities on the SEHK.

The Board of Directors confirms that all the Directors of the Corporation have complied with the required policies in the Corporate Disclosure and Trading Policy throughout the year ended December 31, 2012.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SUNSHINE'S LISTED SECURITIES

Class "A" Common Shares

On March 1, 2012, the Corporation successfully closed a Qualifying IPO on the SEHK, issuing 923,299,500 shares at HK\$4.86 per share, raising gross proceeds of HK\$4.5 billion (approximately \$570 million). Pursuant to this event, the Corporation recognized an advisory fee owing for HK\$69.4 million (approximately \$8.8 million). The obligation was settled through the issuance of 13,566,395 common shares for \$8.4 million and cash paid of \$0.4 million.

Immediately prior to the IPO closing and listing, the redeemable Class "B" common shares converted to common shares and the redemption rights of all redeemable common shares were removed with the completion of the Qualifying IPO and listing. In addition, the Corporation's share repurchase obligation was extinguished and 433,884,300 common shares were reclassified to shareholders' equity.

During the three month period and year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation repurchased 18,150,000 and 85,091,500 common shares at a weighted average price per common share of HK\$3.06 (\$0.39) and HK\$3.43 (\$0.46), for total consideration of \$7.1 million and \$38.7 million, respectively. Of the total amount repurchased, all common shares were cancelled as at December 31, 2012. Pursuant to Rule 10.06 4(b) of the Listing Rules for the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, these repurchases can be broken down as follows: 18,150,000 common shares repurchased at a weighted average price per common share of HK\$3.06 (\$0.39) in October, 43,022,000 common shares repurchased at a weighted average price per common share of HK\$3.11 (\$0.39) in September and 23,919,500 common shares repurchased at a weighted average price per common share of HK\$4.65 (\$0.62) in June.

During the three months ended and year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation issued 414,000 and 1,450,800 common shares for \$450 and \$1,850, respectively, upon conversion of Class "G" preferred shares.

During the three months ended and year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation issued 23,459,000 and 74,432,426 common shares for \$3.6 million and \$8.1 million, respectively, upon exercise of pre-IPO stock options. In connection with this issuance, \$1.4 million and \$3.1 million, respectively, was transferred from share option reserve to Class "A" common shares.

Class "G" Preferred Shares

For the three months ended and year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation issued Nil and 830,000 Class "G" preferred shares, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2012, 900,000 and 3,700,000 Class "G" Preferred Shares were converted to Class "A" common shares for \$450 and \$1,850, respectively.

Class "H" Preferred Shares

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation issued Nil Class "H" preferred shares. For the year ended December 31, 2012, no Class "H" preferred shares were converted to Class "A" common shares.

Pre-IPO Stock Option Plan

For the three months and year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation granted Nil and 1,730,000 Pre-IPO stock options at a weighted average exercise price of \$Nil and \$0.48 per stock option, respectively. During the three month period and year ended December 31, 2012, there were 23,459,000 and 74,432,426 Pre-IPO stock options, respectively, exercised at a weighted average exercise price of \$0.15 and \$0.11 per stock option, respectively. There were also 2,947,026 and 5,294,514 forfeitures of Pre-IPO stock options during the three months ended and year ended December 31, 2012, respectively.

Post-IPO Stock Option Plan

On January 26, 2012, the Post-IPO Stock Option Plan (the "Post-IPO Stock Option Plan") was approved and adopted by shareholders at the Corporation's Annual General and Special Meeting. The Post-IPO Stock Option Plan was effective immediately prior to the Corporation's IPO closing and SEHK listing on March 1, 2012. The maximum number of Class "A" common shares that may be reserved for issuance pursuant to the Post-IPO Stock Option Plan is 10% of the total number of issued and outstanding shares, less the maximum aggregate number of shares underlying the options already granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Stock Option Plan. Options granted under the Post-IPO Stock Option Plan will have an exercise price that is determined by the Board of Directors but is not less than the higher of the closing price and the five day average closing price of Class "A" common shares, listed on the SEHK. For the year ended December 31, 2012, 35,824,908 and 68,464,338 Post-IPO stock options, respectively, were issued under the Post-IPO Stock Option Plan. During the year ended December 31, 2012, there were Nil Post-IPO stock options exercised. There were also 699,416 and 920,250 forfeitures of Post-IPO stock options during the three month period and year ended December 31, 2012, respectively.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND NOTES

The Board of Directors of the Corporation is pleased to announce the results of the Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2012 together with comparative figures for the corresponding period in 2011 as follows:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Assets 2012 (5000) 2011 (5000) Current Assets ***		As at December 31,		
Current Assets \$ 282,231 \$ 84,957 Trade and other receivables 2,155 3,583 Prepaid expenses and deposits 701 798 Non-Current Assets 285,087 89,338 Exploration and evaluation 366,668 382,277 Property and equipment 327,971 719 Other assets 694,639 366,376 Exploration and evaluation 3,380 Gegles 5,379,712 719 Other assets 694,639 366,766 Following \$68,621 \$33,965 Fair value of warrants \$68,821 \$33,965 Fair value of warrants \$68,821 \$33,965 Fair value of warrants \$69,616 96,433 Non-Current Liabilities \$69,616 96,433 Share repurchase obligation \$224,362 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 39,034 6,332 Non-Current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) Not current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) Total assets less cu		2012	2011	
Cash and cash equivalents \$ 282,231 \$ 84,957 Trade and other receivables 2,155 3,883 Prepaid expenses and deposits 701 798 Non-Current Assets 285,087 89,338 Exploration and evaluation 366,668 382,277 Property and equipment 327,971 719 Other assets - 3,380 Exploration and evaluation 694,639 366,766 Separation of the exploration of the explor	Assets	(\$000)	(\$000)	
Cash and cash equivalents \$ 282,231 \$ 84,957 Trade and other receivables 2,155 3,883 Prepaid expenses and deposits 701 798 Non-Current Assets 285,087 89,338 Exploration and evaluation 366,668 382,277 Property and equipment 327,971 719 Other assets - 3,380 Exploration and evaluation 694,639 366,766 Separation of the exploration of the explor	Current Assets			
Trade and other receivables 2,155 3,583 Prepaid expenses and deposits 701 798 Romany Assets 285,087 89,338 Exploration and evaluation 366,668 382,277 Property and equipment 327,971 719 Other assets 694,639 386,76 Exploration and evaluation \$979,726 \$475,714 Current Liabilities \$568,821 \$33,85 Face and other payables \$68,821 \$33,85 Fair value of warrants 795 68 Fair value of warrants 96,916 96,433 Non-Current Liabilities 2 24,362 Share repurchase obligation 9 224,362 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 39,034 6,332 Non-Current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) Net current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) Total assets less current liabilities 910,110 379,281 Shareholders' Equity 291,798 219,174 Share capital 991,798		\$ 282,231	\$ 84,957	
Non-Current Assets 89.38 Exploration and evaluation 366,668 382,277 Property and equipment 327,971 719 Other assets — 3,380 694,639 366,688 382,277 719 — 3,380 694,639 36,376 \$ 979,726 \$ 475,714 Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity Current Liabilities ** \$ 93,365 \$ 93,335 \$ 93,365 \$ 96,821 \$ 33,365 \$ 96,821 \$ 33,365 \$ 96,821 \$ 33,365 \$ 96,821 \$ 33,365 \$ 96,821 \$ 93,345 \$ 96,821 \$ 93,365 \$ 96,821 \$ 93,345 \$ 96,821 \$ 93,345 \$ 96,821 \$ 93,345 \$ 96,821 \$ 93,345 \$ 96,821 \$ 93,345 \$ 96,821 \$ 93,345				
Non-Current Assets Sexploration and evaluation 366,668 382,277 Property and equipment 327,971 719 714 719 714 714 719 714 714 719 719 714 719 71	Prepaid expenses and deposits	701	798	
Non-Current Assets Sexploration and evaluation 366,668 382,277 Property and equipment 327,971 719 714 719 714 714 719 714 714 719 719 714 719 71		205 007	90.229	
Exploration and evaluation 366,668 382,277 Property and equipment 327,971 719		205,007		
Property and equipment 327,971 719 Other assets 694,639 386,376 694,639 386,376 \$979,726 \$475,714 Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity Current Liabilities Trade and other payables \$68,821 \$33,365 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 795 68 Fair value of warrants 69,616 96,330 Non-Current Liabilities 96,616 96,332 Share repurchase obligation 924,362 39,034 6,332 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 39,034 6,332 30,694 Net current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) 70,955 30,7127 70,705 7	Non-Current Assets			
Other assets — 3,380 694,639 386,376 \$ 979,726 \$ 475,714 Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity Current Liabilities Trade and other payables \$ 68,821 \$ 33,365 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 795 68 Fair value of warrants — 63,000 Mon-Current Liabilities — 63,000 Share repurchase obligation — 224,362 Provisions for decommissioning obligation — 224,362 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 39,034 6,332 Net current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) Total assets less current liabilities 910,110 379,281 Shareholders' Equity Share capital 991,798 219,174 Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074 Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587	Exploration and evaluation	366,668	382,277	
100,650 100,661 100,	Property and equipment	327,971	719	
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity \$ 475,714 Current Liabilities Trade and other payables \$ 68,821 \$ 33,365 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 795 68 Fair value of warrants — 63,000 Non-Current Liabilities — 63,000 Share repurchase obligation — 224,362 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 39,034 230,694 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 390,34 230,694 Net current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) Total assets less current liabilities 910,110 379,281 Share capital 991,798 219,174 Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074 Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587	Other assets		3,380	
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity Current Liabilities Trade and other payables \$ 68,821 \$ 33,365 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 795 68 Fair value of warrants — 63,000 Mon-Current Liabilities Share repurchase obligation — 224,362 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 39,034 6,332 Analysis of the commissioning obligation 39,034 230,694 Analysis of the current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) Net current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) Total assets less current liabilities 910,110 379,281 Shareholders' Equity 991,798 219,174 Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074 Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587		694,639	386,376	
Current Liabilities \$ 68,821 \$ 33,365 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 795 68 Fair value of warrants		\$ 979,726	\$ 475,714	
Current Liabilities \$ 68,821 \$ 33,365 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 795 68 Fair value of warrants	Liabilities and Charabalders' Equity			
Trade and other payables \$ 68,821 \$ 33,365 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 795 68 Fair value of warrants — 63,000 69,616 96,433 Non-Current Liabilities — 224,362 Share repurchase obligation — 224,362 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 39,034 6,332 Met current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) Total assets less current liabilities 910,110 379,281 Shareholders' Equity Share capital 991,798 219,174 Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074 Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587				
Provisions for decommissioning obligation 795 68 Fair value of warrants — 63,000 Non-Current Liabilities — 69,616 96,433 Non-Current Liabilities — 224,362 Share repurchase obligation — 224,362 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 39,034 6,332 108,650 327,127 Net current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) Total assets less current liabilities 910,110 379,281 Shareholders' Equity Stare capital 991,798 219,174 Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074 Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587		\$ 68.821	\$ 33 365	
Fair value of warrants — 63,000 Kon-Current Liabilities — 224,362 Share repurchase obligation — 224,362 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 39,034 6,332 108,650 327,127 Net current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) Total assets less current liabilities 910,110 379,281 Shareholders' Equity Stare capital 991,798 219,174 Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074 Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587				
Non-Current Liabilities 5 (4)43 Share repurchase obligation — 224,362 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 39,034 6,332 39,034 230,694 108,650 327,127 Net current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) Total assets less current liabilities 910,110 379,281 Shareholders' Equity 991,798 219,174 Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074 Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587		_		
Non-Current Liabilities 224,362 Share repurchase obligation 39,034 6,332 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 39,034 230,694 108,650 327,127 Net current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) Total assets less current liabilities 910,110 379,281 Shareholders' Equity 991,798 219,174 Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074 Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587				
Share repurchase obligation — 224,362 Provisions for decommissioning obligation 39,034 6,332 39,034 230,694 108,650 327,127 Net current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) Total assets less current liabilities 910,110 379,281 Shareholders' Equity Share capital 991,798 219,174 Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074 Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587		69,616	96,433	
Provisions for decommissioning obligation 39,034 6,332 39,034 230,694 108,650 327,127 Net current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) Total assets less current liabilities 910,110 379,281 Shareholders' Equity Share capital 991,798 219,174 Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074 Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587	Non-Current Liabilities			
39,034 230,694 108,650 327,127 Net current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) Total assets less current liabilities 910,110 379,281 Shareholders' Equity Share capital 991,798 219,174 Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074 Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587	Share repurchase obligation	_	224,362	
Net current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) Total assets less current liabilities 910,110 379,281 Shareholders' Equity 991,798 219,174 Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074 Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587	Provisions for decommissioning obligation	39,034	6,332	
Net current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) Total assets less current liabilities 910,110 379,281 Shareholders' Equity 219,174 219,174 Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074 Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587		39,034	230,694	
Net current (liabilities)/assets 215,471 (7,095) Total assets less current liabilities 910,110 379,281 Shareholders' Equity 219,174 219,174 Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074 Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587				
Total assets less current liabilities 910,110 379,281 Shareholders' Equity 991,798 219,174 Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074 Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587		108,650	327,127	
Shareholders' Equity 991,798 219,174 Share capital 991,798 219,174 Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074 Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587	Net current (liabilities)/assets	215,471	(7,095)	
Share capital 991,798 219,174 Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074 Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587	Total assets less current liabilities	910,110	379,281	
Share capital 991,798 219,174 Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074 Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587	Shareholders' Equity			
Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074 Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587		991.798	219.174	
Deficit (168,117) (100,661) 871,076 148,587				
있었다면 하다 보고 있다면 하는데 보고 있다면 하는데 보다 있다면 하는데 보다 하는데 보다 하는데 보다 보다는데 보다 되었다면 보다 보다면 보다 보다면 보다면 보다면 보다면 보다면 보다면 보다면				
\$ 979,726 \$ 475,714		871,076	148,587	
		\$ 979,726	\$ 475,714	

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

	Three months ended December 31,		Year ended December 31,	
	2012	2011	2012	2011
		(\$000 except for	per share amounts)	
Other income				
Foreign exchange gain	\$ 45	\$ <i>-</i>	\$ 8,999	s —
Interest income	987	φ 257	3,229	1,625
interest income				1,023
	1,032	257	12,228	1,625
Salaries, consulting and benefits	1,950	1,701	16,339	7,331
Rent	211	277	944	611
Legal and audit	947	144	1,569	1,252
Depreciation	91	53	290	186
Share-based payment expense	2,705	2,277	13,384	8,075
Expense portion of IPO costs	, _	1,852	16,258	3,547
Fair value adjustment on warrants	_	(11,791)	, —	20,298
Finance costs	2,859	7,029	20,237	25,470
Other	1,465	1,175	4,935	3,615
	10,228	2,717	73,956	70,385
Loss before income taxes	9,196	2,460	61,728	68,760
Income tax recovery		(13)		1,368
Net loss and comprehensive loss for				
the year attributable to equity holders				
of the Corporation	\$ 9,196	\$ 2,473	\$ 61,728	\$ 67,392
Loss per share				
Basic and diluted	\$ 0.00	\$ 0.00	\$ 0.02	\$ 0.05
Baoic and anatou	Ψ 0.00	Ψ 0.00	Ψ 0.02	Ψ 0.03

Notes

1. Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") as issued by the International Accounting Board. The condensed consolidated financial statements also comply with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, measured at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian Dollars ("\$"), which is the functional currency of the Corporation.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Corporation and the Corporation's wholly owned subsidiaries, Fern Energy Ltd. ("Fern") and Sunshine Oilsands (Hong Kong) Ltd. ("Sunshine Hong Kong"). Control is achieved when the Corporation has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements when control is achieved and until control is lost. All inter-company transactions, balances, revenues and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

2. Segment Information

The Corporation has one business and geographical segment. Accordingly, no business and geographical segment information is presented.

3. Trade Receivables

The Corporation's trade and accruals and other receivables mainly arise from oil sales and goods and services tax receivables due from government taxation authorities. These are summarized as follows:

Trade
Accruals and other
Goods and Services Taxes receivable

2012	2011
(\$000)	(\$000)
\$ 297	\$ 2,048
387	12
1,471	1,523
\$ 2,155	\$ 3,583

The Corporation allows an average credit period of 30 days to its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at the end of the reporting periods:

	2012	2011
	(\$000)	(\$000)
0 - 30 days	\$ 46	\$ 1,260
31 - 60 days	250	781
61 - 90 days	1	7
	\$ 297	\$ 2,048

As at December 31, 2012, included in the Corporation's trade receivables were debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of \$251 (December 31, 2011 – \$788), which was past due as at the reporting date and for which the Corporation had not provided for impairment loss. The Corporation does not hold any collateral over these balances.

4. Trade Payables

Trade payables and accrued liabilities mainly represent payables to subcontractors for exploration and evaluation services. The Corporation has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within pre-agreed credit terms. The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on dates of invoices at the end of the reporting periods:

2012	2011
(\$000)	(\$000)
\$ 1,170	\$ 7,226
3,378	4,067
1,005	448
1,262	211
6,815	11,952
62,006	21,413
\$ 68,821	\$ 33,365
	(\$000) \$ 1,170 3,378 1,005 1,262 6,815 62,006

5. Dividends

The Corporation has not declared or paid any dividends in respect of the year ended December 31, 2012 (December 31, 2011 – \$Nil).

6. Income Taxes

December 31, 2012	Opening Balance (\$000)	Recognised in loss (\$000)	Recognised in OCI (\$000)	Recognised directly in equity (\$000)	Reclassified from equity to loss (\$000)	Acquisition/ Disposals (\$000)	Other (\$000)	Closing Balance (\$000)
Temporary differences								
Exploration and evaluation	\$ (32,593)	(14,099)	_	_	_	_	(9,395)	\$ (56,087)
Property and equipment	(31)	160	_	_	_	_	_	129
Other financial liabilities	755	(189)	_	_	_	_	9,395	9,961
Share issue expenses	871	21,188	_	_	_	_	_	22,059
	\$ (30,998)	\$ 7,060	<u>\$</u> —	<u>\$-</u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u>\$-</u>	\$ (23,938)
Tax losses	30,998	(7,060)	_	_	_	_	_	23,938
Deferred tax assets (liabilities)	<u>\$-</u>	<u>\$-</u>	<u>\$-</u>	<u>\$-</u>	<u>\$-</u>	<u>\$-</u>	<u>\$-</u>	<u>\$-</u>
				Recognised	Reclassified			
	Opening	Recognised	Recognised	directly	from equity	Acquisition/		Closing
December 31, 2011	Balance	in loss	in OCI	in equity	to loss	Disposals	Other	Balance
	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)
Temporary differences								
Exploration and evaluation	\$ (15,458)	(14,448)	s —	s —	\$ —	\$ —	\$ (2,687)	\$ (32,593)
Property and equipment	(4)	(27)	_	_	_	_	_	(31)
Other financial liabilities	498	(32)	_	_	_	_	289	755
Share issue expenses	1,092	(2,142)	_	1,921	_	_	_	871
	\$ (13,872)	\$ (16,649)	<u> </u>	\$ 1,921	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	\$ (2,398)	\$ (30,998)
Tax losses	12,981	18,017						30,998
Deferred tax assets (liabilities)	\$ (891)	\$ 1,368	<u>\$-</u>	\$ 1,921	<u>*-</u>	<u>\$-</u>	\$ (2,398)	<u> </u>

The Corporation and its subsidiary, Fern, in Canada are subject to Canadian federal and provincial tax for the estimated assessable profit at a rate of 25.0%. The Corporation had no assessable profit in Canada for the year ended December 31, 2012. The Corporation files all required income tax returns and believes that it is in full compliance with the provisions, tax interpretations, regulations and legislation of the Income Tax Act (Canada) and all applicable provincial tax legislation. However, such returns are subject to reassessment by the applicable taxation authorities. In the event of a successful reassessment, such reassessment may have an impact on current and future taxes payable.

The Corporation's subsidiary, Sunshine Hong Kong, in Hong Kong is subject to Hong Kong profits tax at a rate of 16.5%. No Hong Kong profits tax was provided for as the Corporation had no assessable profit arising in or derived from Hong Kong for the year ended December 31, 2012.

The following estimated tax deductions available to the Corporation in Canada. The tax losses will begin expiring in 2027.

As at December 31, 2012 (\$000) \$ 229,305 430,172 964 88,238

\$ 748,679

Non-capital losses Exploration and evaluation Property and equipment Share issue costs

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The consolidated financial statements for the Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2012, were reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Corporation.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION

This annual results announcement is published on the websites of SEDAR (www.sedar.com), the SEHK (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Corporation's website at www.sunshineoilsands.com.



Independent Auditor's Report

Deloitte.

To the Shareholders of Sunshine Oilsands Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sunshine Oilsands Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the "Company"), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2012 and 2011 and the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for the years then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Sunshine Oilsands Ltd. as at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Chartered Accountants

March 26, 2013 Calgary, Canada

latta LLP

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss (Expressed in Canadian dollars)

	Year ended D	ecember 31,
(\$000 except for per share amounts) Notes	2012	2011
Other income		
Foreign exchange gain	\$ 8,999	\$ —
Interest income	3,229	1,625
	12,228	1,625
Salaries, consulting and benefits	16,339	7,331
Rent	944	611
Legal and audit	1,569	1,252
Depreciation 8	290	186
Share-based payment expense 13	13,384	8,075
Expense portion of IPO costs	16,258	3,547
Fair value adjustment on warrants 12	_	20,298
Finance costs 15	20,237	25,470
Other	4,935	3,615
	73,956	70,385
Loss before income taxes	61,728	68,760
Income tax recovery 11	_	1,368
Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year attributable to equity		
holders of the Corporation	\$ 61,728	\$ 67,392
Lace was about		
Loss per share Basic and diluted 16	¢ 0 00	\$ 0.05
Dasic and unded	\$ 0.02	φ 0.05

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Notes 2012 2011 (\$000) (\$000
Current Assets Cash and cash equivalents 4 \$ 282,231 \$ 84,957 Trade and other receivables 5 2,155 3,583 Prepaid expenses and deposits 6 701 798 Non-Current Assets Exploration and evaluation 7 366,668 382,277 Property and equipment 8 327,971 719 Other assets — 3,380
Cash and cash equivalents 4 \$ 282,231 \$ 84,957 Trade and other receivables 5 2,155 3,583 Prepaid expenses and deposits 6 701 798 Non-Current Assets Exploration and evaluation 7 366,668 382,277 Property and equipment 8 327,971 718 Other assets — 3,380
Trade and other receivables 5 2,155 3,583 Prepaid expenses and deposits 6 701 798 Non-Current Assets Exploration and evaluation 7 366,668 382,277 Property and equipment 8 327,971 719 Other assets — 3,380
Trade and other receivables 5 2,155 3,583 Prepaid expenses and deposits 6 701 798 Non-Current Assets Exploration and evaluation 7 366,668 382,277 Property and equipment 8 327,971 719 Other assets — 3,380
Prepaid expenses and deposits 6 701 798 285,087 89,338 Non-Current Assets Second of the control
Non-Current Assets Exploration and evaluation 7 366,668 382,277 Property and equipment 8 327,971 719 Other assets — 3,380
Exploration and evaluation 7 366,668 382,277 Property and equipment 8 327,971 719 Other assets — 3,380
Property and equipment 8 327,971 719 Other assets — 3,380
Property and equipment 8 327,971 719 Other assets — 3,380
Other assets 3,380
20.000
694,639 386,376
\$ 979,726 \$ 475,714
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 9 \$68,821 \$33,365
Provisions for decomissioning obligation 10 795 68
Fair value of warrants 12
69,616 96,433
Non-Current Liabilities
Share repurchase obligation 14 — 224,362
Provisions for decomissioning obligation 10 39,034 6,332
108,650 327,127
Shareholders' Equity
Share capital 12 991,798 219,174
Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074
Deficit (168,117) (100,661
871,076 148,587
\$ 979,726 \$ 475,714

Approved by the Board

"Robert J. Herdman"

"Michael J. Hibberd"

Director

Director

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity

(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

		Fo	or the year ended D	ecember 31, 2012	
		Reserve for			
		share based			
(\$000)	Notes	compensation**	Share capital	Deficit	Total
Balance at December 31, 2011		\$ 30,074	\$ 219,174	\$ (100,661)	\$ 148,587
Net loss and comprehensive loss for the period		_	_	(61,728)	(61,728)
Recognition of share-based payments	13.4	20,445	_	_	20,445
Issue of common shares	12	_	569,880	_	569,880
Issue of preferred shares	12	_	_	_	_
Reclassification of share repurchase obligation	14	_	247,957	_	247,957
Repurchase of common shares	12	_	(38,731)	_	(38,731)
Issue of common shares for services	18.1	_	8,378	_	8,378
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options	12	_	8,052	_	8,052
Share option transferred on exercise					
of share options	12	(3,124)	3,124	_	_
Repurchase and cancellation of warrants	12	_	_	(5,994)	(5,994)
Recognition of credit on credit facility	18.1	_	_	266	266
Share issue costs, net of deferred tax (\$Nil)	12	_	(26,036)	_	(26,036)
Polance at December 24, 2012		¢ 47 205	\$ 991,798	¢ (460 447)	¢ 974 076
Balance at December 31, 2012		<u>\$ 47,395</u>	——————————————————————————————————————	\$ (168,117) 	\$ 871,076
		F	or the year ended D	ecember 31 2011	
			or the year ended D	ecember 31, 2011	
		Reserve for	or the year ended D	ecember 31, 2011	
(0000)		Reserve for share based			
(\$000)	Notes	Reserve for	or the year ended D	ecember 31, 2011 Deficit	Total
(\$000) Balance at December 31, 2010	Notes	Reserve for share based			Total \$ 222,433
	Notes	Reserve for share based compensation	Share capital	Deficit	
Balance at December 31, 2010	Notes	Reserve for share based compensation	Share capital	Deficit \$ (19,736)	\$ 222,433
Balance at December 31, 2010 Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year		Reserve for share based compensation** \$ 17,643	Share capital	Deficit \$ (19,736)	\$ 222,433 (67,392)
Balance at December 31, 2010 Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year Recognition of share-based payments	13 12	Reserve for share based compensation** \$ 17,643	Share capital \$ 224,526	Deficit \$ (19,736)	\$ 222,433 (67,392) 15,230
Balance at December 31, 2010 Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year Recognition of share-based payments Issue of common shares	13 12	Reserve for share based compensation** \$ 17,643	Share capital \$ 224,526	Deficit \$ (19,736)	\$ 222,433 (67,392) 15,230 7,470
Balance at December 31, 2010 Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year Recognition of share-based payments Issue of common shares Common shares issued on a flow-through basis	13 12 12	Reserve for share based compensation** \$ 17,643	\$ 224,526 7,470 6,471	Deficit \$ (19,736)	\$ 222,433 (67,392) 15,230 7,470 6,471
Balance at December 31, 2010 Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year Recognition of share-based payments Issue of common shares Common shares issued on a flow-through basis Issue of preferred shares	13 12 12 12	Reserve for share based compensation** \$ 17,643	\$ 224,526 	Deficit \$ (19,736)	\$ 222,433 (67,392) 15,230 7,470 6,471
Balance at December 31, 2010 Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year Recognition of share-based payments Issue of common shares Common shares issued on a flow-through basis Issue of preferred shares Cancellation of preferred shares	13 12 12 12 12	Reserve for share based compensation" \$ 17,643	\$ 224,526	Deficit \$ (19,736)	\$ 222,433 (67,392) 15,230 7,470 6,471 13 (1)
Balance at December 31, 2010 Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year Recognition of share-based payments Issue of common shares Common shares issued on a flow-through basis Issue of preferred shares Cancellation of preferred shares Issue of shares upon exercise of share options	13 12 12 12 12	Reserve for share based compensation" \$ 17,643	\$ 224,526	Deficit \$ (19,736)	\$ 222,433 (67,392) 15,230 7,470 6,471 13 (1)
Balance at December 31, 2010 Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year Recognition of share-based payments Issue of common shares Common shares issued on a flow-through basis Issue of preferred shares Cancellation of preferred shares Issue of shares upon exercise of share options Share option transferred on exercise	13 12 12 12 12 12	Reserve for share based compensation" \$ 17,643	\$ 224,526	Deficit \$ (19,736)	\$ 222,433 (67,392) 15,230 7,470 6,471 13 (1)
Balance at December 31, 2010 Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year Recognition of share-based payments Issue of common shares Common shares issued on a flow-through basis Issue of preferred shares Cancellation of preferred shares Issue of shares upon exercise of share options Share option transferred on exercise of share options	13 12 12 12 12 12 12	Reserve for share based compensation" \$ 17,643	\$ 224,526	Deficit \$ (19,736) (67,392)	\$ 222,433 (67,392) 15,230 7,470 6,471 13 (1) 1,253
Balance at December 31, 2010 Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year Recognition of share-based payments Issue of common shares Common shares issued on a flow-through basis Issue of preferred shares Cancellation of preferred shares Issue of shares upon exercise of share options Share option transferred on exercise of share options Reclassification of fair value of warrants	13 12 12 12 12 12 12	Reserve for share based compensation" \$ 17,643	\$ 224,526	Deficit \$ (19,736) (67,392)	\$ 222,433 (67,392) 15,230 7,470 6,471 13 (1) 1,253
Balance at December 31, 2010 Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year Recognition of share-based payments Issue of common shares Common shares issued on a flow-through basis Issue of preferred shares Cancellation of preferred shares Issue of shares upon exercise of share options Share option transferred on exercise of share options Reclassification of fair value of warrants Share issue costs, net of deferred	13 12 12 12 12 12 12	Reserve for share based compensation" \$ 17,643	\$ 224,526	Deficit \$ (19,736) (67,392)	\$ 222,433 (67,392) 15,230 7,470 6,471 13 (1) 1,253

^{**} Reserve for share based compensation includes recognition of share-based payments on stock options as well as share-based payments on fee warrants.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

		Year ended De	ecember 31,
	Notes	2012	2011
		(\$000)	(\$000)
Cash flows from operating activities			
Loss before income taxes		\$ (61,728)	\$ (68,760)
Finance costs		20,237	25,470
Expense portion of IPO costs		10,863	3,547
Fair value adjustment on warrants	12	_	20,298
Unrealized foreign exchange loss/(gain)		21	_
Interest income		(3,229)	(1,625)
Depreciation	8	290	186
Share-based payment expense	13	13,384	8,075
		(00.400)	(40,000)
		(20,162)	(12,809)
Movements in non-cash working capital			
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables		1,557	(1,634)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (Increase)/decrease in prepaids and deposits		97	(485)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables		(73)	1,149
increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables			1,143
		(18,581)	(13,779)
Cash flows from investing activities			
Interest received		3,229	1,625
Payments for exploration and evaluation assets		(229,382)	(155,561)
Payments for property and equipment	8	(740)	(430)
		(222 222)	(171,000)
		(226,893)	(154,366)
Cash flows from financing activities			
Payment for deferred portion of IPO costs		_	(2,152)
Payment for repurchase of common shares	12	(38,731)	(2,132)
Proceeds from issue of preferred shares	12	(30,731)	12
Proceeds from issue of common shares	12	577,932	15,852
Payment for share issue costs	12	(25,128)	(758)
Payment for finance costs	15	(2,000)	(756)
Proceeds from share repurchase obligation	13	(2,000)	210,000
Payment for transaction costs on share repurchase obligation		_	(11,392)
Advance from (repayment of) credit facility	18.1	_	(11,392)
Payment for advisory fee	18.1	(441)	
Payment for warrant settlement	10.1		
rayment for warrant settlement		(68,863)	10 May 10
		442,769	211,562
			7
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents			
held in foreign currency		(21)	_
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		197,274	43,417
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year		84,957	41,540
Cash and each equivalents, and of year		¢ 202 224	¢ 04 057
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year		\$ 282,231	\$ 84,957

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Sunshine Oilsands Ltd. (the "Corporation") was incorporated under the laws of the Province of Alberta on February 22, 2007. The address of its principal place of business is 1020, 903 - 8 Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta, T2P 0P7, Canada. The Corporation's shares were listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("SEHK") on March 1, 2012 pursuant to an initial public offering ("IPO") and trades under the stock code symbol of "2012". On January 26, 2012, shareholders of the Corporation authorized the Corporation to complete up to a 25:1 share split. The Board of Directors of the Corporation concluded that a 20:1 share split was appropriate, increasing the number of common shares, preferred shares and stock options to 20 times their previous outstanding amounts. All share and stock option information is therefore presented on a post split basis. On November 16, 2012, the Corporation completed a listing of its common shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange ("TSX") and trades under the symbol of "SUO".

On May 4, 2012, Sunshine Oilsands (Hong Kong) Limited ("Sunshine Hong Kong") was incorporated in Hong Kong under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation. The address of the principal place of business for Sunshine Hong Kong is Unit 8504A, 85/F, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon.

The Corporation is engaged in the evaluation and the development of oil properties for the future production of bitumen in the Athabasca oil sands region in Alberta, Canada. The Corporation is a development stage company. The continued existence of the Corporation is dependent on its ability to maintain capital funding to further development and to meet obligations. In the event that such capital is not available to the Corporation, it will be necessary to prioritize activities, which may result in delaying and potentially losing business opportunities and cause potential impairment to recorded assets. The Corporation anticipates incurring substantial expenditures to further its capital development programs.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair value (Note 17). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian Dollars ("C\$"), which is the functional currency of the Corporation.

2.2 Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In applying the Corporation's accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the affected periods.

2.2.1 Critical judgments and estimates in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving estimates, that management has made in applying the Corporation's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.2 Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

2.2.1 Critical judgments and estimates in applying accounting policies (Continued)

Oil and gas reserves

The process of estimating quantities of reserves is inherently uncertain and complex. It requires significant judgments and decisions based on available geological, geophysical, engineering and economic data. These estimates may change substantially as additional data from ongoing development activities and production performance becomes available and as economic conditions impacting oil and gas prices and costs change. Reserve estimates are based on, among other things, forecasts of production, prices, cost estimates and economic conditions.

Reserve estimates are critical to many accounting estimates including:

- determining whether or not an exploratory well has found economically recoverable reserves. Such
 determinations involve the commitment of additional capital to develop the field based on current estimates of
 production forecasts, prices and other economic conditions;
- calculating unit-of-production depletion rates. Proved plus probable reserves are used to determine rates that are applied to each unit-of-production in calculating depletion expense; and
- assessing development and production assets for impairment. Estimated future net cash flows used to
 assess impairment of the Corporation's development and production assets are determined using proved plus
 probable reserves.

Independent qualified reserves evaluators prepare reserve estimates for each property at least annually and issue a report thereon. The reserve estimates are reviewed by the Corporation's engineers and operational management familiar with the property.

Recoverability of exploration and evaluation costs

Exploration and Evaluation costs ("E&E") are capitalized as exploration and evaluation assets by cash generating unit ("CGU") and are assessed for impairment when circumstances suggest that the carrying amount may exceed recoverable value. This assessment involves judgment as to: (i) the likely future commerciality of the asset and when such commerciality should be determined; (ii) future revenues based on forecasted oil and gas prices; (iii) future development costs and production expenses; (iv) the discount rate to be applied to such revenues and costs for the purpose of deriving a recoverable value; and (v) potential value to future E&E activities of any geological and geophysical data acquired.

Decommissioning costs

A provision is required to be recognised for the future retirement obligations associated with the Corporation's assets. The decommissioning provision is based on estimated costs, taking into account the anticipated method and extent of restoration consistent with legal, regulatory and construction requirements, technological advances and the possible use of the site. Since these estimates are specific to the sites involved, there are many individual assumptions underlying the amount provided. These individual assumptions can be subject to change based on actual experience and a change in one or more of these assumptions could result in a materially different amount.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.2 Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

2.2.1 Critical judgments and estimates in applying accounting policies (Continued)

Share repurchase obligation

The Corporation had a share repurchase obligation pursuant to the accounting treatment required under IAS 32. In order to calculate a value for the share repurchase obligation, the effective interest method has been applied which is based on estimates and assumptions to determine the effective interest rate. The effects of a change in the estimates or assumptions could result in a materially different amount.

Share-based payments

The Corporation recognises compensation expense on options, preferred shares and stock appreciation rights ("SARs") granted. Compensation expense is based on the estimated fair value of each option, preferred share and stock appreciation right at its grant date, the estimation of which requires management to make assumptions about future volatility of the Corporation's stock price, future interest rates and the timing with respect to exercise of the instruments. The effects of a change in one or more of these variables could result in a materially different fair value.

Deferred income taxes

The calculation of deferred income taxes is based on a number of assumptions, including estimating the future periods in which temporary differences, tax losses and other tax credits will reverse. Tax interpretations, regulations, and legislation in the various jurisdictions in which the Corporation and its subsidiaries operate are subject to change.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Corporation and the Corporation's wholly owned subsidiaries, Fern Energy Ltd. ("Fern") and Sunshine Hong Kong.

Control is achieved when the Corporation has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements when control is achieved and until control is lost. Inter-company transactions, balances, revenues and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

3.2 Oil and Natural Gas Exploration and Development Expenditures

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets ("E&E") are those expenditures for an area where technical feasibility and commercial viability have not yet been determined. These costs include unproved property acquisition costs, geological and geophysical costs, exploration and evaluation drilling, directly attributable general and administrative costs, (including share-based compensation costs), borrowing costs, consequential operating costs net of revenues, and the initial estimate of any decommissioning obligation associated with the assets. The costs directly associated with an exploration well are capitalized as intangible exploration and evaluation assets until the drilling of the well is complete and the results have been evaluated.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Oil and Natural Gas Exploration and Development Expenditures (Continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

Pre-acquisition costs for oil and gas assets are recognised in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss when incurred. Acquisitions of undeveloped mineral leases are initially capitalized as exploration and evaluation assets and charged to consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss upon the expiration of the lease, impairment of the asset or management's determination that no further exploration or evaluation activities are planned on the lease, whichever comes first. Exploration and evaluation assets can be further broken down into tangible and intangible assets. Intangible costs are all costs considered necessary to drill a well and ready a site prior to the installation of the production equipment. Tangible drilling costs are those incurred to purchase and install the production equipment and includes production facilities.

The decision to transfer assets from exploration and evaluation to development and producing assets (included in property and equipment ("PPE")) occurs when the technical feasibility and commercial viability of the project is determined, based on economically recoverable reserves being assigned to the project.

Impairment

If no economically recoverable reserves are found upon evaluation, the exploration asset is tested for impairment and the amounts are charged to the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. If extractable reserves are found and, subject to further appraisal activity which may include the drilling of additional wells, are likely to be developed commercially, the costs continue to be carried as an intangible asset while progress is made in assessing the commerciality of the reserves. All such carried costs are subject to technical, commercial and management review as well as review for impairment at least once a year to confirm the continued intent to develop or otherwise extract value from the discovery. Lack of intent to develop or otherwise extract value from such discovery would result in the relevant expenditures being charged to the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. When economically recoverable reserves are determined and development is approved, the relevant carrying value is transferred to property and equipment.

Exploration and evaluation assets are tested for impairment at least annually and prior to reclassification. To test for impairment, exploration and evaluation assets are allocated to each CGU or groups of CGU, that are expected to benefit from the exploration and evaluation activity. E&E assets are assessed for impairment within the aggregation of all CGU's in that segment. After impairment is assessed, any carrying amounts which exceed recoverable amounts on the exploration and evaluation assets are written down to the recoverable amount through the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

Impairment losses recognised in prior years are assessed at each reporting date for any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depletion and depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.3 Property and equipment

Carrying value

Property and equipment includes computer and office equipment and development and production assets (includes crude oil assets), which are stated at cost less the total of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The initial cost of a property and equipment consists of its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into operation, the initial estimate of the decommissioning obligation associated with the asset and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs. The purchase price or construction cost is the aggregate amount paid, including the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset.

Depletion and depreciation

Depletion of development and production costs (crude oil assets), included in property and equipment, and depreciation of production equipment are measured on the unit-of-production method based upon estimated proved plus probable recoverable oil and natural gas reserves before royalties in each cost centre as determined by independent engineers. For purposes of this calculation, reserves are converted to barrel of oil equivalent units based on their approximate energy content at six thousand cubic feet of natural gas to one barrel of oil.

In-situ oil sands processing facilities and support equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Office furniture, equipment and computers are depreciated on a declining balance basis at 30 percent per year.

Impairment

At the end of each reporting period, the Corporation reviews the property and equipment for circumstances that indicate the assets may be impaired. Assets are grouped together into CGUs for the purpose of impairment testing, which is the lowest level at which there are identifiable cash flows that are largely independent of the cash flows of other property and equipment assets. If any such indication of impairment exists, the Corporation makes an estimate of its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of a CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the CGU is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset. Value in use is generally computed by reference to the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from production of estimated recoverable reserves.

For impairment losses identified based on a CGU, or a group of CGUs, the loss is allocated on a pro rata basis to the assets within the CGU(s). This is first completed by reducing the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, or group of CGUs and then reducing the carrying amount of other assets of the CGU, or group of CGUs, on a pro rata basis. The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss unless it is related to a re-valued asset where the value changes are recognised directly into equity.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses or decreases, the carrying amount of the assets or CGU is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, with the increased carrying amount not exceeding the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or CGU in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at the revalued amount, in which cases the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.3 Property and equipment (Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

Corporate assets are allocated to each CGU on the basis of proportionate future net revenue calculated consistent with the recoverable amount in the most recent impairment test.

Maintenance and repairs

Major repairs and maintenance consists of replacing assets or substantial parts of an asset. Where an asset or substantial part of an asset is replaced and it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the replacement will flow to the Corporation, the expenditure is capitalized and depreciated over the remaining life of the asset. All other maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

3.4 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Corporation has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Corporation will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

3.4.1 Decommissioning costs

Decommissioning costs and liabilities for statutory, contractual, construction or legal obligations associated with site restoration and abandonment of tangible long-lived assets are initially measured at a fair value which approximates the cost the Corporation would incur in performing the tasks necessary to abandon the field and restore the site. Fair value is recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at the present value of expected future cash outflows to satisfy the obligation as a liability, with a corresponding increase in the related asset, and is depleted or depreciated using the unit-of-production method over the estimated remaining proved plus probable oil and gas reserves before royalties, or the straight-line method, as appropriate. Subsequent to initial measurement, the effect of the passage of time on the liability for the decommissioning obligation (accretion expense) is recognised in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss as finance costs. Actual costs incurred upon settlement of the obligation are charged against the obligation to the extent of the liability recorded. Any difference between the actual costs incurred upon settlement of the obligation and the recorded liability is recognised as a gain or loss in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss in the period in which the settlement occurs.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Share-based payments

3.5.1 Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options and preferred shares issued to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and employees are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments, less the fair value of the proceeds received on issuing the equity instruments at the issue date.

The fair value of the equity instruments, including share options, warrants or preferred shares, expected to vest as determined at the issue date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a graded vesting basis over the vesting period, unless the services are directly attributable to qualifying assets, with a corresponding increase in reserve for share based compensation.

At the end of each reporting period, the Corporation revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to reserve for share based compensation.

At the time when the equity instruments are exercised or converted, the amount previously recognised in reserve for share based compensation will be transferred to share capital. When the equity instruments are cancelled, they are treated as if they had vested on the date of cancellation and any cost not yet recognised in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss is expensed immediately.

The Corporation records compensation expense at the date of issue, based on fair value and management's best estimate of the prospect of converting some, or all, of the Class "G" and Class "H" preferred shares to Class "A" common shares. There were no issuances of either Class "G" and Class "H" preferred shares post IPO on March 1, 2012.

Share options and preferred shares issued to non-employees

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions, with parties other than employees and directors, are measured at the fair value of the goods or services received, except where fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments issued, measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the service. The fair values of the goods or services received are recognised as expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity (reserve for share based compensation), when the Corporation obtains the goods or when the counterparties render services, unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as assets or directly attributable to qualifying assets.

3.5.2 Cash-settled share-based payment transactions

For cash-settled share-based payments (including SARs), the Corporation measures the goods or services acquired and the fair value of the liability incurred. At the end of each reporting period, the liability is remeasured at its fair value until the liability is settled, with any changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.6 Financial assets

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe established by the market concerned. The financial assets are initially measured at fair value, including transaction costs. Financial assets which have been classified as at fair value through profit or loss, are initially measured at fair value and transaction costs are expensed when inclured

3.6.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")

Financial assets are classified at FVTPL when the financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or
- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Corporation manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or
- the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
 and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Corporation's documented risk
 management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or
- it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 *Financial Instruments:***Recognition and *Measurement* permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. The net gain or loss recognised in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset.

3.6.2 Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables and deposits) are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment on financial assets below). Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.6 Financial assets (Continued)

3.6.3 Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Corporation's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 60 days, as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is expensed against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously expensed are charged against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

3.6.4 Derecognition of financial assets

The Corporation derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Corporation continues to control the transferred asset, the Corporation recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Corporation retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Corporation continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. The difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received (and/or receivable), and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive loss and accumulated in equity is recognised in the consolidated statements of comprehensive loss.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.7 Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Corporation

3.7.1 Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Corporation are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the terms of the arrangement.

3.7.2 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Corporation after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Corporation are recorded, based on the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

3.7.3 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities 'at FVTPL' or 'other financial liabilities'.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The Corporation has classified its trade and other payables, borrowings and share repurchase obligation as other financial liabilities.

3.7.4 Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Corporation derecognises financial liabilities when the obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

3.7.5 Flow through shares



Pursuant to the terms of flow-through share agreements, tax deductions associated with eligible expenditures are renounced to the subscribers. Flow-through shares are recorded at their fair value without any adjustment for the renouncement of tax deductions. The difference between the fair value of the flow-through share and the cash received for the flow-through share is recorded as an obligation to renounce the flow through share expenditure. This obligation is reversed and a deferred tax liability is recognised once the eligible expenditures are renounced and the obligation in respect of the share is met.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.8 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax payable and deferred tax.

3.8.1 Current tax

Tax payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and permanent items which are never taxable or deductible. The Corporation's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

3.8.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Corporation is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Corporation expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Corporation intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred taxes are recognised as an expense or income, in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive loss or directly in equity, in which case the tax is recognised in other comprehensive loss or directly in equity.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash and short-term investments, such as money market deposits or similar type instruments, with a maturity of ninety days or less when purchased.

3.10 Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities. A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties.

3.11 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss in the period in which they are incurred.

3.12 Deferred costs

Deferred costs presented as Other Assets primarily consist of costs incurred for the IPO. In March 2012 with the closing of the IPO financing, the allocated amount relating to the issuance of new shares under the IPO was charged to share issue costs and the remainder of IPO costs were expensed in the period.

3.13 Jointly controlled assets

A jointly controlled asset involves joint control and offers joint ownership by the Corporation and other partners of assets contributed to or acquired for the purpose of the jointly controlled assets, without the formation of a corporation, partnership or other entity.

The Corporation accounts for its share of the jointly controlled assets, any liabilities it has incurred, its share of any liabilities jointly incurred with its partners, income from the sale or use of its share of the joint venture's output, together with its share of the expenses incurred by the jointly controlled asset and any expenses it incurs in relation to its interest in the jointly controlled asset.

3.14 Treasury shares

The Corporation's own equity instruments that are repurchased by the Corporation are recognized at the market price at the date of repurchase and deducted from share capital.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.15 Future accounting changes

The International Accounting Standard Board (the "IASB") issued a number of new and revised International Accounting Standards ("IASS"), International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs"), amendments and related Interpretations ("IFRICs") (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "New IFRSs") which are effective for the Corporation's financial period beginning on January 1, 2013. The Corporation has reviewed new and revised accounting pronouncements that have been issued but are not yet effective and these standards are not expected to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 was issued by the IASB in November 2009 and October 2010 and replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 uses a single approach to determine whether a financial asset is measured at amortized cost or fair value, replacing the multiple rules in IAS 39. The approach in IFRS 9 is based on how an entity manages its financial instruments in the context of its business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Most of the requirements in IAS 39 for classification and measurement of financial liabilities were carried forward unchanged to IFRS 9. The new standard also requires a single impairment method to be used, replacing the multiple impairment methods in IAS 39.

IFRS 9 is required to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015.

IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements

For annual periods beginning on January 1, 2013, IFRS 10 will replace portions of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and interpretation SIC-12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities. The new standard requires consolidated financial statements to include all controlled entities under a single control model. The Corporation will be considered to control an investee when it is exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the current ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

As required by this standard, control is reassessed as facts and circumstances change. Additional guidance is given on how to evaluate whether certain relationships give the Corporation the current ability to affect its returns, including how to consider options and convertible instruments, holding less than a majority of voting rights, how to consider protective rights and principal agency relationships (including removal rights), all of which may differ from current practice.

IFRS 10 is required to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

IFRS 11 applies to accounting for interests in joint arrangements where there is joint control. The standard requires the joint arrangements to be classified as either joint operations or joint ventures. The structure of the joint arrangement would no longer be the most significant factor when classifying the joint arrangement as either a joint operation or a joint venture. In addition, the option to account for joint ventures (previously called jointly controlled entities) using proportionate consolidation will be removed and replaced by equity accounting.

IFRS 11 is required to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.15 Future accounting changes (Continued)

IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 includes disclosure requirements about subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, as well as unconsolidated structured entities and replaces existing disclosure requirements. Due to this new section, the Corporation will be required to disclose the following: judgments and assumptions made when deciding how to classify involvement with another entity, interests that non-controlling interests have in consolidated entities and the nature of the risks associated with interests in other entities.

IFRS 12 is required to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 will converge the IFRS requirements for how to measure fair value and the related disclosures. IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value measurements, when fair value is required or permitted by IFRS. Upon adoption, the Corporation will provide a single framework for measuring fair value while requiring enhanced disclosures when fair value is applied. In addition, fair value will be defined as the "exit price" and concepts of "highest and best use" and "valuation premise" would be relevant only for non-financial assets and liabilities.

2012

2042

2011

IFRS 13 is required to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

	(\$000)	(\$000)
Cash	\$ 13,966	\$ 3,906
Term deposits	268,265	81,051
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 282,231	\$ 84,957

As at December 31, 2012, the Corporation's cash equivalents comprises primarily high yield savings and term deposits which have maturity range of up to three months and an interest rate range of 0.5% to 1.26%.

5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

	2012	2011
	(\$000)	(\$000)
Trade	\$ 297	\$ 2,048
Accruals and other	387	12
Goods and Services Taxes receivable	1,471	1,523
	\$ 2,155	\$ 3,583

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

6. PREPAID EXPENSES AND DEPOSITS

	2012	2011
	(\$000)	(\$000)
Prepaid expenses	\$ 276	\$ 345
Deposits	425	453
	\$ 701	\$ 798

7. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

(\$000)	
Balance, December 31, 2010	\$ 197,836
Capital expenditures	166,403
Non-cash expenditures ¹	18,038
Transferred to PPE	_
Balance, December 31, 2011	382,277
Capital expenditures	269,348
Non-cash expenditures ¹	41,845
Transferred to PPE	(326,802)
Balance, December 31, 2012	\$ 366,668

Non-cash expenditures include capitalized share-based payment expense, financing costs and decommissioning obligation assets.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation transferred \$326.8 million of accumulated costs with respect to the West Ells project from exploration and evaluation assets to crude oil assets included in property and equipment (Note 8).

The Corporation is a development stage entity, and as a result, no depletion expense has been recorded for exploration and evaluation assets for any period. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation capitalized directly attributable costs including \$0.9 million for share-based payment expense (2011 – \$7.2 million), \$1.9 million of pre-production operating loss (2011 – \$2.2 million), \$1.3 million of finance costs (2011 – \$6.8 million) and \$1.8 million of general and administrative costs (2011 – \$7.8 million).

Exploration and evaluation costs are comprised of the following:

	2012	2011
	(\$000)	(\$000)
Intangibles	\$ 258,664	\$ 294,055
Tangibles	17,200	13,568
Land and lease costs	90,804	74,654
	\$ 366,668	\$ 382,277

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

8. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

C	rude Oil Assets	Total	
	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)
Cost			
Balance, January 1, 2011	\$ —	\$ 778	\$ 778
Capital expenditures	_	430	430
Non-cash expenditures ¹	_	_	_
Transferred from E&E			
Balance, December 31, 2011	_	1,208	1,208
Capital expenditures	_	740	740
Non-cash expenditures ¹	_	_	_
Transferred from E&E	326,802		326,802
Balance, December 31, 2012	\$ 326,802	\$ 1,948	\$ 328,750
Accumulated Depreciation			
Balance, January 1, 2011	\$ —	\$ 303	\$ 303
Depreciation expense		186	186
Balance, December 31, 2011	_	489	489
Depreciation expense		290	290
Balance, December 31, 2012		\$ 779	\$ 779
Carrying value, December 31, 2012	\$ 326,802	\$ 1,169	\$ 327,971
Carrying value, December 31, 2011	<u> </u>	\$ 719	\$ 719

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation transferred \$326.8 million of accumulated costs with respect to the West Ells project from exploration and evaluation assets. This transferred amount includes directly attributable costs capitalized for the year ended December 31, 2012 as follows: \$6.2 million of share-based payment expense, \$0.8 million of finance costs and \$8.4 million of general and administrative costs.

At December 31, 2012, the crude oil assets, included in the above property and equipment, were not subject to depletion as it relates to assets that are not ready for use in the manner intended by management.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

9. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

	2012	2011
	(\$000)	(\$000)
Trade	\$ 6,815	\$ 11,952
Accrued liabilities	62,006	21,413
	\$ 68,821	\$ 33,365

10. PROVISIONS FOR DECOMMISSIONING OBLIGATION

At December 31, 2012, the estimated total undiscounted cash flows required to settle asset decommissioning obligations was \$73.4 million (2011 – \$6.7 million). Expenditures to settle asset decommissioning obligations are estimated to be incurred between 2013 and 2137. Decommissioning costs are based on estimated cash flows discounted using an annual risk-free rate between 1.1% to 2.4% and inflated using an inflation rate of 2.0%.

	2012	2011
	(\$000)	(\$000)
Balance, beginning of year	\$ 6,400	\$ 2,169
Additional provisions recognised	32,346	3,729
Effect of changes in the discount rate	322	373
Unwinding of discount rate and effect	761	129
	39,829	6,400
Current portion	(795)	(68)
Balance, end of year	\$ 39,034	\$ 6,332

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

11. INCOME TAXES

11.1 Income tax recognised in the Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss

	Year ended D	Year ended December 31,		
	2012	2011		
	(\$000s)	(\$000s)		
Income taxes comprises:				
Tax recovery in respect of the current year	\$ —	\$ (1,304)		
Effect of changes in tax rates and laws		(64)		
Total tax recovery	\$ —	\$ (1,368)		
Total tax recovery		Ψ (1,300)		
	Year ended D			
	2012	2011		
	(\$000)	(\$000)		
Net loss before taxes	\$ (61,728)	\$ (68,760)		
Tax rate (%)	25.0%	26.5%		
Tax Tale (70)				
Expected income tax recovery	(15,432)	(18,221)		
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit:				
Stock compensation expense	3,346	2,140		
Non-deductible expensed portion of share issue costs		_		
Fair value adjustment on warrants	_	5,379		
Non-deductible interest ¹	1,004	6,715		
Capital portion of foreign exchange gain	(1,125)	_		
Flow-through shares	_	1,267		
Unrecognized tax assets	12,033	_		
Changes to opening tax pools	174	1,216		
Effect on deferred tax balances due to the changes				
in income tax rate and other differences		136		
Income tax recovery	<u> </u>	\$ (1,368)		

Non-deductible interest relates to finance costs on funds raised subject to the share repurchase obligation (Note 14).

11.2 Income tax recognised directly in equity

	Year ended December 31,		
	2012	2011	
	(\$000)	(\$000)	
Current tax			
Share issue costs	\$-	\$ —	
Deferred tax			
Share issue expenses deductible over 5 years	- I	(1,921)	
Excess tax deductions related to share-based payments			
Total income tax recognised directly in equity	<u>*-</u>	\$ (1,921)	

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

11. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

11.3 Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets not recognised at the reporting date:
Tax losses (revenue)
Temporary differences

As at December 31,					
2012	2011				
(\$000)	(\$000)				
\$ 33,386	\$ 1,216				
¢ 22 206	¢ 1 216				
\$ 33,386	\$ 1,216				

11.4 Deferred tax balances

	Opening	Recognised	Recognised	Recognised	Reclassified from equity	Acquisition/		
	Balance	in loss	in OCI	directly in equity	to loss	Disposals	Other	Closing Balance
December 31, 2012	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)
·	. ,	,	,	· ,	V. ,	. ,	· · ·	V. ,
Temporary differences								
Exploration and evaluation	\$ (32,593)	(14,099)	_	_	_	_	(9,395)	\$ (56,087)
Property and equipment	(31)	160	_	_	_	_	_	129
Other financial liabilities	755	(189)	_	_	_	_	9,395	9,961
Share issue expenses	871	21,188						22,059
	\$ (30,998)	\$ 7,060	<u>\$</u>	<u>\$</u>	<u> </u>	<u>\$</u> —	<u>\$-</u>	\$ (23,938)
Tax losses	30,998	(7,060)						23,938
Deferred tax assets (liabilities)	<u> </u>	<u>\$-</u>	<u>*-</u>	<u>*-</u>	<u>\$-</u>	<u> </u>	<u>\$-</u>	<u>\$</u> -
					Reclassified			
	Opening	Recognised	Recognised	Recognised	from equity	Acquisition/		
December 31, 2011	Balance	in loss	in OCI	directly in equity	to loss	Disposals	Other	Closing Balance
	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)
				, ,	, ,			
Temporary differences								
Exploration and evaluation	\$ (15,458)	(14,448)	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$ (2,687)	\$ (32,593)
Property and equipment	(4)	(27)	-	-#	$\overline{}$	_	7	(31)
Other financial liabilities	498	(32)	_		-	_	289	755
Share issue expenses	1,092	(2,142)		1,921	<u> </u>		- 15	871
	\$ (13,872)	\$ (16,649)		\$ 1,921	<u> </u>	<u>\$-</u>	\$ (2,398)	\$ (30,998)
Tax losses	12,981	18,017			<u> </u>		=	30,998
Deferred tax assets (liabilities)	\$ (891)	\$ 1,368	<u>\$</u>	\$ 1,921	<u>\$-</u>	<u>\$-</u>	\$ (2,398)	\$-

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

12. SHARE CAPITAL

Issued capital	2012	2011
	(\$000)	(\$000)
Common shares	\$ 991,758	\$ 216,761
Class "G" preferred shares	29	31
Class "H" preferred shares	11	11
Purchase warrants	_	2,371
Issued capital	\$ 991,798	\$ 219,174

On January 26, 2012, shareholders of the Corporation authorized the Corporation to complete up to a 25:1 share split. Prior to closing the IPO, the Board of Directors of the Corporation concluded that a 20:1 share split was appropriate, increasing the number of common shares, preferred shares and stock options to 20 times their previous outstanding amounts. All share and stock option information is therefore presented on a post split basis. In addition, the Articles of Incorporation were amended to remove the voting rights from the Class "G" preferred shares.

The Corporation's authorized share capital is as follows:

- an unlimited number of Class "A" and Class "B" voting common shares without par value; and
- an unlimited number of Class "C", Class "E" and Class "F" non-voting common shares without par value; and
- an unlimited number of Class "G" non-voting preferred shares to be issued shall not exceed 10% of the issued and outstanding number of Common Shares including any Common shares that have been authorized for issuance. The authorized number of preferred shares shall not be considered a rolling 10% available number and any preferred shares that are redeemed or converted in accordance with their terms shall permanently reduce the number available; and
- an unlimited number of Class "H" non-voting preferred shares.



As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

12. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

12.1 Fully paid Class "A" common shares

	201:	2	201	1
	Number of	\$	Number of	\$
	shares	(\$000)	shares	(\$000)
Balance, beginning of year	1,470,171,240	\$ 216,761	1,423,298,640	\$ 196,318
Issued for cash	923,299,500	569,880	15,432,780	7,470
Issued for services	13,566,395	8,378	_	_
Reclassification of share				
repurchase obligation	433,884,300	247,957	_	_
Repurchase of common shares	(85,091,500)	(38,731)	_	_
Repurchase of purchase warrants	_	2,371	_	_
Conversion of preferred				
shares exercised	1,450,800	2	_	_
Common shares issued on				
a flow-through basis	_	_	13,370,820	6,471
Exercise of flow-through warrants	_	_	11,215,000	5,293
Issue of shares upon exercise				
of share options	74,432,426	8,052	6,854,000	1,263
Share option reserve transferred				
on exercise of stock options	_	3,124	_	512
Share issue costs		(26,036)		(566)
Balance, end of year	2,831,713,161	991,758	1,470,171,240	216,761

Common shares

Common shares consist of fully paid Class "A" and Class "B" common shares, which have no par value, carry one vote per share and carry a right to dividends.

On January 4, 2012, the Corporation completed the repurchase and cancellation of all purchase warrants. As a result, 14,412,160 purchase warrants with a value of \$2.4 million were transferred to common shares.

On March 1, 2012, the Corporation successfully closed a Qualifying IPO on the SEHK, issuing 923,299,500 common shares at HK\$4.86 per share, raising gross proceeds of \$569.9 million (HK\$4.5 billion) (Note 14). Pursuant to this event, the Corporation recognized an advisory fee owing (Note 18) of \$8.8 million (HK\$69.4 million). The obligation was settled through the issuance of 13,566,395 common shares for \$8.4 million and cash paid of \$0.4 million.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

12. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Common shares (Continued)

Also in conjunction with the Qualifying IPO, the balance of \$230.2 million of the share repurchase obligation (net of transaction costs of \$17.8 million), including 433,884,300 common shares (originally comprised of 289,256,200 Class "A" common shares and 144,628,100 Class "B" common shares), were reclassified to share capital as the terms of the Subscription Agreements were agreed with the subscription holders to have been met and the share repurchase obligation was extinguished. Prior to closing of the IPO, 144,628,100 Class "B" common shares were exchanged for Class "A" common shares on a one for one basis and then cancelled. Total transaction costs of \$17.8 million, which were netted against the share repurchase obligation, included cash fees paid of \$11.4 million and \$6.4 million assigned as fair value of fee warrants issued to finders. The carrying value of these transaction costs was allocated to share issue costs for \$4.7 million. The remainder of \$13.0 million has been included in finance costs (Note 15) for the year ended December 31, 2012.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, pursuant to total costs incurred for its IPO, the Corporation recognized an allocation amount of share issue costs of \$21.1 million.

In 2012, the Corporation repurchased and cancelled 85,091,500 common shares at a weighted average price per common share of \$0.46 (HK\$3.43), for total consideration of \$38.7 million.

Class "G" preferred shares

The Corporation's Board of Directors authorized for issuance a maximum of 65,000,000 Class "G" preferred shares. The Class "G" preferred shares are entitled to one vote per share and were issued at \$0.0005 per Class "G" preferred share and are convertible into Class "A" common shares at the option of the holder at any time in accordance with the conversion schedule outlined below.

	2012			2011		
	Class "G"			Class "G"		
	preferred	\$	Weighted	preferred	\$	Weighted
	shares	(\$000) a	verage price	shares	(\$000)	average price
Balance, beginning of year	63,310,000	\$ 31	\$ 0.33	54,470,000	\$ 27	\$ 0.31
Issued	830,000	_	\$ 0.48	10,800,000	5	\$ 0.48
Converted	(3,700,000)	(2)	\$ 0.39	_	_	\$ —
Forfeited			<u> </u>	(1,960,000)	(1)	\$ 0.46
Balance, end of year	60,440,000	\$ 29	\$ 0.33	63,310,000	\$ 31	\$ 0.33
Convertible, end of year	27,802,400	\$ 14	\$ 0.33		<u>\$-</u>	<u> </u>

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation issued 830,000 Class "G" preferred shares. The fair value of the Class "G" preferred shares was estimated to be \$0.48 per Class "G" preferred share, using the Black Scholes pricing model with the following assumptions:

	Year ended	Year ended December 31,		
	2012	2011		
Weighted average expected volatility (%)	75%	75% - 96%		
Risk-free rate of return (%)	1.1%	1.0% - 2.19%		
Expected life (years)	1.89 - 1.99	2.02 - 2.87		
Expected forfeitures	Nil	Nil		
Dividends	Nil	Nil		

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

12. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Class "H" preferred shares

The Corporation's Board of Directors authorized for issuance a maximum of 25,000,000 Class "H" preferred shares. The Class "H" preferred shares were issued at \$0.0005 per Class "H" preferred share and are convertible into Class "A" common shares at the option of the holder at any time in accordance with the conversion schedule outlined below.

	2012				2011	
	Class "H"			Class "H"		
	preferred	\$	Weighted	preferred	\$	Weighted
	shares	(\$000)	average price	shares	(\$000)	average price
Balance, beginning of year	22,200,000	\$ 11	\$ 0.42	7,200,000	\$ 3	\$ 0.28
Issued				15,000,000	8	\$ 0.48
Balance, end of year	22,200,000	\$ 11	\$ 0.42	22,200,000	\$ 11	\$ 0.42
Convertible, end of year	10,212,000	\$ 5	\$ 0.42		<u> </u>	<u> </u>

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation issued no Class "H" preferred shares. The weighted average fair value of the Class "H" preferred shares was estimated to be \$0.48 per Class "H" preferred share, using the Black Scholes pricing model with the following assumptions:

Weighted average expected volatility (%)
Risk-free rate of return (%)
Expected life (years)
Expected forfeitures
Dividends

Year ended December 31,					
2012	2011				
_	91% - 96%				
_	1.82% - 2.50%				
_	2.27 - 2.87				
_	Nil				
_	Nil				

Features of Class "G" and Class "H" preferred shares

The term, conversion rights and conversion schedule are the same for both the Class "G" and the Class "H" preferred shares. The preferred shares have a term commencing from the date of issue until the earlier of December 31, 2013 or a change of control (the "expiry date").

Both the Class "G" and the Class "H" preferred shares are convertible into Class "A" common shares on a one for one basis, at the option of the holder, at any time prior to the expiry date for no additional consideration to the Corporation. The number of Class "A" common shares the holder is entitled to receive upon conversion is determined based on the following conversion schedule. The preferred shares shall automatically convert on the expiry date for the number of Class "A" common shares the holder is entitled to as set out in the following conversion schedule:

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

12. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Features of Class "G" and Class "H" preferred shares (Continued)

		Class "G"	
	Preferred	and "H"	Class "A"
	Shares	Preferred	Common
	Conversion	Shares	Shares Issuable
Time Period	Schedule %	Outstanding	on Conversion
Date of issuance to initial public offering (IPO) less a day			
or February 29, 2012	0%	82,640,000	_
IPO date to 6 months after IPO date less a day or March 1,			
2012 - August 31, 2012	30%	82,640,000	24,792,000
6 months after IPO date to 12 months after IPO date less a day			
or September 1, 2012 - February 28, 2013	46%	82,640,000	38,014,400
12 months after IPO date to 18 months after IPO date less a day			
or March 1, 2013 - August 31, 2013	62%	82,640,000	51,236,800
18 months after IPO date to 21 months after IPO date less a day			
or September 1, 2013 - November 30, 2013	78%	82,640,000	64,459,200
21 months after IPO date to 24 months after IPO date December 1,			
2013 - February 28, 2014	100%	82,640,000	82,640,000
Expiry Date or December 31, 2013	100%	82,640,000	82,640,000

Prior to the IPO, the holders of Class "G" and Class "H" preferred shares were only entitled to a redemption amount of \$0.0005 per Class "G" and Class "H" preferred share.

The Class "G" preferred shares are redeemable by the Corporation at any time for the number of Class "A" common shares the holder is entitled to on the date of redemption as set out in the above conversion schedule. The Class "H" preferred shares are redeemable by the Corporation for \$0.0005 each on or after the date that is 21 months after an IPO, upon 30 days' notice to the holder.

The preferred shares are retractable at the option of the holder commencing on the date that is 21 months after an IPO for the number of Class "A" common shares the holder is entitled to on the date of redemption as set out in the above conversion schedule for \$0.0005 each.

In the event that a holder of preferred shares ceases to be eligible to hold preferred shares (e.g. ceases to be a director, officer, employee, consultant or advisor of the Corporation), the preferred shares held by such holder shall terminate and be cancelled on the date that is 30 days after such holder ceases to be eligible and, to the extent the holder requests such preferred shares be converted or redeemed, shall only be convertible or redeemable for the number of Class "A" common shares the holder is then entitled to on the date the person ceases to be eligible as set out in the above conversion schedule.

Warrants

In September 2011, in conjunction with the Corporation's preliminary prospectus filing for an IPO and pursuant to certain conditions and requirements of this filing for a public listing on the SEHK, the Corporation, through its independent directors, commenced negotiations with significant warrant holders, who are also shareholders of the Corporation, to repurchase and cancel all issued and outstanding purchase and fee warrants. The reference price for the repurchase of all warrants was determined by a committee of independent directors of the Corporation.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

12. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Warrants (Continued)

On January 4, 2012, the Corporation completed the repurchase and cancellation of all purchase and fee warrants. For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation recognized \$Nil (2011 - \$20.3 million) fair value adjustment on the 124,719,900 purchase warrants and the 12,499,920 fee warrants since the fair value of the warrants was based on the settlement amount paid to warrant holders. The remaining 14,412,160 purchase warrants were charged to share issue costs in 2011 with a fair value determined using the Black Scholes pricing model of \$6.4 million.

Flow-through warrants	2012		2011		
	Number of	\$	Number of	\$	
	warrants	(\$000)	warrants	(\$000)	
Balance, beginning of year	_	\$ —	11,215,000	\$ 5,293	
Issued	_	_	_	_	
Exercised			(11,215,000)	(5,293)	
Balance, end of year		<u>*-</u>		<u>*-</u>	
Purchase warrants	201	2	201	11	
	Number of	\$	Number of	\$	
	warrants	(\$000)	warrants	(\$000)	
Balance, beginning of year	14,412,160	\$ 2,371	139,132,060	\$ 22,884	
Repurchased and cancelled	(14,412,160)	(2,371)	_	_	
Reclassification			(124,719,900)	(20,513)	
Balance, end of year		<u>*-</u>	14,412,160	\$ 2,371	
Fee warrants	201	2	20^	11	
	Number of	\$	Number of	\$	
	warrants	(\$000)	warrants	(\$000)	
Balance, beginning of year	_	\$ —	12,499,920	\$ 2,277	
Issued	_	_	_	<u> </u>	
Cancelled	_	_	_	<u> </u>	
Reclassification			(12,499,920)	(2,277)	
Balance, end of year		<u>*-</u>		<u>*-</u>	

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

12. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Warrants (Continued)

The following assumptions were used in the Black Scholes pricing model for the determination of the fair value of the warrants:

Year ended December 31,

Purchase warrants	2012	2011
Weighted average expected volatility (%)	_	96.00%
Risk-free rate of return (%)	_	2.02%
Expected life (years)	_	3.00
Expected forfeitures	_	Nil
Dividends	_	Nil
	Year ended [December 31,
Fee warrants	Year ended I	December 31, 2011
Fee warrants Weighted average expected volatility (%)		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		2011
Weighted average expected volatility (%)		2011 91% - 96%
Weighted average expected volatility (%) Risk-free rate of return (%)		2011 91% - 96% 2.02% - 2.19%

13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

13.1 Employee share option plan

Pre-IPO Stock Option Plan:

The Corporation's pre-IPO stock option plan is for directors, officers, employees, consultants and advisors of the Corporation. These options vest over a period up to three years from the date of grant. Following the IPO closing on March 1, 2012, no further options will be issued under the Pre-IPO Stock Option Plan.

Post-IPO Stock Option Plan:

On January 26, 2012, the Post-IPO Stock Option Plan was approved and adopted by shareholders at the Corporation's Annual General Meeting. The Post-IPO Stock Option Plan was effective immediately prior to the Corporation's IPO and listing on the SEHK, March 1, 2012. The maximum number of Class "A" common shares that may be reserved for issuance pursuant to the Post-IPO Stock Option Plan is 10% of the total number of issued and outstanding shares, less the maximum aggregate number of shares underlying the options already granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Stock Option Plan. Options granted under the Post-IPO Stock Option Plan will have an exercise price that is determined by the Board of Directors but is not less than the higher of the closing price and the five day average closing price of Class "A" common shares, listed on the SEHK.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

13.2 Fair value of share options granted in the period

The weighted average fair value of the share options granted for the year ended December 31, 2012 was \$0.27 (2011: \$0.27). Options were priced using the Black Scholes model. From inception of the Corporation to December 31, 2012, the cumulative weighted average fair value per option is \$0.14. Where relevant, the expected life used in the model has been adjusted based on management's best estimate for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions (including the probability of meeting market conditions attached to the option), and behavioural considerations. Expected volatility is based on the historical share price volatility from a peer group of listed companies. It was assumed that option holders will exercise the options on average three years from the grant date, with an expected forfeiture rate of 1%.

The table below details the input variables used in the Black Scholes model to determine the fair value for share-based compensation:

			Series	Series		Series
	Series 5 - 15	Series 16	17 - 23e	24a to 37	Series 38a - 43	44a - 44c
Grant date share price (\$)	0.14 - 0.20	0.45	0.26 - 0.28	0.48	0.64 - 0.65	0.38 - 0.80
Exercise price (\$)	0.14 - 0.20	0.45	0.26 - 0.28	0.48	0.64 - 0.65	0.38 - 0.80
Expected volatility (%)	50.0	50.0	96.0	77.6 - 96.0	75.5	66.5
Option life (years)	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0 - 4.67
Dividend yield (%)	_	_	_	_	_	_
Risk-free interest rate (%)	3.00	3.00	1.86 - 2.25	1.55 - 2.50	1.09 - 1.30	1.21
Expected forfeitures (%)	_	_	1.0	1.0	1.0	3.2

Options from Series 25 to Series 44a vest as to one-third on grant date and as to one-third on each of the first and second anniversaries from grant date while Series 44b vest as to one-third on each of the first, second and third anniversaries from grant date and Series 44c vest as to one-third on each of the second, third and fourth anniversaries from grant date.

13.3 Movements in share options during the period

The following reconciles the share options outstanding at the beginning and end of each period:

Year ended December 31, 2012		Year ended Dec	ember 31, 2011
Number	Weighted Average	Number	Weighted Average
of Options	Exercise Price (\$)	of Options	Exercise Price (\$)
202,958,540	0.22	189,723,980	0.18
70,194,338	0.55	23,313,540	0.48
(74,432,426)	0.11	(6,854,000)	0.18
(6,214,764)	0.51	(3,224,980)	0.40
192,505,688	0.37	202,958,540	0.22
129,172,529	0.29	170,785,520	0.18
	Number of Options 202,958,540 70,194,338 (74,432,426) (6,214,764) 192,505,688	Number of Options Exercise Price (\$) 202,958,540 0.22 70,194,338 0.55 (74,432,426) 0.11 (6,214,764) 0.51 192,505,688 0.37	Number of Options Weighted Average Exercise Price (\$) Number of Options 202,958,540 0.22 189,723,980 70,194,338 0.55 23,313,540 (74,432,426) 0.11 (6,854,000) (6,214,764) 0.51 (3,224,980) 192,505,688 0.37 202,958,540

The share options outstanding as at December 31, 2012, had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.6 years (2011 – 1.9 years).

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

13.4 Share-based compensation

Share-based compensation has been recorded in the consolidated financial statements for the periods presented as follows:

	Year Ended December 31, 2012		
(\$000)	Expensed	Capitalized	Total
Stock options	\$ 6,804	\$ 3,395	\$ 10,199
Preferred shares	6,580	3,666	10,246
	\$ 13,384	\$ 7,061	\$ 20,445
	Year e	nded December 31,	2011
(\$000)	Expensed	Capitalized	Total
Stock options	\$ 3,425	\$ 3,550	\$ 6,975
Preferred shares	4,650	3,605	8,255
	\$ 8,075	\$ 7,155	\$ 15,230

14. SHARE REPURCHASE OBLIGATION

	2012	2011
	(\$000)	(\$000)
Balance, beginning of year	\$ 224,362	\$ —
Issue of subscriptions for cash	_	210,000
Transaction costs	_	(17,770)
Accretion	5,864	32,132
Reclassification to common shares	(230,226)	_
Balance, end of year	\$ —	\$ 224,362

On March 1, 2012, the Corporation successfully closed a Qualifying IPO and listing on the SEHK. Pursuant to this event, the balance of the share repurchase obligation of \$230.2 million (net of total transaction costs of \$17.8 million), including 433,884,300 common shares comprising of 289,256,200 Class "A" common shares and 144,628,100 Class "B" common shares, has been reclassified to share capital as the terms of the Subscription Agreements were agreed with the subscription holders to have been met and the share repurchase obligation has been extinguished. The Class "B" common shares were surrendered for cancellation and exchanged for Class "A" common shares.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, finance costs expensed were \$4.0 million (2011 - \$5.3 million) and finance costs of \$1.9 million (2011 - \$0.2 million) were capitalized as the funds are directly attributable to the development of the Corporation's qualifying assets.

Of the total transaction costs which were netted against the obligation, \$4.7 million has been proportionately allocated to share issue costs with the remaining \$13.0 million expensed for the year ended December 31, 2012.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

15. FINANCE COSTS

	2012	2011
	(\$000)	(\$000)
Finance cost on share repurchase obligation ¹	\$ 5,864	\$ 32,132
Expensed portion of share issue costs ²	13,012	_
Finance cost on related party loan ³	266	_
Finance costs on credit facility	2,449	
Unwinding of discounts on provisions	761	129
Less: Amounts capitalized in exploration and evaluation assets ⁴	(2,115)	(6,791)
	\$ 20,237	\$ 25,470

- 1. Finance costs on share repurchase obligation relate to the \$210 million common share subscriptions, which closed in February 2011. These finance costs relate to accretion of the common share subscriptions, which had a share repurchase right, and have been accounted for using the effective interest method (Note 14). During the year ended December 31, 2012, total finance costs of \$5.9 million (2011 \$5.5 million) were recognized, of which \$1.9 million (2011 \$0.2 million) was capitalized in exploration and evaluation assets with the remaining \$4.0 million (2011 \$5.3 million) expensed in finance costs. On March 1, 2012, the share repurchase obligation was reclassified to share capital (Note 14).
- For the year ended December 31, 2012, expensed portion of share issue costs of \$13.0 million (2011 \$Nil) relates to the allocation portion
 of transaction costs incurred in relation to 433,884,300 common shares issued in February 2011 for \$210 million, which were previously
 netted against the share repurchase obligation (Note 14).
- 3. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation drew and repaid \$30.0 million on an available \$100.0 million loan held by a related party. The loan was accounted for using the effective interest method (Note 18). During the year ended December 31, 2012, total finance costs of \$266,090 (2011 \$Nil) were recognized, of which \$236,873 (2011 \$Nil) was capitalized in exploration and evaluation assets with the remaining \$29,217 (2011 \$Nil) expensed in finance costs.
- 4. For the year ended December 31, 2012, amount comprised of \$1.9 million (2011 \$0.2 million) for the capitalized portion of finance costs on share repurchase obligation and \$0.2 million (2011 \$Nil) capitalized finance costs on the loan.



Year ended December 31,

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

16. LOSS PER SHARE

The weighted average number for basic Class "A" common shares for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 is presented below. Other than Class "A" common shares, all equity instruments have been excluded in calculating the diluted loss per share as they were anti-dilutive, considering the Corporation was in a loss position for the periods presented.

Year ended December 31.

	2012	2011
Basic - Class "A" common shares ^{1, 2}	2,611,962,522	1,462,502,402
Diluted - Class "A" common shares	2,611,962,522	1,462,502,402
Redeemable Class "A" common shares	_	289,256,200
Redeemable Class "B" common shares	_	144,628,100
Class "G" preferred shares	60,440,000	63,310,000
Class "H" preferred shares	22,200,000	22,200,000
Stock Options	192,505,688	202,958,540
Warrants	_	173,326,200

- 1. On January 26, 2012, shareholders of the Corporation authorized the Corporation to complete up to a 25:1 share split. The Board of Directors of the Corporation concluded that a 20:1 share split was appropriate, increasing the number of common shares, preferred shares and stock options to 20 times their previous outstanding amounts. All share and stock option information is therefore presented on a post split basis.
- 2. The number of Class "A" common shares presented is the weighted average number of shares for the year ended December 31, 2012. Prior to the closing of the IPO on March 1, 2012, 289,256,200 redeemable Class "A" common shares and 144,628,100 redeemable Class "B" common shares were excluded from the weighted average calculation.

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

17.1 Capital risk management

The Corporation can be exposed to financial risks on its financial instruments and in the way that it finances its capital requirements. The Corporation manages these financial and capital structure risks by operating in a manner that minimizes its exposure to volatility of the Corporation's financial performance.

The Corporation's strategy is to access capital, through equity issuances and the utilization of debt, in order to maintain a strong capital base for the objectives of maintaining financial flexibility and to sustain the future development of the business. The Corporation manages its capital structure and makes adjustments relative to changes in economic conditions and the Corporation's risk profile. In order to manage risk, the Corporation may from time to time issue shares and adjust its capital spending to manage current working capital levels. The Corporation's capital structure currently includes shareholders' equity and working capital. The Corporation is subject to financial covenants under the terms and conditions of a credit facility agreement (Note 19).

On March 1, 2012, the Corporation successfully closed a Qualifying IPO and listing on the SEHK. Pursuant to this event, the balance of the share repurchase obligation, including 433,884,300 common shares (originally comprised of 289,256,200 Class "A" common shares and 144,628,100 Class "B" common shares), were reclassified as the terms of the Subscription Agreements were agreed with the subscription holders to have been met. All Class "B" common shares were exchanged for Class "A" common shares prior to the closing of the IPO and then were cancelled.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

17.1 Capital risk management (Continued)

There is no change in the Corporation's objectives and strategies of capital management for the year ended December 31, 2012. In October 2012, the Corporation negotiated and signed a \$200 million Credit Facility (the "Credit Facility") with a syndicate of financial institutions (Note 19). In conjunction with the closing of the Credit Facility, the Corporation also terminated its \$100 million loan agreement with a significant shareholder (Note 18.1). The available amount under the Credit Facility has been excluded from capital structure. The Corporation's capital structure is described below:

	2012	2011
	(\$000)	(\$000)
Working capital (surplus)/deficiency	\$ (215,471)	\$ 7,095
Share repurchase obligation	_	224,362
Shareholders' equity	871,076	148,587
	\$ 655,605	\$ 380,044

17.2 Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted (including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement, and the basis for recognition of income and expenses) for each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 3.

17.3 Categories of financial instruments

2012		20	11
Carrying Amount (\$000)	Fair Value (\$000)	Carrying Amount (\$000)	Fair Value (\$000)
\$ 284,811	\$ 284,811	\$ 88,993	\$ 88,993
			d
_	_	63,000	63,000
66,621	66,621	257,728	257,728
	Carrying Amount (\$000) \$ 284,811	Carrying Amount Fair Value (\$000) (\$000) \$ 284,811 \$ 284,811	Carrying Amount (\$000) Fair Value (\$000) Carrying Amount (\$000) \$ 284,811 \$ 284,811 \$ 88,993

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

17.4 Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of financial liabilities (such as FVTPL) recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values. These financial liabilities have been assessed on a Level 3 fair value measurement.

The fair value of cash, term deposits, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and accrued liabilities approximate their carrying values due to their short term maturity. These financial instruments have been assessed on a Level 1 fair value measurement.

Level 1 fair value measurements are based on quoted prices in active markets. Level 2 fair value measurements are based on valuation models and techniques where the significant inputs are derived from quoted prices or indices. Level 3 fair value measurements are based on unobservable information.

17.5 Financial risk management

Financial risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk, and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The Corporation does not use any derivative financial instruments to mitigate these risk exposures. The Corporation does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

17.6 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as currency risk, commodity price risk and interest rate risk will affect the Corporation's net loss. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable limits. There have been no changes over the prior year to the Corporation's objectives, policies or processes to manage market risks.

The Corporation is exposed to risks arising from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and the volatility of those rates. Thus, exchange rate fluctuations can affect the fair value of future cash flows. This exposure primarily relates to certain expenditure commitments, deposits, accounts receivable and accounts payable which are denominated in US dollars and/or HK dollars. The Corporation manages this risk by monitoring foreign exchange rates and evaluating their effects on using Canadian or U.S. vendors as well as timing of transactions. The Corporation had no forward exchange rate contracts in place as at or during the year ended December 31, 2012. If exchange rates to convert from HK dollars to Canadian dollars had been \$0.10 higher or lower with all other variables held constant, foreign cash held at December 31, 2012 would have been impacted by approximately \$14,000. At December 31, 2012, the Corporation held HK\$8.2 million or \$1.1 million using the December 31, 2012 exchange rate of 7.7905, as cash in the Corporation's Hong Kong bank account.

Commodity price risk is the risk that the value of future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in commodity prices. Commodity prices for petroleum are impacted by world economic events that dictate the levels of supply and demand. The Corporation has not attempted to mitigate commodity price risk through the use of various financial derivative or physical delivery sales contracts.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

17.7 Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates. As at December 31, 2012, the Corporation does not have any floating rate debt.

The Corporation's cash and cash equivalents consists of cash held in bank accounts and term deposits that earn interest at variable interest rates. Future cash flows from interest income on cash will be affected by interest rate fluctuations. Due to the short-term nature of these financial instruments, fluctuations in market rates do not have a significant impact on estimated fair values or result in material interest rate risk. The Corporation manages interest rate risk by maintaining an investment policy that focuses primarily on preservation of capital and liquidity. For the year ended December 31, 2012, the interest income earned on cash equivalents was between 0.5% and 1.26%.

17.8 Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Corporation if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Corporation's cash, deposits and receivables and GST receivables. As at December 31, 2012, the Corporation's receivables consisted of 68% from Goods and Services Tax receivable, 26% from oil sale receivables and 6% from other receivables (2011 – 57% from oil sale receivables and 43% from Goods and Services Tax receivable).

The Corporation's cash and cash equivalents as at December 31, 2012, are held in accounts with a diversified group of highly rated third party financial institutions and consist of invested cash and cash in the Corporation's operating accounts. The cash equivalents portion is invested in high yield savings and high grade liquid term deposits.

The Corporation is exposed to credit risk from the Corporation's receivables from purchasers of the Corporation's crude oil. At December 31, 2012, there was no allowance for impairment of accounts receivable and the Corporation did not provide for any doubtful accounts nor was it required to write-off any receivables, as no receivables were considered past due or impaired (2011 - \$Nil). The Corporation considers any amounts outstanding in excess of 120 days past due.

17.9 Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Corporation's approach to managing liquidity risk is to plan that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, using either equity or debt proceeds. The Corporation expects to settle all trade and other payables within 90 days.

The Corporation utilizes authorizations for expenditures to manage its planned capital expenditures and actual expenditures are regularly monitored and modified as considered necessary.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Balances and transactions between the Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries, who are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions between the Corporation and other related parties are disclosed below.

18.1 Trading transactions

The Corporation had transactions with a law firm in which a director of the Corporation is a partner. The Corporation also paid consulting fees to two directors of the Corporation.

	Year ended December 31,	
	2012	2011
	(\$000)	(\$000)
Other assets ¹	\$ —	\$ 867
Share issue costs	271	115
	\$ 271	\$ 982
Legal expense	\$ 398	\$ 291
Expense portion of IPO costs	551	
	\$ 949	\$ 291

Other assets consisted of IPO financing costs before allocation expense.

The following balances were outstanding and included in trade and other payables at the end of the reporting period:

	2012 (\$000)	2011 (\$000)
Legal	\$ 136	\$ 363

Advisory Fee Agreement (the "Agreement")

During 2010, the Corporation entered into an agreement to pay a fee for services to be rendered in connection with an initial filling of an IPO prospectus and listing. On March 1, 2012, the Corporation successfully closed its Qualifying IPO and listing on the SEHK. Pursuant to this event, the fee was settled through the issuance of 13,566,395 common shares for \$8,377,723 and cash paid of \$440,933. The service provider is a company which is controlled by a director who is a principal of a significant shareholder of the Corporation, and who also holds a senior management position with the service provider company.

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

18.1 Trading transactions (Continued)

Related Party Loan Agreement (the "Loan Agreement")

The Corporation entered into a credit facility agreement ("the Loan Agreement") with a non-arm's length lender in which a loan for general working capital purposes was available of up to a maximum of \$100.0 million. The loan was interest free up to May 31, 2012. Amounts drawn on the loan were accounted for as a related party transaction since a director of the Corporation is also the controlling shareholder of the lending company.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation drew \$30.0 million on the loan and subsequently repaid the balance. For the year ended December 31, 2012, total (non-cash) finance costs were \$266,090, of which \$29,217 was expensed and \$236,873 was capitalized as the funds are directly attributable to the development of the Corporation's qualifying assets. Upon repayment of the outstanding balance owing on this loan, \$266,090 was recorded to Other Reserve due to the related party nature of this transaction. In October 2012, in conjunction with the closing of the Credit Facility (Note 19), the Loan Agreement was terminated. The loan was a financial liability and has been classified as other liabilities and recorded at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

The amounts outstanding were unsecured and settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received. No expense has been recognised in the current or prior periods for bad or doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related parties.

18.2 Compensation of key management personnel and directors

The remuneration of the directors and key management executives is determined by the Compensation Committee and consists of the following amounts:

Directors' fees
Salaries and allowances
Share-based payments
Consulting fees
Performance related incentive payments

Year ended D	December 31,
2012	2011
\$ 681	\$ 248
1,710	955
12,282	5,752
900	910
13,208	1,650
\$ 28,781	\$ 9,515

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

19. CREDIT FACILITY

In October 2012, the Corporation negotiated and signed a \$200.0 million Credit Facility with a syndicate of financial institutions. The Credit Facility matures on October 10, 2013 and is extendable at the lenders' discretion. The Credit Facility bears interest at a floating rate based on Canadian dollar prime rate, US dollar base rate, bankers' acceptances or LIBOR plus a credit spread above the reference rate. Undrawn amounts are subject to a standby fee of 100 basis points per annum. The Credit Facility is secured by all assets of the Corporation. The amount available for drawdown is subject to a sufficient funding requirement which is defined as having on-hand funding equal to or exceeding the sum of the remaining costs to complete the Phase 1 and Phase 2 West Ells project plus a contingency amount equal to 20% of remaining costs to complete.

The Credit Facility is subject to various non-financial covenants including, amount other things, restrictions on issuing debt, making investments or loans, paying dividends, altering the nature of the business and undertaking corporate transactions. The Credit Facility also has certain financial covenants.

In conjunction with the closing of the Credit Facility, the Corporation terminated its \$100.0 million Loan Agreement with a significant shareholder (Note 18.1).

20. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

20.1 Leasing arrangements

Office Leases

The Corporation has a lease for corporate office space, located in Calgary, Canada, with a term expiring March 30, 2019. Total remaining commitment on this lease is approximately \$11.7 million.

The Corporation has secured office space in Hong Kong with a total minimum lease commitment of approximately \$1.2 million. This is based on a fixed rate for 38 months of the lease term at HK\$0.2 million per month with a foreign exchange rate of 1C\$ = 7.79HK\$ (based on Bank of Canada December 31, 2012 exchange rates). The Hong Kong lease expires October 31, 2017. Lease payments are HK\$0.2 million per month for the first 38 months and then an open market rate for the last 36 months. A deposit of HK\$0.7 million was paid upon signing of the lease.

Lease Rentals

As at December 31, 2012, the Corporation has an annual obligation of approximately \$1.7 million for oil sands mineral lease rentals and surface lease rentals. Each oil sands mineral lease has an initial fifteen year term from the date of acquisition. Each petroleum and natural gas lease has an initial four year term from date of acquisition.

20.2 Payments recognised as an expense

	Year ended December 31,	
	2012	2011
	(\$000)	(\$000)
Minimum lease payments	\$ 2,056	\$ 1,204

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

21. COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation's commitments are as follows:

	Due within	Due in the	
	the next	next 2	
	12 months	to 5 years	Over 5 years
	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)
Drilling and other equipment and contracts	\$ 173,815	\$ —	\$ —
Lease rentals	1,840	7,225	10,593
Office leases¹	2,155	8,494	2,278
	\$ 177,810	\$ 15,719	\$ 12,871

^{1.} Office leases only includes minimum lease commitments for the first 38 months up to October 31, 2014 for the Hong Kong premise lease.

22. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES

Non-cash transactions

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation had the following non-cash transactions:

- the settlement of the advisory fee through the issuance of 13,566,395 common shares for \$8.4 million (Note 18.1);
- the share repurchase obligation has been reclassified to share capital for \$230.2 million (Note 12); and
- capitalized general and administrative costs and share-based payments and finance costs (Notes 7 and 8).



As at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (Expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

22. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Supplemental cash flow disclosures

	Year ended December 31,	
	2012	2011
Cash provided by (used in):	(\$000)	(\$000)
Trade and other receivables	\$ 1,428	\$ (2,309)
Prepaid expenses and deposits	97	1,113
Trade and other payables	35,456	15,843
	\$ 36,981	\$ 14,647
Changes in non-cash working capital relating to:		
Operating activities		
Trade and other receivables	\$ 1,557	\$ (1,634)
Prepaid expenses and deposits	97	(485)
Trade and other payables	(73)	1,149
	\$ 1,581	\$ (970)
Investing activities		
Exploration and evaluation assets	\$ 39,966	\$ 10,842
Financing activities		
Share issue costs and IPO costs	\$ (4,566)	\$ 4,775
	\$ 36,981	\$ 14,647
Reconciliation of:		
Exploration and evaluation assets	\$ 269,348	\$ 166,403
Changes in non-cash working capital	(39,966)	(10,842)
Payments for exploration and evaluation assets	\$ 229,382	\$ 155,561
Reconciliation of:		
Share issue costs and IPO costs	\$ 20,562	\$ 19,076
Changes in non-cash working capital	4,566	(4,775)
Payment for share issue costs	\$ 25,128	\$ 14,301
		002 - 100 -

23. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on March 26, 2013.

ADDITIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE INFORMATION

Additional information required by the SEHK and not shown elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements is as follows:

A1. Sunshine Oilsands Ltd. non-consolidated statement of financial position

The Corporation's statement of financial position is on a non-consolidated basis which excludes the Corporation's wholly owned subsidiaries, Fern and Sunshine Hong Kong.

Non-current assets (\$000) (\$000) Property and equipment \$ 327,968 \$ 719 Exploration and evaluation assets 366,625 382,234 Other assets — 3,380 Amount due from subsidiaries 293 — Investment in subsidiaries 60 60
Non-current assetsProperty and equipment\$ 327,968\$ 719Exploration and evaluation assets366,625382,234Other assets—3,380Amount due from subsidiaries293—Investment in subsidiaries6060
Property and equipment \$327,968 \$719 Exploration and evaluation assets 366,625 382,234 Other assets - 3,380 Amount due from subsidiaries 293 Investment in subsidiaries 60 60
Property and equipment \$327,968 \$719 Exploration and evaluation assets 366,625 382,234 Other assets - 3,380 Amount due from subsidiaries 293 Investment in subsidiaries 60 60
Exploration and evaluation assets366,625382,234Other assets—3,380Amount due from subsidiaries293—Investment in subsidiaries6060
Other assets—3,380Amount due from subsidiaries293—Investment in subsidiaries6060
Amount due from subsidiaries Investment in subsidiaries 293 60
694,946 386,393
Current Assets
Other receivables 2,147 3,582
Prepaid expense and deposits 2,147 3,362
Cash and cash equivalents 282,230 84,951
202,200 04,331
285,068 89,331
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 68,782 33,366
Provision for decommissioning obligation 795 68
Fair value of warrants — 63,000
Borrowings
69,577 96,434
Net current assets (liabilities) 215,491 (7,103)
Total assets less current liabilities 910,437 379,290
Non-current liabilities
Share repurchase obligation — 224,362
Provision for decommissioning obligation 39,034 6,332
Deferred tax liabilities
39,034 230,694
Net Assets \$ 871,403 \$ 148,596
Capital and reserves
Share capital 991,798 219,174
Reserve for share based compensation 47,395 30,074
Deficit (167,790) (100,652)
\$ 871,403 \$ 148,596

A2. Directors' emoluments and other staff costs

The directors' emoluments and other staff costs are broken down as follows:

	Year ended December 31,		
	2012	2011	
	(\$000)	(\$000)	
Directors' emoluments			
Directors' fees	\$ 681	\$ 248	
Salaries and allowances	900	910	
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme	_	_	
Share-based payments	7,832	4,476	
Performance related incentive payments	12,000	1,040	
r chomiance related incentive payments		1,040	
	21,413	6,674	
Other staff costs			
Salaries and other benefits	12,475	9,619	
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme	248	164	
Share-based payments	12,613	10,754	
Performance related incentive payments	2,986	1,650	
	28,322	22,187	
Total staff costs, including directors' emoluments	49,735	28,861	
Total stall cools, illottere sillottere sillottere	10,700	20,001	
Less: bonus included with expensed portion of IPO costs	5,000	_	
Less: staff costs capitalized in exploration and evaluation assets	15,012	13,455	
	\$ 29,723	\$ 15,406	

Details of the directors' emoluments are as follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2012

			Contribution		Performance	
			to retirement	Share	related	
	Director's	Salaries and	benefits	based	incentive	
Name of Director	Fees	allowances	schemes	compensation	payments	Total
	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)
Michael Hibberd	\$ 82	\$ 450	\$ —	\$ 2,526	\$ 3,500	\$ 6,558
Songning Shen	82	450	_	2,526	3,500	6,558
Tseung Hok Ming	67	_	_	2,358	4,600	7,025
Tingan Liu	_	_	_	_	_	_
Haotian Li	61	_	_	78	_	139
Raymond Fong	76	_	_	36	75	187
Wazir C. (Mike) Seth	75	_	_	36	75	186
Greg Turnbull	70	_	_	86	100	256
Robert Herdman	89	_	_	91	75	255
Gerald Stevenson	79	_	_	91	75	245
Kevin Flaherty ¹	_	_	_	2	_	2
Zhijan Qin ¹				2		2
	\$ 681	\$ 900	<u> </u>	\$ 7,832	\$ 12,000	\$ 21,413

^{1.} These individuals ceased to be directors of the Corporation in 2011.

For the year ended December 31, 2011

			Contribution		Performance	
			to retirement	Share	related	
	Director's	Salaries and	benefits	based	incentive	
Name of Director	Fees	allowances	schemes	compensation	payments	Total
	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)	(\$000)
Michael Hibberd	\$ 31	\$ 455	\$ —	\$ 1,016	\$ 520	\$ 2,022
Songning Shen	32	455	_	1,016	520	2,023
Tseung Hok Ming	24	_	_	1,697		1,721
Tingan Liu		L - 1 - 1		13"	-	- Samuel
Haotian Li	22)	-	238		260
Kevin Flaherty		_ r / - 3		11		11
Raymond Fong	27		 -	11		38
Zhijan Qin	_		-	11	\pm	11
Wazir C. (Mike) Seth	29	<u> </u>	-	11	- /	40
Greg Turnbull	27			61		88
Robert Herdman	29	$-\epsilon$		202		231
Gerald Stevenson	27			202		229
	\$ 248	\$ 910	\$-	\$ 4,476	\$ 1,040	\$ 6,674

A3. Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals includes three directors of the Corporation and two officers of the Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2012 (2011 – three directors and two officers). Other than as disclosed in Note A2 for the directors, the compensation of the remaining two officers is as follows:

	Year ended December 31,	
	2012	2011
	(\$000)	(\$000)
Salaries and other benefits	\$ 712	\$ 484
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes	4	7
Share based compensation	2,251	736
Performance related incentive payments	560	340
	\$ 3,526	\$ 1,567

Year ended December 31,

The five highest paid individuals were within the following emolument bands:

	2012	2011
HK\$ nil to HK\$1,000,000	_	_
HK\$1,000,001 to HK\$1,500,000	_	_
HK\$1,500,001 to HK\$2,000,000	_	_
HK\$2,000,001 to HK\$2,500,000	_	_
HK\$2,500,001 to HK\$3,000,000	_	_
HK\$3,000,001 to HK\$3,500,000	_	_
HK\$3,500,001 to HK\$4,000,000	_	_
HK\$4,000,001 to HK\$4,500,000	_	_
HK\$4,500,001 to HK\$5,000,000	_	_
HK\$5,000,001 to HK\$5,500,000	_	_
HK\$5,500,001 to HK\$6,000,000	_	2
HK\$6,000,001 to HK\$6,500,000	_	_
HK\$6,500,001 to HK\$7,000,000	_	_
> HK\$7,000,000	5	3

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the conversion factor used in the above table is 1C\$ = 7.762HK\$ (year ended December 31, 2011 – 1C\$ = 7.637HK\$).

Corporate Information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Michael J. Hibberd Mr. Songning Shen

Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Hok Ming Tseung

Mr. Tingan Liu

Mr. Haotian Li

Mr. Gregory G. Turnbull

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Raymond S. Fong

Mr. Robert J. Herdman

Mr. Wazir C. (Mike) Seth

Mr. Gerald F. Stevenson

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES:

Mr. Tingan Liu

Mr. Richard W. Pawluk

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES:

Mr.Tingan Liu

Mr. Haotian Li

COMPLIANCE ADVISER:

Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance Limited

AUDITORS:

Deloitte & Touche LLP

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

Mr. Robert J. Herdman (Chairman)

Mr. Gerald F. Stevenson

Mr. Wazir C. (Mike) Seth

Mr. Tingan Liu

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE:

Mr. Robert J. Herdman (Chairman)

Mr. Gregory G. Turnbull

Mr. Hok Ming Tseung

Mr. Raymond S. Fong

Mr. Gerald F. Stevenson

RESERVES COMMITTEE:

Mr. Wazir C. (Mike) Seth (Chairman)

Mr. Songning Shen

Mr. Gerald F. Stevenson

Mr. Raymond S.Fong

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Gerald F. Stevenson (Chairman)

Mr. Michael J. Hibberd

Mr. Haotian Li

Mr. Robert J. Herdman

Mr. Gregory G. Turnbull

Mr. Wazir C. (Mike) Seth

Mr. Raymond S. Fong

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS:

Suite 1020, 903 Eighth Avenue SW

Calgary, Alberta

T2P 0P7 Canada

Corporate Information

REGISTERED OFFICE IN ALBERTA:

Suite 3300, 421 Seventh Avenue SW Calgary, Alberta T2P 4K9 Canada

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG:

8504A, 85/F, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR IN HONG KONG:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

SHARE REGISTRAR IN ALBERTA:

Alliance Trust Company

COMPETENT PERSONS:

DeGolyer and MacNaughton Canada Limited GLJ Petroleum Consultants Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS:

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited Royal Bank of Canada ATB Financial

LEGAL ADVISERS:

McCarthy Tétrault LLP Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer

WEBSITE:

www.sunshineoilsands.com

PLACE OF SHARE LISTING AND STOCK CODE:

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 2012 Toronto Stock Exchange: SUO

